# Fish Processing & Preservation

V. Ramachandran Shakuli Saxena



## FISH PROCESSING & PRESERVATION

# FISH PROCESSING & PRESERVATION

V. Ramachandran Shakuli Saxena



. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

### FISH PROCESSING & PRESERVATION

V. Ramachandran, Shakuli Saxena

This edition published by **BLACK PRINTS INDIA INC.**, Murari Lal Street, Ansari Road, Daryaganj, New Delhi-110002

#### ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

This publication may not be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the prior permission of the publishers.

Edition: 2022 (Revised)

ISBN: 978-93-82036-32-6



Excellence in Academic Publishing

Editorial Office: 116-A, South Anarkali, Delhi-110051. Ph.: 011-22415687

Sales & Marketing: 4378/4-B, Murari Lal Street, Ansari Road, Daryaganj, New Delhi-110002. Ph.: +91-11-23281685, 41043100 Fax: +91-11-23270680 Production: A 2/21, Site-IV, Sahibabad Industrial Area Ghaziabad, U.P. (NCR) e-mail: blackprintsindia@gmail.com

#### CONTENTS

Chapter 1. Physical and Chemical Characteristics of Fish: A Comprehensive Review	1
— Shakuli Saxena	
Chapter 2. Fish Life : Exploring the Biological Characteristics of Fish 1	.1
— Praveen Kumar Singh	
Chapter 3. Post Mortem Changes in Fish and Safety Hazards1	.8
— Sunil Kumar	
Chapter 4. Microbiology of Fish and Fish Products: A Comprehensive Overview2	26
— Devendra Pal Singh	
Chapter 5. Wet Fish Handling and Preparation: Seafood Journey	\$2
— Upasana	
Chapter 6. Chilling and Chill Storage: Keeping Fish Cool for Freshness	8
— Ashutosh Awasthi	
Chapter 7. Quality Control and Food Safety in Fish Canning Industry	8
— Anil Kumar	
Chapter 8. From Catch to Spread: Crafting Fish Paste Products	55
— Kusum Farswan	
Chapter 9. Exploring the Science of Fish Curing: Methods of Fish Preserving	52
— Kuldeep Mishra	
Chapter 10. From the Sea to Plate: A World of Fish Products	'1
— Heejeebu Shanmukha Viswanath	
Chapter 11. Food Additives in Fish Processing: Methods of Enhancing Quality	30
— Kusum Farswan	
Chapter 12. Mastering the Art of Fish Filleting and Precise Deboning	39
— Kuldeep Mishra	
Chapter 13. Marketing and Distribution of Processed Fish Products	)9
— Heejeebu Shanmukha Viswanath	

#### CHAPTER 1 PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL CHARACTERISTICS OF FISH: A COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Shakuli Saxena, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-<u>shakuli2803@gmail.com</u>

#### **ABSTRACT:**

The Physical Characteristics of Fish chapter looks into the anatomical and physiological characteristics that identify this varied group of aquatic animals. Fish have a variety of physical adaptations that allow them to flourish in a variety of aquatic habitats, and this chapter gives a complete review of these fundamental characteristics. The chapter begins by discussing the exterior characteristics of fish, such as their streamlined body forms, scales, and fins, which are essential for swimming, buoyancy, and defence. It also investigates the extraordinary variation in size, colouring, and form among various fish species.Furthermore, the internal anatomy of fish is investigated, stressing the distinctive features of their skeletal system, such as the existence of a cartilaginous or bony skeleton. The chapter also dives into the respiratory system, describing how fish absorb oxygen from water through their gills, as well as the circulatory system, which is critical for delivering oxygen and nutrients throughout their bodies. Another focus is on fish reproductive techniques, which discuss the many means of reproduction, such as external fertilization and internal fertilization, as well as parental care variation. In conclusion, this chapter gives a thorough grasp of the physical features that allow fish to flourish in their aquatic settings, providing vital insights into the intriguing world of these aquatic organisms.

#### **KEYWORDS:**

Aquatic Habitats, Fish, oxygen Water, Physical Traits, Swim Bladder.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Fish, unlike mammals, are cold-blooded. This implies that they do not have a consistent internal body temperature; rather, their temperature is considerably changed by their surroundings. True fish have a backbone as well as fins. Most have gills for breathing and scales covering their body. Fish are thought to have started evolving some 480 million years ago. There are around 22,000 recognized fish species. The fins of a fish are utilized for balance as well as to push and steer through the water. Most fish have two kinds of fins: single fins that run down the midline of the body and paired fins. The caudal fin, or tail fin, propels the fish forward in the water, while the dorsal and anal fins on top and bottom, respectively aid in balance and prevent the fish from turning over. The twin fins aid in steering and hovering. Most fish have scales on the exterior of their skin. These overlapping rows protect the fish from damage and illness. Some species, such as pufferfish, do not have scales. Some fish have jagged and sharp scale edges, whereas others have smooth and rounded edges. To further defend themselves from infection, fish generate a layer of mucus over their scales. Bacteria and viruses are trapped and immobilized by the mucus, preventing them from entering the fish's body. This layer also reduces friction, enabling the fish to travel through the water more effortlessly[1], [2].

Fish have unique structures called gills that allow them to breathe underwater. Thousands of capillaries, or small blood veins, are found in the gills, which are located on the side of the fish slightly below the head. Water is continually pushed over the gills, which filter oxygen

from the water and deliver it straight into the fish's blood. The operculum, or gill cover, is a flexible bony plate that protects the delicate gills. Gills are also vital in the excretion of waste materials from the fish's circulation, notably ammonia. The swim bladder, also known as the air bladder, is a unique internal structure found in fish. It is commonly present in the belly and aids fish in moving up and down in the water. Fish can alter the depth at which they float without having to swim all the time by modifying the quantity of air in their bladder. The swim bladder is also employed to make noises in certain fish. Members of the shark and ray families lack a swim bladder. Many fish have great eyesight and can distinguish between colours. They, too, have noses and can sense odours in water. Depending on the species, fish may or may not have teeth. The lateral line, which runs down the side of the fish, is another organ of sensation that is unique to fish. It has microscopic sensory hairs that assist detect and distinguish the source of underwater vibrations, allowing fish to navigate even in low light or muddy water[3], [4].

Water, protein, lipid, and ash are the four primary elements of the edible section of fish. The study of these four fundamental elements of fish muscle is known as proximate analysis. Despite the fact that data on proximate composition are crucial for many applications and studies on these lines have been conducted since the 1880s, accurate data on proximate composition of most fish species are difficult to acquire. However, this is not the sole or primary cause for the scarcity of good and trustworthy data on the biochemical makeup of fish. Fishes are an extremely diverse and highly specialized group that emerged via biochemical adaptation and evolution. There are roughly 24000 species with enormous differences in size, shape, appearance, and so on. These animals' habitats and food consumption are both diversified. Some species are only found in saltwater, whereas others are only found in freshwater[5], [6].

Some can live in both saltwater and freshwater habitats. For spawning, certain marine species travel to fresh water, while many freshwater species go to the sea. Temperature, salinity, pressure, food availability, and other environmental factors all have a significant impact on biochemical composition. The biochemical makeup may vary across groups or even between species. Variations exist even within a species for individual fish or groups of fish caught at various periods or under different circumstances. Another sort of proximate composition variation happens between various portions of the same fish. The oil content of the muscle normally increases from the tail to the head. Similarly, the metabolic makeup of light and red muscle will differ. Against this backdrop, we must examine the facts on fish biochemical makeup. Data available in the literature regarding proximate composition of specific species will only provide a range or average, which is not normally accepted as absolute values. The proportions of the four primary elements of fish, viz. Proximate composition is defined as water, protein, fat, and ash it should be emphasized that the word does not imply any degree of error in the study. In most situations, these four components account for 96-98% of total tissue contents.

#### DISCUSSION

Fish, a varied group of aquatic vertebrates, have a variety of morphological traits that allow them to flourish in a variety of aquatic habitats. These traits have developed over millions of years and continue to amaze biologists, ecologists, and fans. We will go into the fine aspects of fish physical traits, such as their outward appearance, internal anatomy, respiratory and circulatory systems, reproductive tactics, and function in ecosystems, in this detailed discussion. The outward characteristics of fish are the first things that catch our attention. These characteristics, which include swimming, defence, and interaction with their environment, are critical to their survival. The streamlined body form of fish is one of its most noticeable physical features. Because this form minimizes water resistance, fish can swim more effectively and preserve energy. Whether it's a tuna's sleek, torpedo-like form or a flounder's flattened, disk-shaped body, these adaptations allow fish to travel through water with minimum effort.Scales cover fish and have numerous functions. Scales defend against predators, parasites, and physical harm. They also help to reduce water resistance, assist in buoyancy management, and, in certain circumstances, contribute to thermoregulation.Fish fins are essential for propulsion and stability. These appendages exist in a variety of shapes and sizes, each having a distinct purpose. The dorsal fin is responsible for balancing, the pectoral fins for steering, the pelvic fins for vertical movement, and the caudal fin for propulsion. Fin shape and size may vary greatly amongst fish species, reflecting their distinct ecological responsibilities.Fish have a great variety of colours and patterns, which are frequently used for camouflage or communication. Some animals may alter their hue to blend in with their environment, allowing them to avoid predators or ambush prey. Others employ bright colours to attract mates or communicate inside their social groupings[7], [8].

#### Anatomy of the Internal Organs

Aside from their apparent characteristics, fish have distinct internal architecture that contributes to their survival and functioning in aquatic settings.

#### Skeletal System

The skeletons of fish may be cartilaginous or bony. Cartilaginous fish, such as sharks and rays, have cartilage skeletons, which are lighter and more flexible than bone. Bony fish, which account for the vast majority of fish species, contain hard bones that offer structural support as well as protection for internal organs.Fish use their gills to obtain oxygen from water, which is a very effective respiratory mechanism.

Water travels over the gill filaments, allowing oxygen to permeate into the circulation while expelling carbon dioxide. This technique enables fish to take oxygen from water and breathe underwater. This system's efficacy varies by species, with certain fish having unique adaptations for low-oxygen situations.Fish have a closed circulatory system that includes a heart, arteries, veins, and capillaries. The heart circulates oxygen ated blood throughout the body and returns deoxygenated blood to the gills for oxygen replacement. This circulatory system is critical for transporting oxygen and nutrients throughout the fish's body as well as eliminating waste.

#### Adaptations in Respiratory Function

Fish respiratory adaptations are especially notable because they demonstrate how physical traits are tightly related to the aquatic environment.

#### Gills

Fish's major respiratory organs are essential for their life in water. The gill filaments' vast surface area allows for effective oxygen exchange. Fish retain a consistent supply of oxygen by swimming with their mouths open and forcing water over their gills.

#### **Countercurrent Exchange**

Gills' countercurrent exchange system is a technical wonder. It guarantees that oxygen intake is maximized while minimizing oxygen loss from the blood. Water travels over the gills in the opposite direction of blood flow, providing a concentration gradient that permits oxygen to diffuse from water to blood efficiently.

#### Additional Respiratory systems

In order to flourish in harsh settings, several fish species have evolved additional respiratory systems. Lungfish, for example, have both gills and lungs, enabling them to breathe air when oxygen levels in the water are low. Similarly, certain catfish species use specialized structures called intestitial air-breathing roots to absorb oxygen from the air.

#### Adaptations in Circulation

Fish have also developed circulatory adaptations to accommodate their distinct breathing system and aquatic existence. Most fish have a two-chambered heart, which consists of an atrium and a ventricle. This straightforward heart design effectively transports blood to the gills for oxygenation, then to the rest of the body. However, since it restricts the separation of oxygenated and deoxygenated blood, fish are less effective at obtaining oxygen than mammals with four-chambered hearts.

#### **Buoyancy manage**

Fish have a specific mechanism called the swim bladder or gas bladder that helps them manage their buoyancy. Fish can alter their location in the water column without wasting too much energy by changing the amount of gas in their swim bladder. This adaption helps them to preserve energy while remaining in currents and at various depths.

#### **Reproductive Techniques**

Fish have a variety of reproduction techniques that are tied to their physical traits and ecological niches.

#### **External Fertilization**

External fertilization occurs when females release eggs and men discharge sperm into the sea. This approach is prevalent among pelagic animals since it increases the odds of fertilization in open water. It does, however, expose the eggs and larvae to predation and environmental influences.

#### **Internal Fertilization**

Internal fertilization is a process in which sperm is transported directly to the female's body by certain fish. This technique is often connected with creatures that care for and protect their young. Internal fertilization may improve offspring survival by decreasing exposure to external dangers.

#### **Parental Care**

Fish engage in a variety of parental care behaviours. While some animals do not care for their young after fertilization, others make enormous efforts to safeguard and nurture them. Mouthbrooding cichlids, in which parents incubate eggs and young fish in their mouths, and seahorses, in which males carry and care for growing embryos in specialized pouches, are two examples.

#### **Environmental Importance**

Understanding the physical properties of fish is not only an academic subject; it has enormous ecological implications.

#### **Ecosystem Function**

Fish are important components of many aquatic ecosystems. They play crucial roles in nutrient cycle, predation, and prey population management. Fish population changes may have a domino effect on whole ecosystems, affecting the health and balance of aquatic environments.

#### Indicator Species

Fish may be used to assess environmental health. Monitoring fish populations and their physical health may offer information on water quality, the presence of pollutants, and habitat degradation. Fish population declines often indicate greater environ mental issues. Understanding fish physical traits is critical for sustainable fisheries management. Fish biology knowledge influences laws on catch limits, size limitations, and fishing seasons, assisting in the prevention of overfishing and the protection of vulnerable species. Many fish species are vulnerable or endangered as a result of habitat degradation, pollution, and climate change. Understanding their physical traits is critical for developing conservation strategies and habitat restoration initiatives to protect these species and ecosystems.

We have examined the various physical properties of fish, from their streamlined bodies and protective scales to their extraordinary respiratory and circulatory systems, in this long discussion. We also investigated the various reproductive techniques used by different fish species, as well as the ecological implications of knowing these qualities. Fish, with their tremendous variety and flexibility, continue to fascinate and intrigue scientists and fans all around the globe. Their physical qualities not only demonstrate evolution's wonders, but also highlight their critical functions in aquatic ecosystems and the larger environmental context. As we confront greater problems in maintaining aquatic environments and managing fisheries sustainably, a thorough knowledge of fish physical traits is critical. We are better poised to conserve these extraordinary species and the environments they inhabit for future generations if we understand the complexity of their anatomy and physiology.

#### Water found in fish tissue

Water is required by all life systems. Body fluids carry nutrients, metabolites, and other substances, and water is the most abundant component of these fluids. Many biological molecules need it to operate normally. Only in the presence of water can proteins retain their natural shape and regular activities. The quantity of water in the meat varies greatly, while in most situations the variety is significantly smaller, ranging between 70 and 80%. Bombay duck (Harpodonnehereus), a species found abundantly along India's northwestern coast, has a relatively high water content, with muscular tissue containing over 90% water. Water may be found in the tissues in two forms: coupled to proteins and free. These shapes serve certain biological functions. Water is lost from the tissue in a variety of ways during processing, which may have an impact on the quality, particularly the texture, of the processed goods. The water content and lipid content of fish have an inverse relationship, with the total of the two percentages approaching 80 percent. The total of oil and water, on the other hand, is not always consistent and typically ranges from 78 to 85 percent[9].

#### Lipids

Lipids are a diverse and varied collection of chemicals. Lipids are defined as the proportion of any biological substance that can be extracted using low polarity solvents. As can be seen, the definition is not exact, but it is regarded to be the best way to encompass all compounds in this category. A lipid is any substance extracted using 'fat solvents' such as ethyl alcohol, ether, chloroform, hexane, petroleum ether, and so on. This category includes significant chemicals such as fatty acids, glycerides, phosphoglycerides, sphingolipids, aliphatic alcohols and waxes, steroids, and combinations of the aforementioned substances with proteins, peptides, carbohydrates, and so on. Triacylglycerol and phosphoglycerides, both of which include long chain fatty acids, are the primary components of lipids in fish tissues. Other components in smaller concentrations are also present. The variations in lipid content are substantially greater than those in protein. Fish with fat contents ranging from 0.5% to 16-18% are very frequent. Many species accumulate lipids throughout the feeding season and then deplete them during spawning. The muscle is the primary location of lipid storage in fatty fish such as oil sardine, mackerel, herring, and others. The lipid content of such fish varies greatly depending on the season and sexual development. The lipid content of oil sardine muscle (Sardinellalongiceps) is around 3-4% in June-July, increasing to approximately 18% by November-December.

Animals store energy mostly as fat. When there is surplus energy available from meals, it is stored as fat and used during times of low energy availability. This holds true for fish as well. diverse animals have diverse fat storage locations. In some situations, it is the liver, while in others, it is adipose tissue. The depot fat in the vast majority of instances is triacylglycerol.Phospholipids, another key lipid element, are critical components of cell membranes. The lipid-globular protein mosaic structure influences essential processes such as cell membrane permeability and the transit of numerous substances into and out of the cell. Phospholipids of various sorts are required for the normal functioning of the cell. Unlike depot fat, the proportions of phospholipids do not vary much. Normally, it ranges from 0.5 to 1% of tissue.

#### Lipid changes during processing/storage

During the preparation and preservation of fish, two sorts of alterations occur to the lipids: hydrolysis and oxidation. Lipid hydrolysis occurs in the release of free fatty acids, which induce protein denaturation. Denatured protein loses its unique qualities, resulting in a loss of quality, particularly texture. Lipases are primarily responsible for lipid hydrolysis in tissue, and their activity is reduced at low temperatures. Thus, lipid hydrolysis and the resulting quality degradation will be minimal in items stored at low temperatures (about -18 to - 20°C). The oxidation of lipids is a severe and difficult issue. Because of the high degree of unsaturation of the fatty acids present in fish lipids, their susceptibility to oxidation is extremely high. Contact with oxygen or other oxidizing agents will initiate oxidation, and elevated temperatures, catalysts like copper or iron, etc. will accelerate the process. A more complex situation is that the oxidation reaction will propagate itself through free radical mechanism. It is a chain reaction that is triggered by the spread of free radicals. The process is distinguished by an induction stage of sluggish oxidation, followed by an increased rate of oxygen absorption with concomitant production of hydroperoxides, which are the major products of oxidation.

The hydroperoxides decompose into diverse compounds such as aldehydes, ketones, alcohols, carboxylic acids, and so on, some of which are volatile and some of which are non-volatile. The amount and type of these breakdown products are determined by the location of the oxidized double bond and the circumstances under which the hydroperoxides are decomposed. These alterations have resulted in the rotten taste. Further oxidation of highly unsaturated fatty acids will result in the creation of polymerized compounds, making fish or oil completely undesirable. The key factors that induce oxidation include the presence of air, increased temperatures, catalysts, and so on. By avoiding these situations, you may reduce the danger of oxidation. Antioxidants are another efficient means of avoiding oxidative

damage. Antioxidants inhibit or slow the spread of free radical chain reactions, reducing the damage produced by oxidation. Tocopherols, butylatedhydroxyanisol (BHA), butylatedhydroxytoluene (BHT), propyl gallate, and other naturally occurring and manufactured antioxidants are utilized (often 0.1 to 0.2%) during the preparation of fish oils[10], [11].

#### Fish lipid fatty acid composition

Fatty acid is the primary chemical entity in the majority of lipid compounds such as glycerides, phospholipids, and wax esters. The fatty acids found in fish lipids are very complicated. Fatty acids with carbon chains ranging from 10 to 22 and unsaturation ranging from 0 to 6 double bonds are frequent. The molecules of the vast majority of fatty acids, whether saturated or unsaturated, have an even number of carbon atoms. Odd-numbered acids are present, but their quantity is negligible. Another distinguishing feature is that the double bonds in unsaturated acids with more than one double bond are separated by a methylene group and have a cis-configuration. Typically, the fraction of trans isomers is minimal. Fish lipids have a high degree of unsaturation, with 5 or 6 double bonds per molecule, which is uncommon in the lipids of other animals or plants of terrestrial origin. These characteristics distinguish fish fatty acids.

The fatty acid composition of fish lipids, like its lipid content, varies greatly. Individual fatty acid proportions may differ across species. Even within the same species, its composition might change based on conditions like as feed intake, spawning migration, and so on. The fatty acid content of commercially produced fish oils manufactured from the same species of fish frequently varies rather considerably, and there is, at times, quite substantial change in the fatty acid composition of the same species from year to year. Depot lipids have a distinct fatty acid composition than other tissue lipids. Depot lipids are usually higher in saturated acids than lipids from muscle tissue. The quantity of fatty acids found in any species' lipids is relatively considerable. In certain species, almost fifty distinct acids have been detected. However, a very limited number of acids account for around 85-90% of total fatty acids. The main saturated acids found in Indian waters include myristic, palmitic, and stearic acids. Palmitoleic and oleic acids are key constituents of the monounsaturated group, whereas arachidonic acid, eicosapentaenoic acid (EPA), and docosahexaenoic acid (DHA) are essential components of the polyunsaturated group.

#### **Enzymes from Seafood**

Enzymes are present in all biological systems and are the agents that allow chemical reactions to occur in a wide range of life forms. Fish and other marine species' enzymes are a relatively unknown category of enzymes. Fish are poikilothermal creatures, and their enzymes are cold adapted as a result. Fish and shellfish, in general, are more perishable than other dietary myosystems. The loss of prime quality in seafood is caused by autolysis or endogenous biological processes mediated by enzymes. As a result, strategies for preserving fish quality must grow from a knowledge of seafood enzymes and try to target important enzyme catalyzed processes that lead to loss of appearance, taste, texture, nutrition, and functional qualities. A variety of essential enzymes in fish and shellfish have been extracted and identified by scientists. Goldfish and shrimp possess enzymes required for the conversion of carotenes to Xanthophylls.

Astaxanthine is well-known for its immune-stimulating properties. Inosine accumulators are fish that do not produce hypoxanthine from 'inosine' in post-mortem muscle. The activity of antioxidant enzymes such as hepatic catalase, glutathione peroxidase, glutathione S transferase, and others have been discovered to differ significantly amongst fish species.

Some mollusk muscles, particularly those of tidal species, accumulate metabolites other than lactate for example, pyruvate, succinate, alanine, and octopine during anaerobic glycolysis, indicating a distinct enzyme pattern. A new cysteine protease has been found in significant amounts in the dark muscles of many fish. Other enzymes of interest to seafood technologists include phenolase in crustaceans related to browning, thiaminase in certain fish and shellfish, carnosinase in Anguillidae, and TMAO dimethylase in gadoid fish.

Many enzymes have an impact on the physical qualities of seafood. Enzymes linked in energy metabolism and the development of rigour mortis, endogenous and exogenous proteolytic enzymes, and trans glutaminases are among the most significant enzymes that might impact seafood texture. Among all enzymes, nucleotide degrading enzymes have received the most attention since they have a direct impact on the postmortem quality of seafood. As the muscle undergoes rigour mortis after death, ATP levels rapidly drop. The final eating quality of fish is determined by the enzymatic degradation of ATP and associated molecules. The conversion of ATP to ADP, ADP to AMP, and AMP to IMP occurs within 24 hours or less in postmortem muscle. These modifications are assumed to be entirely enzymatic. ATPase, AMP deaminase, 5 nucleotidase, Inosinenucleosidase, and xanthine oxidase are the enzymes involved in post mortem degradation. Another enzyme that influences fish quality is myosin ATPase, which promotes protein denaturation. In the future, inactivating myosin ATPase in fish muscle to avoid or delay denaturation may be a strategy to allow efficient usage of fish and shellfish. There is growing interest in recovering useful byproducts from fish processing wastes, such as enzymes and medicines. Byproducts of marine animal processing, such as fish guts, may serve as sources of novel enzymes.

Certain digestive proteinases from marine animals are more effective catalysts at low reaction temperatures, are more heat tolerant, and have a greater capacity to denature native protein substrates. These proteinases' comparative benefits over current commercial proteinases would make them the enzymes of choice for many food processors. Lipases are enzymes that are often employed in the pharmaceutical and food industries. They are utilized in the manufacture of fats and oils as well as the creation of pure pharmaceuticals. Many countries of the globe are doing research on fish lipases in order to utilise them as medications as well as for taste, texture, and fat alteration. Fish phospholipases are lipolytic enzymes that play an important role in a variety of physiological activities, ranging from eicosanoids production to fish degradation during frozen storage. Unfortunately, there is currently insufficient information on fish phopholipases. The biogenesis of fragrance in newly caught fish begins with the position-specific peroxidation of polyunsaturated fatty acids by lipoxygenases 12 and 15. Researchers sought to generate fish-like fragrance using lipoxygenase produced from fish. The utilization of fish and shellfish enzymes for biotechnological applications in the food and feed industries is hindered by unpredictable raw material availability and a costly manufacturing method due to the comparably low enzyme concentration. Some of these enzymes may be more economically generated in the future using recombinant DNA or gene technologies. Another technique to enzyme engineering is site guided mutagenesis, which involves making minor changes to the gene's nucleotide sequence.

#### Toxins and pollutants

Proteins are complex organic nitrogenous compounds present in the cells of all animals and plants. The name protein is derived from the Greek word protos, which means first. This demonstrates the significance of this group of molecules in the overall scheme of things in the living body. Proteins play an important role in the structure and function of biological stuff. Enzymes, which are all proteins, catalyze chemical and physical actions in living organisms.Protein is the second most abundant component in fish muscle tissues, accounting

for 16-18% of the total. If the protein level of fish is less than 15%, it is considered low. The degree of protein level variation is fairly small. Protein levels in tissues are affected by feeding patterns, spawning cycle, and other factors.

#### Protein classification

And fish muscle proteins are categorized into three classes depending on their solubility in salt solutions. Sarcoplasmic proteins are those that are soluble in salt solutions with a low ionic strength (0.15). These include myogen, globulin, and others. This fraction is made up mostly of enzymes involved in muscle metabolism and amounts for 25-30% of total proteins. Sarcoplasmic protein level is greater in pelagic fish, such as Sardinellalongiceps and Rastrelligerkanagurta, and lower in demersal species. Myofibrillar proteins are protein fractions that are soluble in solutions with a greater ionic strength (>0.5). Actin, myosin, actomyosin, tropomyosin, troponins, and other proteins that give muscle its contraction strength are contained in this fraction and account for about 65% of muscle proteins. Myofibrillar proteins are crucial in defining functional characteristics. The qualities of the mvofibrillar fraction in the muscle influence the gelling capabilities of fish flesh and the rheological properties of the gel. This is critical in surimi and surimi-based products.In teleosts, stroma proteins account for roughly 3% of total proteins and 10% in elasmobranches. These are insoluble in neutral salt solutions, dilute acids and alkalies, and concentrated acids and alkalies. Stroma proteins are found in muscular connective tissues. The low amount of stroma proteins in fish muscle accounts for its distinctive texture. Collagen, which is found in the skin, air bladder, and other tissues, is another kind of protein that is related to stroma protein.

#### CONCLUSION

Finally, the chapter on fish physical features provides an in-depth examination of the anatomical and physiological aspects that constitute this fascinating group of aquatic animals. The range of fish physical traits is absolutely astounding, from their exterior features such as streamlined bodies, scales, and fins to their internal anatomy such as skeletal systems and respiratory and circulatory adaptations. This chapter also offers light on the various reproductive tactics used by different fish species, emphasizing the distinct ways in which they assure the survival of their progeny. Understanding these physical properties is essential not just for biologists and ecologists, but also for anybody interested in nature. Fish play an important part in aquatic habitats and are economically and ecologically significant across the globe. Knowledge of fish physical traits is critical for making educated choices regarding the management and preservation of aquatic ecosystems in the larger context of biodiversity and conservation. We acquire greater insights into the delicate balance of life within our planet's water bodies as we continue to study and enjoy the astounding variety of fish, making this chapter a vital resource for scholars and lovers alike.

#### **REFERENCES:**

- [1] S. Sinthusamran and S. Benjakul, "Effect of drying and frying conditions on physical and chemical characteristics of fish maw from swim bladder of seabass (Lates calcarifer)," *J. Sci. Food Agric.*, 2015, doi: 10.1002/jsfa.7059.
- [2] A. Supriyanto, A. Baehaki, and S. Hanggita, "FishtecH-Jurnal Teknologi Hasil Perikanan Karakteristik Fisik dan Kimia Tepung Silase Limbah Ikan Gabus (Channa striata) dengan Penambahan Konsentrasi Tepung Kiambang Terfermentasi," *J. Teknol. Has. Perikan.*, 2015.

- [3] B. Sulistiyanto and K. Nugroho, "The effect of storage on physical, chemical and microbiological characteristics of fish waste acidified using fermented vegetables waste extract," *J. Indones. Trop. Anim. Agric.*, 2011, doi: 10.14710/jitaa.36.2.114-119.
- [4] I. R. Pratama, RI and dan E. Liviawaty, "Karakteristik Biskuit dengan Penambahan Tepung Tulang Ikan Jangilus (Istiophorus Sp.)," *J. Akuatika Indones.*, 2014.
- [5] F. P. Mendonça, W. E. Magnusson, and J. Zuanon, "Relationships between habitat characteristics and fish assemblages in small streams of Central Amazonia," *Copeia*, 2005, doi: 10.1643/0045-8511(2005)005[0751:RBHCAF]2.0.CO;2.
- [6] N. H. Amaeze, R. I. Egonmwan, A. F. Jolaoso, and A. A. Otitoloju, "Coastal environmental pollution and fish species diversity in Lagos lagoon, Nigeria," *Int. J. Environ.*, 2012.
- [7] A. Zulfahmi, F. Swastawati, and R. Romadhon, "Pemanfaatan Dagingikan Tenggiri (Scomberomorus Commersoni) Dengan Konsentrasi Yang Berbedapada Pembuatan Kerupuk Ikan," *J. Pengolah. dan Bioteknol. Has. Perikan.*, 2014.
- [8] M. T. da Silva, J. de O. Pereira, L. J. S. Vieira, and A. C. Petry, "Hydrological seasonality of the river affecting fish community structure of oxbow lakes: A limnological approach on the Amapá Lake, southwestern Amazon," *Limnologica*, 2013, doi: 10.1016/j.limno.2012.05.002.
- [9] P. Munk, T. G. Nielsen, and B. W. Hansen, "Horizontal and vertical dynamics of zooplankton and larval fish communities during mid-summer in Disko Bay, West Greenland," J. Plankton Res., 2014, doi: 10.1093/plankt/fbv034.
- [10] S. R. Thorrold, C. M. Jones, S. E. Campana, J. W. McLaren, and J. W. H. Lam, "Trace element signatures in otoliths record natal river of juvenile American shad (Alosa sapidissima)," *Limnol. Oceanogr.*, 1998, doi: 10.4319/lo.1998.43.8.1826.
- [11] B. A. Barton, "Stress in fishes: A diversity of responses with particular reference to changes in circulating corticosteroids," in *Integrative and Comparative Biology*, 2002. doi: 10.1093/icb/42.3.517.

#### CHAPTER 2 FISH LIFE : EXPLORING THE BIOLOGICAL CHARACTERISTICS OF FISH

Praveen Kumar Singh, Assistant Professor College Of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India

Email Id- dr.pksnd@gmail.com

#### **ABSTRACT:**

Fish has been consumed since antiquity. It is a profitable nutritionally dense, low-cost source of animal protein. Due to the rapid degradation of its quality, a major amount of the fish catch is either abandoned or sold at a poor price. Fish is a perishable food product because its quality begins to deteriorate shortly after death. The main quality aspects of fish meat include food safety, organoleptic characteristics, nutritional quality and aptitude to industrial transformation, and acceptance of fish as food. Fresh fish sensory examination was based on overall appearance, muscular rigidity, consistency of belly cavity, colour and shape of eyes, colour, odour, and mucus of gills, colour and adhesion to vertebral column, and integrity and brightness of peritoneum. 'Hyperaemia' refers to the discharge of a huge quantity of slime to the body surface after the death of a fish. Fish are very important economically, culturally, and environmentally. They have an impact on ecosystems, offer crucial nourishment, contribute to global economies, and are critical in aquaculture and conservation. Understanding fish biology is critical for sustainable fisheries management, conservation initiatives, and aquatic ecosystem preservation. This investigation delves into the mysterious world of fish, a monument to evolution's ingenuity and a source of fascination for scientists and fans alike.

#### **KEYWORDS:**

Aquatic Ecosystem, Biological Traits, Fish Biology, Growth Rates, Management.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Fish are one of the most varied and prolific vertebrate groups on the planet, with an estimated 34,000 species living in a variety of aquatic settings ranging from deep ocean depths to high mountain streams. For millennia, these amazing animals have grabbed human curiosity, acting as a critical source of nourishment, an object of scientific research, and a cultural emblem. We go on a trip to unravel the complicated fabric of fish biology, behaviour, and ecological responsibilities in this thorough analysis of fish biological traits. Fish have developed an incredible diversity of anatomical, physiological, and behavioural features that make them a fascinating topic of study for scientists, naturalists, and anybody interested in the secrets of aquatic life. Before getting into the intriguing realm of fish biology, it's important to understand how diverse this group is. Fish are identified as a paraphyletic group not by common features, but by their exclusion from other vertebrate groups such as amphibians, reptiles, birds, and mammals. As a result, fish variety is astounding, both in terms of species richness and morphological variance[1], [2].

Sharks, rays, and skates are members of this category. The existence of a cartilaginous skeleton, which is lighter and more flexible than bone, distinguishes them. Over millions of years, cartilaginous fish have evolved to fill niches in the marine food chain, with sharks serving as archetypal apex predators. They have a bony skeleton that serves as structural

support and protection for internal organs. This group is very varied, with species ranging from small, colourful reef fish to large ocean-dwelling giants such as tuna and marlin. There are various orders, families, and genera within these broad groupings, each with its own set of biological traits. Fish adaptations to their habitats demonstrate the force of evolution, which has shaped them into an amazingly varied and successful collection of species. Fish have colonized almost every sort of aquatic environment on the planet, adjusting to a broad variety of temperatures, salinities, depths, and current intensities. Their biological traits, which are frequently carefully adapted to their specialized ecological niches, demonstrate their adaptability. Fish have an incredible variety of environmental preferences. Some species are pelagic, meaning they live in the open ocean and travel long distances in search of food or ideal mating sites. Others are benthic, meaning they live at the bottom of bodies of water and forage for food among the sediments or structures. Demersal species, on the other hand, dwell near the bottom but are not always in direct touch with it. Freshwater fish live in rivers and lakes, while saltwater fish live in oceans and seas. Furthermore, estuary habitats, where freshwater and saltwater mingle, are home to a diverse array of fish species that are adaptable to changing salinities[3], [4].

Fish live in a broad variety of temperature zones, from the icy waters of the poles to the searing heat of tropical oceans. Their metabolic rates, enzyme activity, and thermal tolerance all change with temperature, enabling them to flourish in their specific environments. Fish have various salinity tolerances. Some are stenohaline, meaning they can only withstand restricted salinity ranges, whilst others are euryhaline, indicating they can survive in situations with a broad range of salt concentrations. Estuaries, whose salinity may change rapidly, are frequent habitats for euryhaline organisms. Fish migrate for a variety of reasons, including seasonal changes, breeding demands, and the quest for adequate food sites. Some fish species go on epic trips that take them hundreds of km to their destinations. For example, salmon move from their oceanic feeding areas to their natal freshwater streams to breed, completing a life cycle that includes both marine and freshwater settings.

Fish biological features include a variety of reproduction techniques that are precisely adapted to their distinct environments and ecological nichesExternal fertilization occurs when females release eggs and men discharge sperm into the sea. Fertilization takes place in open water, generally near the surface. This is a frequent tactic among marine fish such as cod, herring, and many tropical reef fish. It increases the likelihood of fertilization while exposing eggs and larvae to predation and environmental variations.Some fish species, on the other hand, have developed internal fertilization, in which sperm is delivered directly to the female's body. This technique is often connected with creatures that care for and protect their young. Internal fertilization may improve offspring survival by decreasing exposure to external dangers.Fish display a variety of parental care behaviours, ranging from none at all to complex caring. Parental care might include protecting and fanning the eggs, transferring them in the mouth, or even feeding growing embryos. Male seahorses carrying developing embryos in a specialized pouch, for example, are well-known.Fish reproductive techniques vary due to the complex interaction of biological traits, ecological restrictions, and evolutionary history[5], [6].

Fish have a surprising range of eating behaviours, which are often related to their ecological functions and the availability of food supplies in their environments.Predatory fish are carnivores that eat other creatures. To catch, subdue, and eat prey, they have developed an array of characteristics like as sharp fangs, strong jaws, and acute senses. Sharks, barracuda, and pike are examples of carnivorous fish.Plant material and algae are consumed by herbivorous fish. Their biological properties have been developed to easily absorb and digest

plant stuff, which may be difficult to digest owing to its fibrous texture. Herbivorous fish are important in regulating algal development on coral reefs and in other aquatic environments. Many fish species are omnivorous, which means they eat both animal and plant material. Their eating habits are typically opportunistic and rely on the availability of food supplies in their environments. Some fish species are filter feeders, meaning they use specialized mechanisms to strain minute particles from the water, such as plankton or detritus. Filter-feeding fish are often found in areas with a high concentration of suspended particles, such as estuaries and freshwater rivers. A subgroup of fish species are parasites, feeding on other creatures as hosts. These parasites have unique adaptations for adhering to or invading their hosts, and their life cycles are sometimes complicated, involving many host species. Fish behaviour is as varied as their physical qualities and surroundings, covering a remarkable variety of adaptations and ecological roles. Schooling behaviour is a frequent strategy across many fish species, giving benefits such as predator protection, increased feeding efficiency, and better navigation. Fish in a school line themselves with their fellows, swimming in synchronized patterns. Some fish species protect particular territories against invaders by displaying territorial behaviour[5], [7].

Territoriality is often linked to breeding and nesting places. During the mating season, male stickleback fish, for example, build and ferociously defend nests. Migration is a spectacular and often difficult trip made by many fish species. It provides a variety of functions, including as locating ideal breeding places, avoiding unfavourable climatic circumstances, and gaining access to copious food supplies. The yearly migrations of salmon, eels, and herring are spectacular instances of such long-distance travels. Fish interact with one another via a number of methods. Visual cues, including as body colour and fin displays, are typical modes of communication. Some fish produce sounds as well, employing specialized structures or behaviours to generate auditory signals. Furthermore, chemical signals are important in olfactory communication because they enable fish to detect pheromones and other chemical cues in their surroundings. Fish behaviour is inextricably linked to their biological traits and ecological responsibilities, impacting interactions with other species as well as the dynamics of aquatic ecosystems.

Fish have a diverse set of life history tactics, including differences in lifespan, growth rates, and maturity age. Factors like as habitat stability, predation pressure, and resource availability all have an impact on these methods.Some fish species have been known to survive for decades or even centuries. The Greenland shark, for example, may live for more than 500 years, making it one of the world's longest-living animals. Many smaller fish species, on the other hand, have substantially shorter lifespans, estimated in months or a few years.Growth rates in fish may vary greatly, with certain species exhibiting fast development throughout key life stages. Temperature, food availability, and resource competition all have an impact on growth rates.The age at which fish attain sexual maturity varies greatly across species. certain fish, such as salmon, develop very fast, but others, such as certain deep-sea fish, may not reach maturity for many decades.Life history strategy variety among fish species shows their adaptability to varied ecological niches and the selection forces they undergo throughout their lives.

To prosper in their watery surroundings, fish have developed a variety of physiological adaptations. These adaptations include a wide range of biological functions, including breathing, buoyancy control, osmoregulation, and sensory perception. Fish have unique respiratory organs known as gills that allow them to obtain oxygen from water. The countercurrent exchange system improves the effectiveness of this process by allowing fish to collect oxygen from water while minimizing oxygen loss from their blood. Some organisms

have evolved to thrive in low-oxygen conditions such as mangrove swamps and deep marine habitats. Fish have an amazing adaption known as the swim bladder or gas bladder that enables them to regulate their buoyancy in water. Fish may rise or descend the water column by altering the level of gas in this bladder without using excessive energy. This adaptability is critical for keeping their location at various depths and currents. To adapt to varying salinities, fish must adjust the balance of salts and water in their systems. Freshwater fish must take in water while excreting surplus salts, while marine fish must save water while excreting excess salts. Fish establish osmotic equilibrium in their distinct surroundings because to specialized ion transport systems in their gills and kidneys. To traverse their watery surroundings and identify food or predators, fish have developed a remarkable variety of sensory adaptations. Their eyesight, hearing, smell, taste, and touch senses are often highly developed. Some fish have unique adaptations, such as electroreception or the lateral line system, which enable them to perceive water movement and vibrations.

Fish have enormous economic, cultural, and ecological value. They are vital to aquatic ecosystems and human cultures all around the world. Fish are keystone species in many aquatic ecosystems, impacting the quantity and distribution of other species by predation and competition. Their eating patterns and behaviours have the potential to have a domino impact on food webs and nutrient cycling. Fish is an important source of protein and necessary elements for billions of people throughout the globe. They are a common staple in many cultures and areas, helping to ensure global food security. The commercial and recreational fishing sectors both contribute significantly to the world economy. Millions of people rely on fish and fisheries for a living, from fisherman and fish growers to processors and wholesalers. Aquaculture, often known as fish farming, has grown in importance in providing the rising demand for seafood. It is a sustainable alternative to wild-caught fish and helps to increase global food supply. Conservation and management of fish populations are becoming more important as human demands on aquatic environments rise. Understanding fish biology is critical for developing successful conservation strategies and fisheries management methods[8].

#### DISCUSSION

Fish biological traits include a vast variety of qualities that describe their biology, behaviour, and life cycle. These features are critical for understanding fish species diversity and ecological functions. We shall go into numerous biological features of fish in this topic. Fish are a varied and large group of animals. They are divided into numerous taxonomic classes, with the two most important being:

#### Cartilaginous Fish (Chondrichthyes)

Sharks, rays, and skates are members of this category, which is distinguished by a cartilaginous skeleton.

#### Bony Fish (Osteichthyes)

This category contains the vast majority of fish species, including well-known species such as salmon, trout, bass, and cod. Bony fish have a bone-based skeleton. There are hundreds of species within each of these categories, each with its own set of biological traits. Fish live in a variety of aquatic habitats, including freshwater rivers and lakes, salty seas, and brackish estuaries. Their biological traits are often well suited to their respective habitats. Different fish species favour different habitats, with some being pelagic dwelling in open water, benthic living at the bottom, or demersal living on the seabed. Temperature tolerance varies across fish species, resulting in adaptations for cold-water, temperate, or tropical

settings.Some species can flourish in freshwater, while others are euryhaline and can survive in a broad variety of salinities.Many fish species migrate seasonally or across great distances for breeding, eating, or avoiding harmful circumstances.External fertilization happens when certain fish discharge eggs and sperm into the sea. This is frequent in salmon, trout, and the majority of marine fish.Parental care differs across species. Some fish do not give care after fertilization, whereas others do, such as mouthbrooding, in which parents protect and nourish their young within their mouths.

#### **Feeding Patterns**

Fish have a variety of eating patterns that are generally related to their ecological roles:

#### Carnivores

Predatory fish that eat other creatures. To identify prey, they have unique adaptations like as sharp fangs and strong senses.

#### Herbivores

Plant material and algae are consumed by herbivorous fish. Their digestive tracts are designed to break down plant stuff and extract nutrition. Many fish species are omnivorous, digesting both animal and plant material. They are often opportunistic feeders.

#### Behaviour

Fish exhibit a variety of behaviours:

Many fish species form schools for predator protection, efficient feeding, and social interactions.

#### **Territoriality**

Some fish are territorial, defending particular locations where they spawn or eat.

#### Migratory Behaviour

Fish migrate seasonally to breed, feed, or escape unfavourable circumstances. Fish interact in a variety of ways, including visual displays, noises, and chemical messages.

#### **Personal History**

Fish have a wide range of life histories, including differences in lifespan, growth rates, and maturation age. Some fish species develop quickly and have limited lifespans, whilst others grow slowly and may live for decades or even centuries.

#### **Physiological Changes**

Many physiological adaptations to their watery habitats have developed in fish. Fish take oxygen from water through their gills, with certain species having unique adaptations for low-oxygen situations. The swim bladder, also known as the gas bladder, assists fish in maintaining buoyancy at various depths in the water column. Osmoregulation is the process by which fish control their internal salt and water balance in order to adapt to changing salinity levels. Fish are important predators and prey in ecosystems. They provide a crucial food supply for many human populations and greatly contribute to the world economy via fisheries and aquaculture. Understanding fish biology is critical for conservation efforts, sustainable fisheries management, and preserving the health and balance of aquatic

ecosystems. It enables scientists and politicians to make educated choices about how to conserve these important and varied aquatic creatures[9], [10].

#### CONCLUSION

The world of fish is enthralling and diversified, brimming with a remarkable diversity of biological traits that have developed over millions of years. Fish display a magnificent tapestry of features that indicate their adaptability to aquatic life, from their different habitat preferences to their reproductive tactics, eating habits, behaviours, and physiological adaptations.Understanding the biological properties of fish is both a scientific and a practical endeavour. It is critical for species conservation, sustainable fisheries management, and the preservation of aquatic ecosystems that give significant resources and services to humans.We will travel through the depths of the oceans, the flow of freshwater rivers, and the diversity of aquatic life in this exploration of the biological characteristics of fish, uncovering the wonders of this remarkable group of organisms that have shaped ecosystems, nourished civilizations, and inspired generations of scientists and naturalists.

The summary of the debate on fish biological features captures the great variety and complexities of these aquatic creatures. Fish are a complex tapestry of biology, behaviour, and ecological functions, with around 34,000 species filling a broad variety of aquatic environments. Fish biology includes taxonomy, habitat preferences, temperature and salinity tolerances, reproductive tactics, eating habits, and a wide range of behaviours. They've evolved to a wide range of settings, from the open ocean to freshwater streams, presenting a spectacular diversity of characteristics appropriate to their biological niches. Fish reproductive techniques range from open-water external fertilization to internal fertilization with parental care. Their eating habits, which are influenced by ecological functions and habitat resources, include carnivory, herbivory, omnivory, and filter feeding. Schooling, territoriality, migration, and communication through visual, auditory, and chemical cues are among sophisticated behaviours shown by fish. Their life histories differ in terms of duration, growth rates, and maturity age. Fish have acquired extraordinary physiological adaptations for breathing, buoyancy control, osmoregulation, and sensory perception, which aid in their survival in aquatic conditions.

#### **REFERENCES:**

- G. Yoshizaki, T. Okutsu, T. Morita, M. Terasawa, R. Yazawa, and Y. Takeuchi, "Biological characteristics of fish germ cells and their application to developmental biotechnology," *Reprod. Domest. Anim.*, 2012, doi: 10.1111/j.1439-0531.2012.02074.x.
- [2] L. Järv, J. Kotta, and M. Simm, "Relationship between biological characteristics of fish and their contamination with trace metals: a case study of perch Perca fluviatilis L. in the Baltic Sea," *Proc. Est. Acad. Sci.*, 2013, doi: 10.3176/proc.2013.3.05.
- [3] D. Nugroho, M. P. Patria, J. Supriatna, and L. Adrianto, "Biological characteristics on three demersal fish landed in Tegal, north coast of Central Java, Indonesia," *Biodiversitas*, 2016, doi: 10.13057/biodiv/d170242.
- [4] S. Kumar and S. Godara, "Effect of organic manure on the hydro-biological characteristics of fish pond," *IIOAB J.*, 2016.
- [5] H. do A. Kehrig, B. M. Howard, and O. Malm, "Methylmercury in a predatory fish (Cichla spp.) inhabiting the Brazilian Amazon," *Environ. Pollut.*, 2008, doi: 10.1016/j.envpol.2007.12.038.

- [6] D. Dimarchopoulou, K. I. Stergiou, and A. C. Tsikliras, "Gap analysis on the biology of Mediterranean marine fishes," *PLoS One*, 2017, doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0175949.
- [7] J. W. Choi, C. S. Park, and K. G. An, "Development of fishway assessment model based on the fishway structure, hydrology and biological characteristics in lotic ecosystem," *J. Ecol. Environ.*, 2016, doi: 10.5141/ecoenv.2016.008.
- [8] Z. A. Ratan, S. Bin Zaman, V. Mehta, M. F. Haidere, N. J. Runa, and N. Akter, "Application of Fluorescence In Situ Hybridization (FISH) Technique for the Detection of Genetic Aberration in Medical Science," *Cureus*, 2017, doi: 10.7759/cureus.1325.
- [9] P. A. Tedesco *et al.*, "Data Descriptor: A global database on freshwater fish species occurrence in drainage basins," *Sci. Data*, 2017, doi: 10.1038/sdata.2017.141.
- [10] D. Terziyski, R. Kalchev, K. Dochin, I. Piskov, H. Kalcheva, and L. Pehlivanov, "Variability of biological characteristics and their relations to environmental variables in fish ponds stocked with carp fish larvae in two different proportions," *Bulg. J. Agric. Sci.*, 2010.

#### CHAPTER 3 POST MORTEM CHANGES IN FISH AND SAFETY HAZARDS

Sunil Kumar, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-<u>sunilagro.chaud hary@gmail.com</u>

#### **ABSTRACT:**

Fish has been consumed since antiquity. It is a profitable nutritionally dense, low-cost source of animal protein. Due to the rapid degradation of its quality, a major amount of the fish catch is either abandoned or sold at a poor price. Fish is a perishable food product because its quality begins to deteriorate shortly after death. The main quality aspects of fish meat include food safety, organoleptic characteristics, nutritional quality and aptitude to industrial transformation, and acceptance of fish as food. Fresh fish sensory examination was based on overall appearance, muscular rigidity, consistency of belly cavity, colour and shape of eyes, colour, odour, and mucus of gills, colour and adhesion to vertebral column, and integrity and brightness of peritoneum. 'Hyperaemia' refers to the discharge of a huge quantity of slime to the body surface after the death of a fish.

#### **KEYWORDS:**

Bacteria, Fish, Lactic Acids, Protein, Rigor Mortis.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Sensory changes are things that you can notice with your senses, like how something looks, smells, feels, or tastes. The first changes that happen to fish when it is stored relate to how it looks and feels. The unique flavor of the species usually develops within the first few days when kept in ice. The biggest and most noticeable change is when the body becomes stiff after death. Right after someone dies, their muscles become completely relaxed and have a soft, stretchy feel that usually lasts for a few hours. After that, the muscles will start to contract again. When the body becomes hard and stiff, it cannot move easily. This happens after death, and usually lasts for a day or more before the stiffness goes away. Rigor mortis resolution is when the muscle relaxes and becomes soft again, but not as flexible as before rigor mortis. The speed at which rigor mortis begins and ends differs from one type of animal to another and can be influenced by factors such as temperature, how the animal is handled, its size, and its physical health. Different temperatures affect rigor in different ways. For cod, when it's hot, it quickly becomes stiff and rigid after death. You should avoid this because strong tension can cause the connective tissue to weaken and the fillet to tear[1], [2].

Scientists have generally believed that rigor mortis begins and ends more quickly when it's hot, but studies, particularly on tropical fish, have actually shown the opposite effect where rigor mortis starts earlier in colder temperatures. It is clear that in these types of organisms, the stiffening process happens faster at 0°C than at 10°C. This matches with an increase in chemical changes at 0°C. But reserchershave discovered that the reason why rigor mortis starts in carp (Cyprinuscarpio) is because of the difference between the temperature of the sea and the temperature of where it is stored. When there is a big difference, the time from when a person dies to when rigor mortis starts is brief. And the opposite is true as well. Rigor mortis begins right away or soon after death if the fish is hungry and has used up its energy reserves, or if the fish is under a lot of stress. The way fish are stunned and killed also affects how quickly rigor mortis sets in. The fish dies quickly when exposed to freezing cold water, which causes hypothermia. It also dies when hit on the head, but this method takes up to 18

hours to take effect. When a dead fish is stiff before or during filleting, its importance in technology is very significant. When the fish is stiff, it will be difficult to remove the skin and bones, resulting in less meat to eat. If the fish is not handled carefully, it may have large openings in its flesh.

If the meat is taken off the bone before it becomes stiff, the muscle will be able to move easily and the meat will shrink when it becomes stiff. Dark muscle can become up to 52% smaller, while white muscle can become up to 15% smaller than their original length. If the fish is cooked before it becomes stiff, it will have a very soft and mushy texture. On the other hand, the fish texture is firm but not dry when it is cooked firmly. After the meat has been cooled down, it will become firm, juicy, and stretchy. If you want to have good quality fish from frozen ones, it's important to thaw them slowly at a low temperature. This way, the fish's muscles can relax properly even though they are still frozen. We evaluate how raw fish looks, feels, and smells at markets and where fish are caught. The characteristics that fish can sense. Most scoring systems use changes that happen when ice melts during storage. We need to remember that the way we store things affects how they change. Fish that is stored without ice looks the same as fish stored with ice. However, the fish that is not iced spoils faster and we will need to taste it to see if it is good for cooking. Knowing the time and temperature history of the fish when it was caught is very important when it is brought to shore[3], [4].

The way fish senses change after it dies varies a lot depending on the type of fish and how it's stored. The EEC has given a basic explanation in the guidelines for assessing the quality of fish. The scale goes from 0 to 3, with 3 being the highest quality suggestion. The West European Fish Technologists' Association created a list of different smells and tastes in multiple languages. It can be helpful in finding words to describe how fresh fish is when evaluating it using our senses. Changes in how good food tastes when you eat itIf we need to check the quality of chilled fish while it is being stored, we can taste the cooked fish to see if it is good. Some qualities of cooked fish and shellfish. The way fish get worse when they're kept in ice can be split into four different stages.

Phase 1: The fish is really fresh and has a yummy, seaweed-like and gentle flavor. The flavor may have a faint metallic hint. The sweet taste of cod, haddock, whiting, and flounder is at its best 2-3 days after they are caught.

Phase 2: The smell and taste are not the same anymore. The meat tastes average but doesn't have any weird tastes. The feel is still nice.

Phase 3:If a fish is spoiled, it will start to have signs of going bad. The exact smell and substances produced will depend on the type of fish and how it spoils (with or without air). These substances are not pleasant to smell. One of the unstable substances is called trimethylamine (TMA). It comes from bacteria changing trimethyl-aminoxide (TMAO). TMA has a strong and distinct smell that is similar to fish. In the beginning, the fish may taste a little sour, fruity, and slightly bitter. This is more common in fatty fish. In the later stages, the smells become sickly sweet like cabbage, ammonia-like, sulfur-like, and rotten. The texture can either become smooth and liquid-like or hard and not moist[5], [6].

Phase 4: The fish is described as bad and rotten. Autolysis is when something digests itself. People have known for a long time that fish can spoil in two ways: because of bacteria or because of enzymes. Researchers discovered that in cod and yellowtail tuna, changes in enzymes that indicated the freshness of the fish happened before and were not connected to changes in the quality of the microorganisms present. In certain types of animals, the spoilage of cold fish is mostly caused by changes in enzymes that happen before it gets spoiled. In some cases, autolysis adds to the loss of quality along with the actions of microbes. When

someone is about to die, their muscles stop getting oxygen because the heart stops pumping blood. In fish, their blood gets oxygen from their gills, but this doesn't happen when they are dead. Because there is no oxygen for breathing, the body can't make much energy from food. How muscle energy is usually created in most types of bony fish. Glycogen or fat is broken down by the body's enzymes in a series of reactions. This process creates carbon dioxide, water, and a useful compound called adenosine triphosphate (ATP) that provides energy. This kind of breathing happens in two parts: one part without oxygen and one part with oxygen. The second thing relies on having oxygen (O2) constantly, and the only way to get oxygen is through the circulatory system. Many kinds of crustaceans can breathe oxygen from the air for short periods when they are not in water[7], [8].

#### DISCUSSION

Under conditions where there is no oxygen, ATP can be made using two other pathways. These pathways use creatine phosphate or arginine phosphate to make ATP. The first type of energy comes from the muscles of animals with backbones like fish. The second type of energy is found in some animals without backbones like squid and octopuses. In both situations, when the creatine or arginine phosphates run out, the production of ATP stops. It is important to mention that octopine is produced when cephalopods break down food without oxygen. Octopine is not acidic, unlike lactate. This means that any changes in pH after death in these animals are not caused by the production of lactic acid from glycogen. For most types of fish, glycolysis is the only way they can produce energy once their heart stops beating. This less effective process produces mostly lactic and pyruvic acids as its final products. Furthermore, ATP is made during glycolysis, but only 2 units for every unit of glucose that is used. In contrast, when the end products of glycolysis are oxidized aerobically in the mitochondrion in a living animal, 36 units of ATP are produced for every unit of glucose used. So, when a muscle doesn't have oxygen after death, it can't keep its normal amount of ATP. When the amount of ATP in the muscle decreases from 7-10  $\mu$ moles/g to £ 1. 0 µmoles/g of tissue, the muscle enters rigor mortis. After death, the process of glycolysis continues in the muscles, causing lactic acid to build up[9], [10].

This accumulation of lactic acid then reduces the acidity level of the muscle. In cod, the level of acidity decreases from 6. 8 to a final level of 6. 1-65Some types of fish have lower levels of acidity at the end: big mackerel have a pH of 5.8 to 60, and tuna and halibut have a pH of 5. 4 to 5.6. However, these low acidity levels are not common in fish that live in saltwater. The pH levels are usually not as low as those seen in dead mammal muscle. For instance, the pH levels of beef muscle often go down to 5. The more carbohydrate stored in living tissue, the more lactic acid is produced. Normally, fish have less glycogen in their muscles compared to mammals. This means that when they die, they produce less lactic acid. Additionally, the health and amount of strain placed on the fish before it dies can greatly impact the levels of stored glycogen and therefore the final pH after death. Normally, fish that are rested and fed well have more glycogen than fish that are tired. A recent study on Japanese loach fish found that even a short period of stress before being captured caused a decrease in pH levels. The stressed fish had a decrease of 0. 50 pH units in 3 hours, while non-stressed fish only had a decrease of 0. 10 units in the same time. Also, the authors found that taking out the blood from fish decreased the amount of lactic acid produced after death.When a fish dies, the acidity of its muscle changes and this affects how the muscle feels and acts. As the pH gets lower, the proteins in the muscle lose some of their ability to hold water and become partially damaged. When muscle tissue is in the state of rigor mortis, it loses its moisture when cooked. This makes it not good for any more cooking that involves heat because the heat makes it lose even more water. Losing water is bad for the texture of fish muscle. When the pH of the fish muscle is lower, it becomes tougher and loses more water when cooked[11], [12].

As said before, rigor mortis happens when the amount of ATP in the muscles decreases to a low level. ATP is an important energy source for muscle movement in animals. It also helps muscles become more flexible and adaptable. Muscle contraction is controlled by a substance called calcium and an enzyme called ATP-ase. This enzyme is present in all muscle cells. When there is a low amount of calcium in the cells, a specific enzyme called ATP-ase is activated. This enzyme reduces the amount of available ATP in the muscles, which leads to the interaction between two important proteins called actin and myosin. This eventually causes the muscle to become shorter, making it feel stiff and unable to stretch. When a fish is dead, it goes through a process called rigor mortis where its body becomes stiff and can't be easily handled or prepared for cooking. The fish's body also becomes twisted, making it even more difficult to use machines to handle it. The process of rigor resolution is not fully understood yet, but it always leads to the muscles becoming softer and more relaxed. This process is believed to be related to the activation of certain enzymes in the muscles that help break down certain parts of rigor mortis. The muscles become soft during the process of rigor resolution, which happens at the same time as autolytic changes. One of the first changes noticed after death is the breakdown of ATP-related substances in a somewhat expected way.

The breakdown of ATP byproducts happens similarly in most fish, but the speed of each step in the process can differ between species. This speed often corresponds with how spoiled the fish appears to trained analysts. Saito and his colleagues In 1959, some people were the first to notice a pattern in how fish becomes less fresh over time. They also created a way to measure fish freshness using this pattern. The K or freshness index shows how fresh something is based on the changes that happen after it has died. So, if the K value is higher, then the freshness level is lower. Unfortunately, some types of fish like Atlantic cod reach their maximum freshness value before their shelf life, as determined by experts. Therefore, the freshness index called K is not reliable for all kinds of fish in the ocean. Additionally, the breakdown of nucleotide catabolites only happens when there are noticeable changes in freshness, but it may not be the actual cause of the loss of freshness. Only Hx is believed to directly affect the taste of bitterness in spoiled fish. Many people agree that IMP is the reason why high-quality seafood has a delicious, fresh fish taste. None of the substances that are broken down from nucleotides are thought to be connected to the observed changes in texture during autolysis, except for ATP. The loss of ATP is linked to rigor mortis. Many enzymes that break down proteins have been found in fish muscle. These enzymes often cause the tissue to become very soft. One of the most well-known examples of autolytic proteolysis is when pelagic species, like herring and capelin, experience their bellies bursting. This kind of tissue getting softer happens mostly during the summer months when fish are eating a lot, especially a type of food called red feed which is made up of small sea creatures called copepods and euphausiids. The breakdown of proteins creates small compounds and individual building blocks called amino acids. These substances make pelagic fish less appealing for sale, and when capelin fish are stored in large quantities, this breakdown process promotes the growth of bacteria that cause spoiling by giving them a better place to thrive. When capelin fish spoil, bacteria break them down and change the amino acids in the fish. This creates harmful substances called biogenic amines, which reduce the nutritional value of the fish. This is very important because when fish break down and bacteria start to grow, it reduces the value of the fish used to make fishmeal.

The researchers found that herring stored in bulk for fishmeal contains certain substances that break down proteins. They also discovered that adding potato extracts can slow down the

breakdown of proteins, reduce the growth of bacteria, and keep the nutritional value of the meal intact. Recently, a group of researchers called Botta and his colleagues conducted a study. In 1992, it was discovered that the bursting of herring bellies was more influenced by how the fish was handled rather than factors like its size, the amount of red feed in its gut, or the roe content. This study found that freezing and thawing, as well as the amount of time herring spent thawing at 15°C and being stored in ice, had a bigger impact on the fish's belly-bursting than biological factors did.Cathepsins are enzymes in our bodies that help break down proteins.Many enzymes that break down proteins have been found in fish tissues, but the cathepsins are the ones that have been talked about the most. The cathepsins are enzymes that break down proteins in our body. They are usually found in small organelles called lysozomes. These organelles are very tiny and cannot be seen without a microscope. In the human body, lysozomal proteases are thought to break down proteins when there is an injury. So basically, cathepsins are normally not active in living tissue, but they are released into the cell juices when there is physical abuse or when post mortem muscle is frozen and then thawed.

Cathepsins D and L are thought to be important in breaking down fish tissue. Other cathepsins have a narrow pH range that is too low to matter physiologically. Reddi and others In 1972, a study showed that an enzyme thought to be cathepsin D from winter flounder could work at a wide range of acidities (pH 3-8) but worked best at around pH 4. 0 However, the researchers didn't try to confirm if the enzyme was actually cathepsin D using artificial substances or specific blockers. However, when ATP was present, the enzyme was not very effective. This means that the enzyme would only work in fish muscle after it is dead. Furthermore, the salt prevented the enzyme from working well. In fact, there was almost no enzyme activity left after being exposed to 5% sodium chloride for 25 hours. So it is not likely that Reddi's enzyme was working in salted fish products.

Cathepsin L is believed to be involved in making salmon muscle softer when they migrate to spawn. This enzyme is probably more responsible for breaking down fish muscle than cathepsin D because it works better in neutral pH and can break down both muscle proteins and connective tissue. Good proof showing that cathepsin L is the main cause of salmon becoming soft during spawning, rather than other cathepsins. They showed that when they used a special substance called cathepsin L on muscle fibers, and then separated and analyzed the proteins, the patterns they saw were very similar to the patterns seen in proteins taken from fish that were reproducing. In addition, the cathepsin L self-digesting activity matched well with the muscle's texture as measured with instruments. The relationship between cathepsin L activity and muscle strength was really good. For fresh tissue, the correlation was 0. 86, and for frozen/thawed tissue, it was -0. 95 It is interesting to note that, in all situations, the ability for cells to break down themselves, as measured by cathepsin L activity, was greater in tissue that had been frozen and then thawed compared to tissue that was fresh. When something is frozen and then thawed, it can cause cell membranes to break. This allows enzymes inside the cells to interact with their normal targets. The authors Yamashita and Konogaya studied the enzyme and its natural inhibitor. Cathepsin L is linked to the creation of a jelly-like texture in flounder and the inability to control the softening of Pacific hake muscles when they are infected with Myxosporidia.

Until now, all of the changes that happen after death have been happening inside the muscle cell itself. However, the meat of bony fish is separated into blocks of muscle cells called "flakes" by connective tissue called myocommata. Every muscle cell has tissue around it that connects to the myocommata at the ends of the cells using thin collagen fibers. During cold storage, these fibers break down. Recently, a study found that the texture of chilled trout

muscle became softer when a specific type of collagen called type V was dissolved. This is likely because of certain enzymes called autolytic collagenase. These enzymes are believed to be the ones that cause the "gaping" or breakdown of the myotome when it is stored on ice for a long time or at a high temperature for a short time. For Atlantic cod, when the temperature reaches 17°C, their mouths naturally open wide. This probably happens because their connective tissue breaks down and their muscles shorten quickly due to the high temperature. Chilled prawns go bad quickly because their tissue becomes soft. This happens because of collagenase enzymes that are in the prawns. Scientists believe that the prawn's digestive organ, called the hepatopancreas, is where the collagenase enzymes come from.Changes that occur in a substance while it is being stored in a frozen state.TMAO, a compound that helps fish regulate their body fluids, is usually broken down by bacteria. However, some fish have an enzyme in their muscle tissue that can break down TMAO into DMA and FA.In simple words, the chemical equation is: Methylamine reacts with formaldehyde to form trimethylamine and water. It is important to know that there is a lot more formaldehyde produced compared to the dimethylamine, and the formaldehyde has more importance in business. Formaldehyde makes the muscle stronger and causes it to lose its ability to hold water.

The enzyme that makes things tough when exposed to formaldehyde is called TMAO-ase or TMAO demethylase. It is usually found in gadoid fishes, like cod. Many of the enzymes that break down TMAO are usually found attached to cell membranes. They work best when the membranes are damaged by freezing or by adding detergent. Dark (red) muscle is more active than white muscle. Other organs like the kidney, spleen, and gall bladder have a lot of the enzyme. So, if we want to avoid the fish getting tough when it's frozen, it's really important that there are no organ tissues like kidneys from gadoid species in the minced fish. Sometimes, it is hard to make sure that the kidney is taken out before the process of removing the bones mechanically because the kidney is attached to the entire spine. The TMAO-ase enzyme was taken out from hake muscle and kidney tissue. It was found in the microsomal fraction in hake muscle and in the lysosomal membrane in kidney tissue. Research has found that when hake muscle is frozen, it becomes tougher. This is because more formaldehyde is produced in the muscle. The production of formaldehyde is highest when the frozen hake is stored at high temperatures. Moreover, research has proven that the toughness of FA is increased when the catch is physically mistreated before freezing and when there are changes in temperature during frozen storage. The easiest way to stop the production of FA in fish is to store it at temperatures below  $-30^{\circ}$ C. This will help keep the temperature steady in the cold storage and prevent any rough handling or pressure on the fish before freezing. The changes that happen in fresh and frozen fish that affect how good they taste. In simple terms, the main thing that affects autolysis is when the muscle cells are physically damaged.

Bacteria on fish in not-too-hot or not-too-cold water will start multiplying very quickly as soon as the fish die. This is also true when the fish are frozen, likely because the tiny living things in them are already used to the cold temperatures. While stored in ice, the bacteria will multiply every day and in about 2-3 weeks, the numbers of bacteria will reach 108-109 bacteria per gram of flesh or per square centimeter of skin. During normal storage conditions, the bacterial count reaches a slightly lower level of 107-108 colony forming units per gram in 24 hours. When fish caught in warm waters are put on ice, the bacteria on them will take about 1-2 weeks to start growing rapidly. When tropical fish spoil, they have the same amount of bacteria as temperate fish. If fish that is frozen and stored without oxygen or in an atmosphere containing carbon dioxide, there will be more normal bacteria that thrive in cold temperatures, like the bacteria called S. Bacteria like putrefaciens and Pseudomonas are usually found in smaller amounts, around 106-107 cfu/g, on fish that has been stored without

oxygen. However, the amount of cold-loving bacteria like P. When fish goes bad, phosphoreum can reach a level of 107-108 cfu/g. The types of bacteria that are present in the microflora change a lot when it is stored. Therefore, when food is stored at cold temperatures with air, most of the bacteria present will be Pseudomonas spp. I'm sorry, but there is not enough information given to rewrite the text in simple words. Putrefaciens occurs after 1-2 weeks. Researchers believe that fish have a shorter time to reproduce when the temperature is cold. This is true for studies done on fish in both tropical and temperate waters.

At normal room temperature ( $25^{\circ}$ C), the harmful bacteria that cause spoilage on fish are mainly mesophilic Vibrionaceae. If the fish are caught in dirty water, Enterobacteriaceae bacteria are also dominant. We need to understand the difference between spoilage flora and spoilage bacteria. Spoilage flora refers to all the bacteria on fish when it spoils, while spoilage bacteria specifically create bad smells and tastes when fish spoils. Many of the bacteria on the rotten fish did not contribute to the spoilage at all. Each type of fish product will have its own specific bacteria that cause it to go bad. The more of these bacteria there are, the shorter the product's shelf life will be. Which is connected to the amount of bacteria that produce hydrogen sulfide. It is difficult to figure out which bacteria from the bad fish are causing the spoilage. It needs a lot of testing in terms of smell, microscopic examination, and chemical analysis. First, we need to examine and measure the changes that happen to our senses such as taste and smell, the microbes present, and the chemicals in the product during storage. This includes identifying a specific chemical that indicates when the product is spoiled. Secondly, bacteria are separated at the place where they are rejected by sensors. We test bacteria in clean fish products to see if they can make the fish go bad by creating bad smells and chemical changes. Finally, the chosen types of bacteria or molds are checked to see if they cause spoilage in food or drinks. This involves measuring how fast they grow and the amount of bad smells they produce, comparing it to the spoiled product.

#### CONCLUSION

Changes in fish after death and the dangers it can cause are very important for how we manage fisheries and make sure our food is safe. This summary looks into the major changes that happen to fish after they die and the possible dangers they can cause to people who eat them. After a fish dies, there are many changes that happen to its body. These changes can affect the way the fish tastes and if it is safe to eat. They include things like changes in chemicals, bacteria, and the physical appearance of the fish. One big change that happens to a fish's body is rigor mortis when its muscles tighten up and then loosen, which affects how firm the fish feels. Autolysis is when fish tissues break down and digest themselves using enzymes. This can cause the flavor of the fish to change and it can also spoil. Bacteria growing and enzymes working faster can cause food to spoil quicker and be harmful to health. Fish can get sick from harmful bacteria like Salmonella and Vibrio if they aren't handled and stored correctly. These harmful germs can cause illnesses in people who eat contaminated food. Chemical changes can cause bad tastes and lower nutritional value. This happens when lipids and proteins break down. These changes are especially important for types of fish that are high in fat, like salmon. To reduce the risks linked to changes that happen after death, it is important to follow good manufacturing practices, carefully control temperatures when handling and storing items, and maintain good sanitization practices. Quickly cooling and freezing fish can keep them fresh and safe to eat.In conclusion, it is very important for the fishing industry and people who eat fish to understand the changes that happen to fish after they die and the dangers these changes can cause. It is very important to handle, store, and clean fish properly to make sure they are safe to eat and good quality. This

helps to prevent people from getting sick from the food and makes consumers feel more confident in buying seafood.

#### **REFERENCES:**

- [1] N. Seki and T. Watanabe, "Connectin content and its post-mortem changes in fish muscle," *J. Biochem.*, 1984, doi: 10.1093/oxfordjournals.jbchem.a134705.
- [2] H. Hong, J. M. Regenstein, and Y. Luo, "The importance of ATP-related compounds for the freshness and flavor of post-mortem fish and shellfish muscle: A review," *Critical Reviews in Food Science and Nutrition*. 2017. doi: 10.1080/10408398.2014.1001489.
- [3] M. Ando, Y. Yoshimoto, K. Inabu, T. Nakagawa, and Y. Makinodan, "Post-mortem Change of Three-dimensional Structure of Collagen Fibrillar Network in Fish Muscle Pericellular Connective Tissues Corresponding to Post-mortem Tenderization," *Fish. Sci.*, 1995, doi: 10.2331/fishsci.61.327.
- [4] R. Ofstad, B. Egelandsdal, S. Kidman, R. Myklebust, R. L. Olsen, and A. M. Hermansson, "Liquid loss as effected by post mortem ultrastructural changes in fish muscle: Cod (Gadus morhua L) and salmon (Salmo salar)," J. Sci. Food Agric., 1996, doi: 10.1002/(SICI)1097-0010(199607)71:3<301::AID-JSFA583>3.0.CO;2-0.
- [5] I. V. H. Kjærsgård and F. Jessen, "Proteome analysis elucidating post-mortem changes in cod (Gadus morhua) muscle proteins," J. Agric. Food Chem., 2003, doi: 10.1021/jf0340097.
- [6] J. J. R. MACLEOD and W. W. SIMPSON, "No. 19: THE IMMEDIATE POST MORTEM CHANGES IN FISH MUSCLE," Contrib. to Can. Biol. Fish., 1926, doi: 10.1139/f26-019.
- [7] B. M. Poli, G. Parisi, F. Scappini, and G. Zampacavallo, "Fish welfare and quality as affected by pre-slaughter and slaughter management," *Aquac. Int.*, 2005, doi: 10.1007/s10499-004-9035-1.
- [8] F. Jessen, J. Nielsen, and E. Larsen, "Chilling and Freezing of Fish," in *Seafood Processing: Technology, Quality and Safety*, 2014. doi: 10.1002/9781118346174.ch3.
- [9] P. M. Thomas, N. W. Pankhurst, and H. A. Bremner, "The effect of stress and exercise on post-mortem biochemistry of Atlantic salmon and rainbow trout," J. Fish Biol., 1999, doi: 10.1006/jfbi.1999.0950.
- [10] P. Norling, M. Lindegarth, S. Lindegarth, and A. Strand, "Effects of live and postmortem shell structures of invasive Pacific oysters and native blue mussels on macrofauna and fish," *Mar. Ecol. Prog. Ser.*, 2015, doi: 10.3354/meps11044.
- [11] S. K. Jasra, P. K. Jasra, and C. L. Talesara, "Myofibrillar protein degradation of carp (Labeo rohita (Hamilton)) muscle after post-mortem unfrozen and frozen storage," J. Sci. Food Agric., 2001, doi: 10.1002/jsfa.841.
- [12] S. T. Montagner *et al.*, "Effect of direct electric current on microbiological quality of white croaker (Micropogonias furnieri)," *Food Microbiol.*, 2005, doi: 10.1016/j.fm.2004.05.006.

#### CHAPTER 4 MICROBIOLOGY OF FISH AND FISH PRODUCTS: A COMPREHENSIVE OVERVIEW

Devendra Pal Singh, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-<u>dpsinghevs@gmail.com</u>

#### **ABSTRACT:**

Fresh and lightly preserved fish products can go bad because of microbes. This paper looks at what we know about the tiny organisms that can make fish and fish products go bad. It focuses on figuring out which bacteria are responsible for the spoilage and what chemical changes we can detect to tell if the fish has gone bad. Shewanellaputrefaciens and Pseudomonas spp. are types of bacteria. These bacteria cause the spoilage of fresh fish that is kept on ice, no matter where the fish comes from. Marine fish from colder areas spoil when stored with modified atmosphere because of a bacteria called Photobacteriumphosphoreum that can survive in high levels of CO2. On the other hand, bacteria that are likely to spoil fish stored with CO2 in fresh or tropical waters are Gram-positive bacteria. Fish products that have a lot of salt in them can go bad because certain types of bacteria, called halophilic bacteria, can grow on salted fish. Similarly, the growth of anaerobic bacteria and yeasts can cause barrel salted fish to spoil. While we have a good understanding of how fresh and very salty fish spoil, we know much less about how lightly preserved fish products spoil. It is believed that the spoilage is most likely caused by lactic acid bacteria, certain types of bacteria that can survive in cold temperatures, and a specific type of bacteria called Photobacteriumphosphoreum. However, we still need to do more work in this field.

#### **KEYWORDS:**

Bacteria, Fish, Microorganisms, Products, Processing, Spoilage.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Fish and fisheries products are not only nutritionally vital, but also significant in global commerce as a source of foreign cash for many nations. Fisheries and aquaculture have surpassed agriculture as the second most significant contributors to Bangladesh's export profits, accounting for around 3.74% of national GDP, 2.7% of export earnings, and 22.23% of agricultural output. Bangladesh's export of frozen fish, dry fish, salted and dehydrated fish is expanding day by day due to a diverse worldwide market that includes the United States. United Kingdom, Japan, Belgium, the Netherlands, Thailand, Germany, China, France, Canada, Spain, and Italy. Despite the fact that Bangladesh has 129 fish processing enterprises, only 62 have EU approval. As a result, maintaining the quality of frozen fish is critical for its acceptability in international commerce as well as preventing consumer health risks.Because of their increased nutritional value, such as high protein content, with little or no carbohydrate and fat value, fish are of major importance for export revenues. However, fish may get contaminated throughout numerous phases of shipping, handling, and processing. This contamination may be caused by leakage, bug and pest harborage, or contamination of raw materials, workers, and processing instruments such as forklifts. Seafood may also get infected during storage and processing. Contamination may be caused by naturally occurring foodborne pathogens in aquatic habitats, such as Vibrio spp., or by pathogens originating from sewage polluted water, such as Salmonella spp.. Consumption of these infected fish may result in illness or intoxication[1], [2].

After noncholera Vibrio spp. and Norwalk viruses, Vibrio cholerae is responsible for the third greatest incidence of shellfish-related diseases. Toxigenic Ol infections cause copious, watery diarrhea, while nontoxigenic, non-Ol biotype infections cause septicaemia and moderate gastroenteritis. Unlike Vibrio spp., the incidence of Salmonella infections caused by seafood intake is still modest when compared to salmonellosis caused by other foods. Salmonella spp. detection in seafood, on the other hand, cannot be overlooked since it is responsible for the majority of foodborne infections or gastroenteritis characterized by diarrhea, abdominal cramping, vomiting, nausea, and fever. Salmonella is the main cause of bacterial foodborne disease in the United States, causing roughly 1.4 million nontyphoidal infections, 15,000 hospitalizations, and 400 deaths per year, according to the Centres for Disease Control and Prevention.Water and ice quality are also significant factors in producing high-quality fish, since water and ice utilized in the processing of fish might infect the whole processing facility. The EU encouraged Bangladesh's government to use the Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP) system in frozen seafood processing. As a result, it is critical to determine the quality of the fish we eat as well as the frozen fish that is exported. As a result, the current research was conducted to analyze the microbiological quality of marine frozen fishes in order to raise food safety concerns and promote international commerce. This research also looked at the microbiological condition of water and ice, since these elements were linked to fish processing and preservation.

Fish has long been regarded as an important source of sustenance for human populations throughout. Fish contributes considerably to global food security and public health as a rich source of high-quality protein, vital fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. They are a staple diet for billions of people worldwide, especially in coastal areas and locations where alternative protein sources are limited. Furthermore, the health advantages of fish eating, such as cardiovascular health and cognitive development, highlight their relevance in world nutrition. While fish provide many nutritional advantages, they also support a varied and active microbial ecosystem. Fish, being aquatic creatures, interact with microorganisms in their environment on a daily basis, and these microbes may have a substantial influence on the safety, quality, and shelf life of fish and fish products. Understanding the complex interplay between fish and microbes is critical for controlling food safety and ensuring that customers get healthy and nutritious seafood[3].

This chapter provides an overview of the microbiology of fish and fish products.One of the key goals of this chapter is to investigate the microbial communities that are naturally linked with fish. Fish have varied microbial communities that impact their health, immunity, and interactions with aquatic habitats, from the surface microbiota to the gut microbiome. These populations have a significant impact on the microbial landscape of fish and fish products.Fish are very perishable, and spoilage microbes may quickly change their sensory characteristics, leaving them unpleasant. This chapter digs into the several forms of spoilage microorganisms found in fish, such as psychrotrophic bacteria, lactic acid bacteria, yeasts, moulds, histamine-producing bacteria is critical for fish quality preservation.In addition to rotting microorganisms, fish may harbour pathogenic germs, which can cause health concerns to consumers if not handled and cooked appropriately. Pathogens often linked with fish, such as Salmonella, Vibrio, Listeria, and some strains of Escherichia coli, will be thoroughly investigated. Effective pathogenic contamination control and prevention are critical to assuring the safety of fish products[4], [5].

Preservation and processing methods are crucial for increasing the shelf life of fish products while maintaining microbiological safety. This chapter discusses many ways for preserving fish, such as chilling, freezing, canning, smoking, salting, drying, fermenting, and irradiation. Each approach has various benefits and drawbacks, and their selection is influenced by criteria like as product kind and intended usage. Fish provide a distinct problem and potential in terms of microbiology. Their interaction with the aquatic environment, biological traits, and handling and processing techniques all contribute to fish's diverse microbial ecosystem. As a result, knowing the microbiology of fish and fish products is critical for assuring their safety and quality. When it comes to microbes, fish are not passive beings; rather, they actively engage with this microbial world. Their skin, scales, mucous, and stomach offer microbial colonization habitats. Fish behaviours, such as eating and excretion, also have an impact on aquatic microbiota. This dynamic interplay moulds fish's microbiological makeup, distinguishing them from terrestrial livestock. Food science is critical in creating and improving techniques of preserving and processing fish products. It also covers microorganism-influenced sensory and qualitative elements of fish. Food safety is ensured by hazard assessments and management techniques[6], [7].

#### DISCUSSION

The microbiological world of fish may have an impact on the quality of fish and fish products in both positive and negative ways. Beneficial bacteria may help with flavour development, texture improvement, and product safety in fermented fish sauces. Spoilage microorganisms, on the other hand, may produce textural deterioration, off-flavors, and off-odors, leaving fish products unmarketable.Food safety is a top priority in the fishing sector. Pathogenic bacteria that infect seafood may endanger customers' health. Understanding the nature of these viruses, where they come from, and how they behave in fish is critical for reducing foodborne infections linked with seafood intake.Effective preservation and processing processes are critical for reducing microbiological threats and maintaining fish product microbiological safety. These procedures may reduce or stop the development of spoilage and harmful bacteria, increasing product shelf life and lowering the risk of foodborne disease.The second chapter focuses into the microbial communities that are naturally linked with fish. It investigates the importance of these communities in fish health and immunity, as well as the consequences for aquatic habitats. Furthermore, the chapter investigates how these communities might affect the microbiological quality of fish and fish products[8], [9].

The third chapter focuses on spoilage bacteria found in fish. It investigates the properties and behaviours of psychrotrophic bacteria, lactic acid bacteria, yeasts, moulds, histamineproducing bacteria, and sulfide-producing bacteria. There is also discussion of practical insights into recognizing and controlling rotting in fish products.Pathogenic bacteria in fish are discussed in Chapter 4, including their origins, hazards, and preventative methods. There are detailed talks on Salmonella, Vibrio, Listeria, and Escherichia coli, as well as advice on how to assure the microbiological safety of fish products. Each preservation technique is thoroughly examined, as are its applications and implications for usage. It is critical to understand that fish microbiology is an interdisciplinary discipline that incorporates microbiology, food science, fisheries science, and public health. Collaboration and knowledge integration across various fields are required for a thorough understanding of the microbiological characteristics of fish and fish products. Microbiological knowledge is required for describing the microbial populations associated with fish, understanding their functions, and establishing appropriate management techniques. Microbial ecology sheds light on the dynamics of these communities in aquatic settings. Fish and fish products are important sources of protein and nutrition for billions of people worldwide, providing key nutritional components. However, the microbiological features of fish, including microorganisms that are naturally present in fish as well as those that might possibly infect fish products, are critical in determining their safety, shelf life, and quality. Understanding the microbiology of fish and fish products is critical for food safety, spoilage prevention, and product quality maintenance. This in-depth discussion delves into the multifaceted world of fish microbiology, covering a wide range of topics such as the microbial communities associated with fish, spoilage microorganisms that affect their freshness, pathogenic bacteria that can pose health risks, and preservation and processing techniques used to improve microbiological safety and extend shelf life.

#### Fish-Associated Microbial Communities

Fish are living beings that are inextricably related to watery habitats filled with microorganisms. As a result, fish naturally harbour a diversified microbial community, which may be divided into many important groups:

- 1. Surface Microbiota: A complex consortium of microorganisms, including bacteria, yeasts, and moulds, inhabit the skin, scales, and mucus of fish. These microorganisms have the potential to have an impact on fish health, immunity, and interactions with the aquatic environment.
- 2. Gut Microbiota: Fish, like other vertebrates, have a gut microbiota that aids digestion, nutrition absorption, and general health. Diet and environmental variables may impact the makeup of gut microbiota in different fish species.
- **3.** Microbes in Fish Gills and Fins: Microbial colonies populate the gills and fins of fish. These bacteria might aid with gas exchange and protect the fish from infections.
- 4. Microbial spoiling Communities: The microbial communities on the surface of fish may alter over time, resulting in spoiling. Spoilage microorganisms, such as particular bacteria, yeasts, and moulds, may change the flavour, texture, and odour of fish, making it unpleasant. Understanding the dynamics of these microbial communities is crucial for ensuring the quality and safety of fish, especially during processing and storage.

#### Microorganisms that cause spoilage

Because of the proliferation of spoilage bacteria, fish and fish products are very perishable commodities. These bacteria may grow quickly and induce changes in fish sensory characteristics such as off-flavors, off-odors, and textural deterioration. The following are the most common kinds of spoilage bacteria found in fish:

- 1. **Psychrotrophic Bacteria:** Because they can develop at refrigeration temperatures, these cold-loving bacteria are important spoilers of chilled and frozen fish products. Pseudomonas and Shewanella are two common genera.
- 2. Lactic Acid Bacteria (LAB): LAB cause several kinds of fish spoilage, notably in items designed for fermentation, such as fish sauces and fermented fish.
- **3. Yeasts and moulds:** Yeasts and moulds may develop in damp and aerobic environments, causing fish products to deteriorate. They often cause off-odors and visual alterations in the product.
- 4. Histamine-Producing Bacteria: If not treated appropriately, some bacteria, such as those of the genus Morganella, may create histamine in fish tissue. Histamine is a powerful toxin that may induce scombroid poisoning if taken with infected fish.
- **5.** Sulfide-Producing Bacteria: These bacteria may produce hydrogen sulphide gas, which causes the rotten egg odour in damaged seafood. A crucial part of fish preservation and food safety is preventing or delaying the establishment of these spoiling germs.
## **Bacterial Pathogens in Fish**

Aside from rotting microorganisms, fish may also be infected with harmful germs, which offer health concerns to customers if not handled and cooked appropriately. Pathogenic microorganisms often found with fish include:

- 1. Salmonella: Salmonella species may be found in a variety of fish species and, if consumed, can cause gastrointestinal diseases. Proper cooking and hygiene practices are critical for avoiding Salmonella-related infections. Vibrio species such as Vibrio parahaemolyticus and Vibrio vulnificus flourish in warm saltwater and have been linked to seafood-related diseases such as gastroenteritis and wound infections. Listeria monocytogenes may develop in refrigerators and is an issue in ready-to-eat seafood items. Consumption of Listeria-contaminated fish may result in listeriosis, a serious foodborne infection, particularly in susceptible populations.
- **2.** E. coli: Certain strains of E. coli, such as Shiga toxin-producing E. coli (STEC), have been linked to contaminated seafood and have been linked to gastrointestinal problems.
- **3. Parasites:** While parasites such as Anisakis are not bacteria, they may infect fish and pose health hazards if ingested raw or undercooked. To kill these parasites, enough freezing or boiling is required. Proper handling, storing, and cooking techniques are critical for lowering the danger of pathogenic bacterial infection and assuring the safety of fish products.

# **Techniques for Preservation and Processing**

Techniques for preserving and processing fish and fish products are crucial for ensuring the safety, quality, and shelf life of fish and fish products. Several approaches are widely used:

- 1. Freezing and chilling: Temperature management is critical for avoiding microbiological development. Fish may be successfully slowed down by chilling to temperatures below 4°C (39.2°F) and freezing to temperatures below -18°C (0°F). Canning includes a heat treatment that eliminates spoilage and harmful bacteria while establishing a hermetic seal to prevent recontamination.
- 2. Smoking: Smoking is used for both preservation and flavouring. The combination of heat and smoke may prevent microbial development while also improving the sensory qualities of fish.
- **3.** Salting: Salt functions as a preservative by limiting microbial growth and lowering water activity. Common examples are salted seafood and salted fish roe. Drying fish lowers water content, which inhibits microbial development. It is often used in dried fish, fish jerky, and fish snacks.
- 4. Fermentation: The regulated development of helpful microbes that create organic acids and other substances that prevent spoilage and harmful bacteria is known as fermentation. Fish sauces and pastes are examples of fermented fish items. Ionizing radiation may be used to destroy germs in fish and fish products, hence increasing their shelf life. It is an effective pathogen control and shelf-life extension strategy. Each technique of preservation and processing has benefits and disadvantages, and their selection is dependent on the individual product and intended use.

## CONCLUSION

Fish and fish product microbiology is a complex and dynamic area that includes a diverse spectrum of microorganisms, including those naturally associated with fish, spoilage microorganisms, and dangerous bacteria.Understanding these microbiological factors is critical for assuring fish product safety, quality, and shelf life from harvest to consumption.Proper sanitation, temperature control, and processing procedures are critical to avoiding spoiling, lowering the risk of foodborne infections, and maintaining the nutritional content and sensory characteristics of fish. The necessity of competent microbiological control in the fisheries and food sectors cannot be stressed as worldwide demand for seafood continues to climb.While seafood is considered good for your health, it can still be risky to eat. Outbreaks of infections from eating seafood around the world have made us unsure if the current ways we control these infections are effective. To prevent outbreaks of infections caused by eating seafood, it is important to know what causes these illnesses, what seafood products are often associated with them, and how they can be contaminated. We need the government, private companies, and federal agencies to work together as soon as possible.

## **REFERENCES:**

- [1] Lone Gram and Hans Henrik Huss, "Microbiological spoilage of fish and fish products," Int. J. Food Microbiol., 1996.
- [2] T. A. McMeekin, T. Ross, and J. Olley, "Application of predictive microbiology to assure the quality and safety of fish and fish products," *International Journal of Food Microbiology*. 1992. doi: 10.1016/0168-1605(92)90132-M.
- [3] A. F. El Sheikha, R. Ray, D. Montet, S. Panda, and W. Worawattanamateekul, "African fermented fish products in scope of risks," *International Food Research Journal*. 2014.
- [4] E. Apper, D. Weissman, F. Respondek, A. Guyonvarch, F. Baron, P. Boisot, A. Rodiles, and D. L. Merrifield, "Hydrolysed wheat gluten as part of a diet based on animal and plant proteins supports good growth performance of Asian seabass (Lates calcarifer), without impairing intestinal morphology or microbiota," *Aquaculture*, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.aquaculture.2015.11.018.
- [5] J. M. Barat, E. Pérez-Esteve, M. C. Aristoy, and F. Toldrá, "Partial replacement of sodium in meat and fish products by using magnesium salts. A review," *Plant and Soil*. 2013. doi: 10.1007/s11104-012-1461-7.
- [6] R. Van Gelderen, J. Carson, N. Gudkovs, and B. Nowak, "Physical characterisation of Tenacibaculum maritimum for vaccine development," *J. Appl. Microbiol.*, 2010, doi: 10.1111/j.1365-2672.2010.04795.x.
- [7] L. D. Rhodes, R. B. Johnson, and M. S. Myers, "Effects of alternative plant-based feeds on hepatic and gastrointestinal histology and the gastrointestinal microbiome of sablefish (Anoplopoma fimbria)," *Aquaculture*, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.aquaculture.2016.05.010.
- [8] S. Okabe, T. Kindaichi, and T. Ito, "Fate of 14C-labeled microbial products derived from nitrifying bacteria in autotrophic nitrifying biofilms," *Appl. Environ. Microbiol.*, 2005, doi: 10.1128/AEM.71.7.3987-3994.2005.
- [9] D. L. Ayudiarti, Suryanti, Tazwir, and R. Paranginangin, "Pengaruh Konsentrasi Gelatin Ikan Sebagai Bahan Pengikat Terhadap Kualitas dan Penerimaan Sirup," *J. Perikan. Univ. Gadjah Mada*, 2007.

# CHAPTER 5 WET FISH HANDLING AND PREPARATION: SEAFOOD JOURNEY

Upasana, Assistant Professor

College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-upas ana35954@gmail.com

# **ABSTRACT:**

This detailed discussion on wet fish handling and preparation's abstract captures the critical importance these operations play in the fisheries sector. Wet fish handling and preparation are critical links between the time fish are caught from aquatic settings and the time they become a variety of seafood delicacies on customers' tables. This chapter delves into the critical importance of wet fish handling and preparation, focusing on the influence on seafood quality, safety, and sustainability. The worldwide significance of seafood is recognized in cultural, nutritional, economic, and ecological settings. Seafood is recognized as a symbol of coastal history, a source of essential nutrients, a large contributor to the global economy, and an important actor in our oceans' complex ecology. The seafood journey is detailed, with an emphasis on the important steps of wet fish handling, processing, quality assurance, sustainability efforts, and food safety. The fisheries industry's challenges and prospects are addressed, including the need for ethical practices to fulfill expanding global demand while maintaining marine resources. We will go through wet fish handling concepts, seafood processing procedures, quality assurance measures, sustainable practices, and food safety regulations in the following chapters. The purpose of this discussion is to give a thorough knowledge of wet fish handling and preparation, allowing stakeholders in the fisheries sector to traverse these crucial processes successfully and sustainably.

## **KEYWORDS:**

Cooking, Fish, Handling, Safety, Wet.

## **INTRODUCTION**

Wet fish handling and preparation are essential components of the fisheries sector, bridging the gap between aquatic harvest and seafood products that reach customers'. This chapter introduces the diverse world of wet fish handling and preparation, examining its importance in assuring the quality, safety, and sustainability of marine products. We highlight the important aims and concepts that will be discussed in following parts in this introduction chapter. The major goal of this chapter is to explain the vital significance that wet fish handling and preparation play in the fisheries industry. It acts as a link between when fish are taken from aquatic settings and when they are turned into different seafood items. We can grasp the influence of wet fish handling on seafood quality and safety by knowing its critical function.Wet fish handling and preparation include a broad variety of seafood products, including fresh fillets, canned foods, smoked fish, and value-added items. This chapter offers an overview of the many types of seafood and the processes used to produce them. We investigate the adaptability of seafood processing and its potential to fulfill the different customer tastes.Quality control is essential in the handling and preparation of wet fish. It is critical for customer happiness, product shelf life, and market competitiveness to ensure that seafood products fulfill high quality requirements. We look at quality assurance ideas and procedures in the seafood business[1], [2].

In today's fishing business, sustainability is a major problem. The connection between wet fish handling and preparation and sustainable fisheries management is discussed in this chapter. We investigate the importance of responsible practices in protecting fish supplies and lowering the industry's environmental effect. Food safety is of the utmost importance in the fish sector. This chapter defines food safety and its application to wet fish handling and preparation. We investigate the possible dangers connected with seafood eating, as well as the methods put in place to prevent these concerns, from handling and processing through storage and distribution. Seafood has a worldwide presence and importance, affecting people on all continents. Its significance extends beyond cultural, dietary, economic, and environmental dimensions. Seafood is culturally significant in many civilizations, and is often connected with rituals, festivities, and culinary history. It represents coastal towns and their close connection to the water. Seafood is well-known for its high nutritional value. It is heavy in protein, essential fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. These dietary components help to improve general health and well-being[3], [4].

The seafood business contributes significantly to the world economy. It employs millions of people globally, ranging from fisherman and fish growers to processors, wholesalers, and retailers. Seafood exports are very important in international commerce. Sustainable fisheries management is critical for marine ecosystem health. Unregulated or overexploited fisheries may cause ecological imbalances and fish population depletion. Responsible wet fish handling and preparation methods are critical for reducing these consequences. The path of seafood from capture to customer comprises a number of crucial processes, with wet fish handling and preparation playing key roles. The procedure starts with the capture of fish from aquatic settings. Fishing boats, aquaculture facilities, and traditional activities such as small-scale fishing are also used. Wet fish handling includes all post-harvest actions aimed at preserving the freshness and quality of fish. Sorting, grading, chilling, and early processing on board fishing boats or at shoreside facilities are examples of these processes. Seafood items are transported to processing facilities, markets, or export destinations after wet fish handling. Refrigeration and logistics are critical for preventing degradation during shipment[5], [6].

Depending on the intended end result, seafood items undergo numerous changes once they arrive at processing facilities. Filleting, smoking, canning, freezing, and value-added preparation are examples of processing procedures. Following that, seafood goods are supplied to local markets, restaurants, and retail locations. They are now available to customers looking for fresh, frozen, or processed seafood. The last leg of the voyage occurs in customers' homes, restaurants, and eating places, when they make and consume seafood meals. At this level, quality, safety, and sustainability factors continue to impact decisions. The fisheries industry has various obstacles and possibilities in the handling and processing of wet fish. The growing worldwide demand for seafood puts a strain on fish populations and aquaculture systems. Sustainable wet fish handling procedures are crucial for addressing this demand while protecting marine resources. A primary concern is ensuring the safety of seafood products. Contamination, deterioration, and the danger of foodborne disease demand stringent food safety precautions implemented throughout the supply chain.Sustainability efforts, such as MSC and ASC certification schemes, encourage ethical fishing and aquaculture operations. They allow for market distinction and customer trust. Advances in processing and preservation methods improve the efficiency and quality of marine products. These breakthroughs propel product development and market competitiveness. To handle wet fish handling and preparation in depth, this chapter is divided into multiple parts, each devoted to a different element of the subject.

It delves into the many procedures used to produce a wide variety of seafood products, from fillets and canned foods to smoked fish and value-added items. We investigate the gastronomic effects of seafood processing flexibility.From sensory assessment to laboratory

testing, we look at the steps used to guarantee that seafood products fulfill high quality requirements. Quality assurance techniques are critical for satisfying customer and regulatory expectations. We investigate the importance of responsible practices in preserving fish supplies, decreasing environmental impact, and satisfying rising seafood demand. We investigate the possible dangers of seafood eating, such as contamination and foodborne infections. The chapter discusses the steps taken to reduce these dangers and ensure the safety of seafood products. We want to give readers with a broad grasp of wet fish handling and preparation, from its function in the fisheries sector to its influence on the quality, safety, and sustainability of seafood products, via this in-depth investigation.

## DISCUSSION

Quality fish have a bright and shining appearance, and the majority of the scales are undamaged and stick closely to the skin. Each species has distinct patterns and colours that fade and become less prominent as the fish ages. The eyes are brilliant, clear, full, and often protrude. As the condition of the eyes deteriorates, they often become pink, hazy, and sunken. This is not usually true for small-eyed fish like salmon. The gills are crimson and slime-free. The colour fades over time to pale pink, then grey, and lastly greenish or drab brown. The odour is light and fresh. A fish fresh out of the water has almost little fish odour. The fishy odour grows with time, but it should not be overpowering or offensive. The flesh is solid and elastic, and it does not separate from the bones. The odour is light and fresh. The flesh is juicy, firm, and elastic, with no indications of browning or drying around the edges. Prepackaged steaks and fillets are firmly packed in packaging with no liquid and little or no air.Whether you bought fresh or frozen fish, keep it cool at all times. Perishable foods should never be left in a hot vehicle unless they are packed in ice or in a cooler; seafood products must be kept cold to preserve optimal quality. It's usually a good idea to maintain your refrigerator between 32 and 38 degrees Fahrenheit, and your freezer at 0 degrees Fahrenheit or below[7], [8].

## Refrigeration

Keep fresh fish in its original wrapper in the coldest portion of the refrigerator, such as the freezer or the "meat-keeper" drawer. Plan to eat your fish within one to two days. If not, place them in the freezer. However, do not refreeze previously frozen food since the quality will be compromised.

## Freezing

Fish should be frozen in securely packed packages. This requires minimal storage space and may accommodate a family portion for one meal at a time. Tightly packaged packets of fish freeze quicker. Small whole fish, steaks, or fillets are simple to wrap and freeze. Wrap them securely and separately in cling wrap, putting a tight skin on the goods. Before freezing, master-bag these individually wrapped goods in a sturdy, strong polyethylene bag or foil, but never more than a pound per master bag. Vast fish have vast exposed surface surfaces that are difficult to protect against oxidation. Simply freezing these fish unwound or briefly bagging them in plastic is the easiest method to treat them. Dip them in water after freezing to make a protective coating. The fish may then be re-bagged and returned to the freezer. The glaze may need to be replaced every five to six weeks.Label each package with the date, the kind and weight of the fish, and the number of servings or pieces. A crayon or grease pencil works well for this. Avoid overcrowding your freezer and packing unfrozen fish too tightly. Either of these methods may significantly increase the freezing time and impair the quality. Most home-frozen fish should not be kept for more than six months, and salmon should be kept for

no more than three months. Refer to the chart below for a more detailed breakdown of optimal freezer storage durations for fish.

## **Preparation Cleanliness**

Always thoroughly wash hands with hot, soapy water before preparing meals and handling raw fish. Allow no raw fish or juices to come into contact with ready-to-eat items, either in the refrigerator or during preparation. Cooked items should not be served on the same plate as raw fish. Before using utensils that have come into contact with raw fish, always wash them with hot, soapy water. Wash countertops, cutting boards, and any other surfaces that have come into contact with uncooked fish.

## Thawing

While freezing fish fast maintains more cell walls intact, thawing does the reverse. Defrost slowly so that cells are less disturbed and fewer juices leak out. Thawing in the refrigerator overnight is the best method. Thawing at room temperature is not recommended. Here are several safe alternatives for fast thawing frozen fish: Place the fish in a plastic bag and submerge it in cold water for about an hour, or microwave it on the "defrost" setting for about an hour, stopping when the fish is still frozen but bendable. Follow the manufacturer's thawing directions for thawing fish that has been vacuum packed or is in any sort of modified air packaging. While this form of packaging is excellent for increasing shelf life, fish in an oxygen-free environment at temperatures over 400F may cause Clostridium botulinum spores to germinate and develop a lethal toxin.Marinate the salmon in the refrigerator rather than on the counter. After using the marinade, discard it since it includes raw fluids that may harbour germs. Reserve a bit of the marinade before adding raw food if you wish to use it as a dip or sauce[9], [10].

When cooked to perfection, fish is at its most tasty, being moist, soft, and delicate in flavour. In general, fish is cooked when the flesh starts to flake easily with a fork and loses its translucent or raw aspect. Fish, like other dishes, should be fully cooked. The FDA recommends cooking fish until it reaches an internal temperature of 145 degrees Fahrenheit. The 10-minute rule for cooking fish is a useful guideline. Use it to bake, broil, grill, steam, and poach fillets, steaks, or entire fish. The 10-minute guideline does not apply to microwave cooking or deep frying. Cooking fish correctly is all about timing, and practice makes perfect. The 10-minute rule is applied as follows. Take the thickness of the seafood product at its thickest point. If the fish has been stuffed or rolled, measure it after it has been filled or rolled.Bake for 10 minutes per inch thickness of the salmon at 450°F, flipping halfway during the cooking time. A 1-inch fish steak, for example, should be cooked for 5 minutes on each side for a total of 10 minutes. Fish that is less than half an inch thick does not need to be flipped over. If you are cooking the fish in foil or in a sauce, add 5 minutes to the overall cooking time. Cooking time is doubled for frozen fish that has not been defrosted. Fish was the first fast food. Because it lacks the connective tissue seen in red meats and fowl, it cooks fast, in minutes. Poaching, broiling, grilling, baking, and microwaving are some of the greatest fish cooking techniques since they bring out flavour without adding fat. Baking options include entire fish, whole filled fish, fillets, stuffed fillets, steaks, and bits of fish. For consistent cooking, choose chunks of equal size. Bake fish in a preheated 450°F oven according to the 10-minute guideline; bake uncovered, basting if required.

Steaks, whole fish, split entire fish, and fillets are ideal for broiling. Place the fish, 1 inch thick or less, 2 to 4 inches away from the fire. Thicker pieces should be 5 to 6 inches apart. Baste with an oil-based marinade on a regular basis. Using the 10-minute guideline, cook for half the entire cooking time on one side, basting once or twice, then flip the fish to continue

broiling and basting.Grilling works best with thick steak fish like salmon, halibut, swordfish, tuna, and entire fish. Preheat a gas or electric grill for use outside. Start the fire around 30 minutes before cooking if using a barbeque grill. Allow it to burn until the coals are whitehot, then spread them out in a single layer. Set the grill to 4 to 6 inches above the heat. A fairly hot fire is ideal for grilling fish. To avoid the delicate skin of the fish from sticking, always begin with a well-oiled grid. For easy turning or handling, place more delicate pieces of fish in a hinged, fish-shaped wire basket.To keep steaks and fillets from drying out, baste them often while cooking. Marinating fish for an hour before grilling helps in keeping it moist. For appropriate completion, follow the 10-minute guideline. For entire fish, use indirect heat by banking hot coals on each side of the grill or preheating a gas or electric grill. Place the fish in an oiled fish basket. Cook the fish, covered, for 10 to 12 minutes per inch of thickness, rotating halfway through.

Use a shallow dish to maximize microwave exposure. Arrange the fillets in the centre of the dish, with the thicker sections looking outward and the thinner parts, divided by strips of plastic wrap, overlapping. Cover the dish with plastic wrap and vent one corner. As a suggestion, allow 3 minutes per pound of boneless fish cooked on high. Halfway through the cooking time, rotate the dish. Rolled fillets cook more evenly in the microwave and are less prone to overcook than flat fillets with narrow edges.Before serving or eating food, wash your hands with soap and water. Cooked foods should be served on clean plates with clean utensils. Cooked meals should never be placed on a plate that has previously housed raw items unless the dish has been thoroughly cleaned with soap and hot water. Keep hot meals above 140 degrees Fahrenheit and cold items below 40 degrees Fahrenheit. Never keep raw or cooked meals at room temperature for more than two hours. This is reduced to one hour on a hot day with temperatures of 90 °F or higher. For proper preservation of leftovers, always use clean utensils and storage containers. Large quantities of leftovers should be divided into tiny, shallow containers for rapid chilling in the refrigerator. Wrap the fish in thick foil, freezer wrap, or put it in a freezer container for freezing. Use fish within a month for the best flavour. Make sure leftovers have been cooked to 165°F before reheating. Throw aside any food that has been refrigerated for an extended period of time. Never sample food that looks or smells unusual to test whether it can still be used.

## CONCLUSION

Finally, the investigation of wet fish handling and preparation emphasizes the critical necessity of these operations within the fisheries sector. Wet fish handling and preparation serve as the cornerstone that assures the quality, safety, and sustainability of seafood from the time fish are gathered from aquatic settings until their metamorphosis into a broad variety of seafood products. We have highlighted the worldwide relevance of seafood in cultural, nutritional, economic, and ecological aspects throughout this extensive debate. Seafood is more than simply a source of nutrition; it is also a symbol of coastal history, a generator of economic activity, and an essential component of marine ecosystems. The voyage of seafood from capture to customer, as described in previous chapters, emphasizes the critical importance of wet fish handling and preparation. These stages are the keepers of freshness, facilitators of gastronomic variety, gatekeepers of quality assurance, and stewards of sustainability and food safety. The fisheries industry's challenges and prospects were highlighted, highlighting the need for ethical practices to meet expanding global demand while protecting marine resources and ecosystems. As we complete this topic, it is clear that wet fish handling and preparation are not only industrial procedures, but rather essential components of a worldwide effort to provide people all over the globe with high-quality, safe, and sustainable seafood. The fisheries business can grow while protecting the magnificent

treasures of our seas for future generations by accepting best practices, embracing sustainability, and emphasizing food safety.

## **REFERENCES:**

- [1] J. Lewis, P. Stokes, N. Brereton, M. Baxter, and R. Macarthur, "Stability of arsenic speciation in fish muscle samples, under different storage and sample preparation conditions," *Microchem. J.*, 2012, doi: 10.1016/j.microc.2012.01.016.
- [2] S. Chowdhury *et al.*, "Physico-chemical properties and proximate composition of surimi powder from Tilapia (Oreochromis mossabicus)," *J. Agric. Eng. Food Technol.*, 2017.
- [3] Y. L. Henuk and J. G. Dingle, "Practical and economic advantages of choice feeding systems for laying poultry," *World's Poultry Science Journal*. 2002. doi: 10.1079/WPS20020018.
- [4] The Seafood Industry. 1990. doi: 10.1007/978-1-4615-2041-2.
- [5] A. Nowsad, M. Hassan, M. Hossain, M. Hoque, M. Siddique, and M. Islam, "Quality Improvement of Exportable Fish and Prawn through Post-Harvest Loss Reduction in Kulierchar under Participatory Stakeholder-Based Approach," *Progress. Agric.*, 2013, doi: 10.3329/pa.v21i1-2.16757.
- [6] K. D. Hannan, Z. C. Zuckerman, C. R. Haak, and A. D. Shultz, "Impacts of sun protection on feeding behavior and mucus removal of bonefish, Albula vulpes," *Environ. Biol. Fishes*, 2015, doi: 10.1007/s10641-015-0457-6.
- [7] A. A. Nowsad, M. Hossain, M. Hassan, S. Sayem, and J. Polanco, "Assessment of post harvest loss of wet fish: a novel approach based on sensory indicator assessment," *SAARC J. Agric.*, 2015, doi: 10.3329/sja.v13i1.24182.
- [8] T. S. Hori *et al.*, "Inter-individual and -family differences in the cortisol responsiveness of Atlantic cod (Gadus morhua)," *Aquaculture*, 2012, doi: 10.1016/j.aquaculture.2011.10.040.
- [9] C. A. Delle Palme, V. M. Nguyen, L. F. G. Gutowsky, and S. J. Cooke, "Do fishing education programs effectively transfer 'catch-and-release' best practices to youth anglers yielding measurable improvements in fish condition and survival?," *Knowl. Manag. Aquat. Ecosyst.*, 2016, doi: 10.1051/kmae/2016029.
- [10] Z. Hassan, E. Purwati, S. Radu, R. A. Rahim, and G. Rusul, "Prevalence of Listeria spp and Listeria monocytogenes in meat and fermented fish in Malaysia," *Southeast Asian J. Trop. Med. Public Health*, 2001.

# CHAPTER 6 CHILLING AND CHILL STORAGE: KEEPING FISH COOL FOR FRESHNESS

Ashutosh Awasthi, Associate Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- <u>ashuaw@yahoo.in</u>

### **ABSTRACT:**

The summary of the talk about highlights how important it is to control the temperature to maintain the good quality and safety of fish in the fishing industry. Keeping fish fresh from the time it is caught to when people eat it is important. This is done by using proper cooling and storage methods. It is very important to control the temperature carefully when handling wet fish in order to prevent the fish from spoiling quickly. This process requires quickly cooling something to temperatures below 4°Cto stop microbes from growing, enzymes from reacting, and microorganisms that make things go bad from multiplying. Chill storage helps keep seafood products fresh by keeping them at consistently low temperatures until they are sold. This summary highlights how important it is to control temperature when storing food. It helps to keep the taste and texture of the food, and also makes sure it is safe to eat. Chill storage helps prevent harmful bacteria from growing and lowers the chance of histamine forming. This makes seafood safer to eat and decreases the risk of getting sick from it. Additionally, the summary recognizes that keeping seafood cool and storing it in cold conditions help to decrease the amount of food wasted after it is harvested. This also improves the chances of selling seafood successfully in the market, and meets the desires of customers for seafood that is both of excellent quality and freshness. It understands that people in the fishing industry need to work together to use the best methods and make sure seafood is good from when it is caught to when people eat it.

# **KEYWORDS:**

Fish, Freezing, Storage, Temperature, Water.

# **INTRODUCTION**

When gathering and processing them, extreme caution should be used. Physical injuries such as scratches, scrapes, bruises, or serious hemorrhages are not authorized during capturing, although light bleeding is acceptable. Severe hemorrhages may have an impact on meat quality in the future. Excessive strain during harvesting might cause low glycogen levels in muscle tissues, reducing shelf life. As a result, handling practices have a significant influence on the quality of fish as well as their subsequent processing. Always remember that in tropical climates, fish should be cooled or kept cold until it reaches the processing facility. The alterations that occur during fish rotting are classified into three types. This is mostly due to enzymes found in the fish gut and muscle. The sooner the enzymatic changes and eventual rotting of the fish, the higher the temperature. The oxidation of fatty acids in fish fat is another shift related with this. This is known as autoxidation. Fish fat or oil contains two kinds of fatty acids. They are known as Saturated fatty acids, for example, palmitic acid Unsaturated fatty acids. This indicates they have carbon chains ranging in length from 12 to 24[1], [2].

Some fatty acids are very unsaturated, with 2-6 double bonds. These acids are quickly oxidized by taking oxygen from the atmosphere or from the media in which they are stored,

such as water, which contains dissolved oxygen. They quickly oxidize, producing a class of chemicals known as Carbonyl compounds. You may be startled to learn that they are to blame for the 'rancid' taste of rotten seafood. The process is known as autoxidation. Immediate cooling of fish after catch may significantly reduce the autoxidation process. Along with lipid changes, different enzymes secreted by the fish from the intestines begin to operate on muscle proteins, softening the fish muscle. The following modifications render the fish inedible, a process known as autolysis. Spoilage Due to Biochemicals You may be shocked to learn that fish muscle produces a variety of substances such as trimethylamine oxide (TMAO), adenosine triphosphate (ATP), histamine, and others. These alter the taste of fish muscle. Bacteria in fish are of several sorts; in marine fish, they are gram-ve, whereas in freshwater fish, they are gram +ve[3], [4].

Tropical bacteria are very susceptible to cooling since they dwell at high temperatures. They cannot live at very low temperatures, such as 0oC ice water, and are therefore readily killed. As a result, cooling the fish may reduce bacterial burden and aid to keep them fresh. Fish eating is dangerous if the sensory quality is acceptable but the fish contains hazardous microorganisms. The fish may be maintained bacteriologically and autolytically clean, but it is still dangerous to consume if it contains harmful compounds. As a result, bear in mind that all of the aforementioned quality standards must be maintained at an adequate level in order to keep the fish safe and edible. As a result, fish preservation becomes more important. Do you know that, as of today, freezing the fish in ice is by far the best and cheapest way for preserving fresh fish? To cold freeze the fish, chilled saltwater and solid carbon dioxide are utilized. However, they are quite costly and raise the price of the fish. Another benefit of chilling fish using ice is that it saves time. Ice water that has melted provides a washing effect. Ice water wipes away slime, filth, and germs that adhere to the surface of the fish and improves the quality and storage life of the fish. Fish is a very perishable food. If not treated correctly, the fish quickly turns inedible[5], [6].

The consumption of rotten seafood is hazardous to one's health. Spoiled fish includes hazardous germs and poisonous compounds that may cause a variety of ailments in humans such as cholera, typhoid, gastroenteritis, and others. As a result, it is preferable that fish be kept from the moment it is captured until it is eaten. One of the greatest methods to prevent spoiling and related quality degradation is to maintain the fish at a lower temperature by storing it on ice or in frozen storage. Fish is often evaluated depending on its quality. You would agree with me that if a fish growing in water is captured and held at 30oC air temperature, it will degrade quickly. On a scale of 100, the rate of deterioration at this temperature may be cut in half, 50%, by chilling the fish to 25oC. If the fish is cooled to 20oC, the rate of spoiling increases to 25%, and at 0oC, the rate of rotting might be less than 5%. This demonstrates the significance of freezing fish. Chilling the fish increases its shelf life.

Taking Care of the Fish on Board Handling on board refers to the process of handling fresh fish on the deck of a fishing vessel after catch. Most fishing boats with an OAL of up to 17 meters feature insulated fish storage with capacities ranging from 1 to 10 tonnes. During fishing, they transport ice in fishing holds. The fish is maintained in ice-filled fish holds until the boats arrive at fish landing stations or harbours. Small fishing boats may stay at sea for one to seven days. Other techniques of chilling fish on board boats exist. Here are a few examples. i) Refrigerated Sea Water (RSW) Plants Large fishing boats feature brine sea water-filled fish holds that are kept cold by refrigeration machines mounted on board. Fish is kept cold in chilled saltwater at temperatures ranging from -1 to -20C. The primary benefit of

this technology is that the temperature may be mechanically maintained until the ship arrives at the port. Seawater has a freezing point of roughly -2oC because it contains 3.5% sodium chloride (also known as salt in fish processing). This technique is excellent for chilling seafood such as sardines, mackerel, and anchovies.

Handling fresh water fish differs greatly from handling sea fish. They are easily captured and brought to a market or consumer centre. They may even be moved in tanks while alive. Because initial freshness is the most important consideration, they may be preserved in great quality if placed immediately in ice or cold medium. The best method to store them is in little containers made of plastic, wood, or bamboo. Fish is kept cold in a fish-to-ice ratio of 1:1 and delivered to remote locations in regular vehicles or insulated trucks. The temperature of the fish should be approximately  $5^{0}$ C when it arrives. The quality of raw fish, or its freshness, is critical for its use. The freshness of the fish is determined by the technique of catch and the fight it endures in the net or after capture. Too much catch in one haul not only causes physical injury but also puts the fish under a lot of stress. All of these factors lead to glycogen depletion in the muscle, which reduces its shelf life due to fast post-mortem alterations. There is a growing interest for live fish. Fish dealers often bring living fish and then partially process it. However, the market is governed by two factors: quality and price. Freshwater fish captured alive without much resistance is chosen for live shipment. They should be in excellent shape, healthy, and free of skin injury. The fish is subsequently subjected to a procedure known as conditioning. This is performed by immersing the fish in clean, oxygenated water.

Conditioning decreases stress, slows metabolism, and removes meal remnants from the alimentary canals while decreasing muscular oxygen demand. The fish is not fed throughout the conditioning phase, which further restricts metabolism and reduces ammonia and carbon dioxide excretion. In summary, 1 m2 of water is enough for 50-60 kg of carp, 30-40 kg of pike, and 20-25 kg of trout throughout the conditioning phase. There is no oxygen requirement for tropical fish during live transport conditioning. This information, however, is accessible for fish from temperate seas. For example, a fish developing at 10oC and weighing 1 kilogram has an oxygen requirement of 25 mg for eel, 45 mg for carp, and 50 mg for pike. Young fish need more oxygen than older fish owing to their rapid metabolism. The liveliness of fish influences oxygen consumption or demand. Slow moving species need less quantities than quick moving ones. The quantity of oxygen in water is affected by the temperature. Water temperature should not be less than 10-12oC in summer and 5-6oC in spring and fall for stenothermal species such as carps. The ideal temperature for conditioning and transporting trout is 5-6oC in the summer and 3-5oC in the spring. Fish can endure temperatures as low as 1-2oC in the winter[7], [8].

## DISCUSSION

Maintaining fish quality starts with harvest and continues all the way through the harvest-toconsumption chain. Careful handling of fish and shellfish during harvest and transport to the processing facility is vital if the product's high quality is to be maintained. However, there are various limits on handling the fish, the most significant of which are the bacteriological, chemical, and physical processes that cause fish deterioration. The surface of dead fish provides an excellent environment for germs to flourish, and the final result is ruined seafood. Temperature reduction may inhibit the development of many microorganisms that cause spoiling. Off odours and flavours, as well as rancidity, may result from chemical breakdown caused by oxidative and enzymatic processes. Digestive enzymes may start the breakdown process in dead fish. Physical causes such as bruising, ripping, and cutting may expose fish muscle to more rapid bacterial development, create internal bleeding that darkens the fillets, and expose a bigger surface area for chemical oxidation. Because fish is a very perishable food, it must be processed as soon as possible to maintain quality and enhance shelf life. To extend the shelf life of fish and maintain its freshness and nutritional properties, it must be handled and preserved properly. The goal of handling, processing, and preservation is to limit or decrease deterioration so that the finished product is healthy and safe for consumption.

Fish and fisheries goods delivered to market in good condition attract higher prices, both wholesale and retail, and hence provide greater returns to the fishing business. Handling The ancient technique of fish handling in many areas of the globe to minimize rotting and loss of quality is to keep captured fish alive until cooking and eating, especially in China, where live carp trading has been practised for over three thousand years.

This is still one of the most prevalent fish-handling procedures today. In holding basins, floating cages, wells, and fish yards, a wide variety of fish species are often maintained alive. Holding basins, which are often connected with fish culture businesses, may be outfitted with oxygen control, water filtration and circulation, and temperature control. Simpler techniques, such as maintaining fish in floating cages in rivers or basic fish yards built in backwaters, are also utilized. Furthermore, live fish transportation spans from very complex systems placed on trucks that control temperature, filter and recycle water, and provide oxygen to extremely basic artisanal ways of carrying fish in plastic bags with an oxygen-rich environment. Transferring catch from gear to vessel, holding catch before processing, sorting/grading, bleeding/gutting/washing, chilling, chilled storage, and unloading are the basic handling activities for caught fish[9], [10].

These procedures vary from totally manual to fully automated. The number of operations and the sequence in which they are carried out are determined by the fish species, the gear employed, the size of the vessel, the length of the journey, and the market to be supplied. It is critical to maintain a continual flow of fish and prevent any buildup of unchilled fish, putting the critical time-temperature phase under total control. Icing is the oldest and most extensively used technique of maintaining fish freshness through cooling. Mechanical refrigeration makes ice easily accessible and inexpensively. Furthermore, ice keeps fish wet, has a high chilling capacity, is safe, and is a portable cooling technique that can be readily stored, carried, and utilized by spreading it evenly around the fish. Crushed block ice is used to cool seafood.

The use of ice at different stages of handling and processing necessitates the use of appropriately insulated containers. These containers are developed and built locally, with adequate handling flexibility, utilizing natural or artificial insulating materials. The temperature, length of storage/travel, and cleanliness in all aspects, including that of the handlers, are the most significant issues to consider in the first handling and transit. Cleaning the fish of filth and debris, quickly cooling it to prevent its temperature from increasing, and maintaining high standards of cleanliness at all stages are critical. Fish that has battled for a long time in the net or aboard is more prone to spoil than fish that dies instantly or is killed fast. Similarly, fish with a full stomach during capturing spoil faster, and fish damaged while catching or handling spoil faster than physically sound fish.

# Fish washing and sorting

To remove dirt and other foreign materials from the collected fish, thoroughly wash it with potable water. For first cleaning, 10 ppm chlorinated water is excellent. Washing removes the majority of the surface bacterial burden. Slime represents 2-3% of the body weight in various freshwater species like as eel carp and trout. The excretion of slime, which stops before death, gives an ideal habitat for bacterial development. As a result, the corpse must be

properly cleansed to eliminate slime. After washing, the catch should be separated by species and size. During sorting, bruised, injured, and decaying fish must be segregated from the catch.

# Dressing

It is preferable to prevent giant fish battling by killing them immediately. The more the fish resists, the quicker the pH drops after death. A pH of 6.0 promotes muscle protein denaturation during frozen storage. The dressing procedures of the catch, which include heading, bleeding, and gutting, must be completed as quickly as possible while avoiding severe bacterial contamination. Several spoilage bacteria are abundant in the gills and viscera. Bacterial activity may cause partially digested food in the viscera to turn sour or rotten. The potent digestive enzymes in the viscera might cause fish to deteriorate faster. As a result, wherever feasible, remove the gills and viscera before preserving and storing the fish. The exposed belly section should not be bruised as a result of gutting or evisceration. Retention of any visceral portions may quickly contaminate the soft belly, and injuries can promote faster deterioration by allowing germs to easily penetrate. After each surgery, the fish should be properly cleansed. The bigger fish are gutted by hand before being cleaned and iced. Gutting aids in the removal of digestive enzymes as well as foul-smelling chemicals linked with the gut. It also reduces bloodstain formation and regulates haemoglobin-catalyzed lipid oxidation in fillets. Blood in the fish might coagulate and become black or brown, impacting the colour and look of the flesh. As a result, bleeding is done to maintain the meat's quality. Bleeding and evisceration are only possible on relatively big fish. The ways for bleeding include slashing the neck followed by hanging the fish by the tail or slicing the throat and soaking in cold water.

## **Good Handling Techniques**

The quality of the final product is determined by how the fish are handled on land during pretreatment and processing. Every step of the process, from capture through handling and processing to sale to the customer, entails some loss of quality. Each product has its own set of raw material standards. Chilled fish for immediate sale at the local market, for example, may not be totally fresh but may still be acceptable to the customer. However, in the case of frozen fillets, fresh raw material will be necessary since it must endure the rigours of the freezing process and lengthy cold storage before reaching the customer. As a result, raw material is assessed during the pre-processing stage based on its appropriateness for different processing procedures. The way the fish (raw material) is handled during processing varies depending on the species of fish, the processing techniques, and the desired final product. However, there are certain basic excellent practices that should be followed: As far as possible, every effort should be made to prevent warming fish, as this will promote the activity of enzymes and bacteria. Avoid handling the fish incorrectly. This will cause skin and flesh damage as well as hasten the process of bacterial contamination and enzymatic activity.

Cool the fish as soon as possible using any practical way. Whatever technique is used, it is critical to chill the whole fish. The fish collected at various times must be kept separate since they will be at different states of deterioration. Small fish must be maintained apart from big fish since they spoil faster than the latter. Soft-bellied fish should be maintained separately, and if the guts are removed or the belly bursts, the body cavity should be cleansed to eliminate any residues of the gut. After each usage, the containers used for transporting fish should be cleaned. Every fish cleaning operation should utilize chlorinated water whenever feasible. Do not keep fish on the ground; instead, keep them on basic concrete or wooden

platforms that can be cleaned periodically to minimize contamination. At each level of preprocessing and processing, fish handlers should understand about and practice excellent hygiene. Low temperature preservation procedures such as chilling and freezing are commonly used to protect the quality and freshness of fish and fish products. The chilled storage technique, i.e., keeping the fish unfrozen, has a limited shelf life that varies between 4 and 20 days depending on the condition and type of fish.

The shelf life of frozen storage is likewise limited, although it ranges from a few weeks to years. The state of the fish at the time of capture, handling, processing, and product development, packing and glazing of the product, freezing method used, frozen storage temperature, stacking methods, and transportation tactics are all variables that impact frozen storage shelf life. These elements may be combined to form Product, Processing, and Packaging (PPP) and Time Temperature Tolerance (TTT) factors.Fluidized Bed Freezing Small marine goods, such as prawns, may be fluidized by establishing a bed of prawns on a mesh belt and then blowing air upward at a pace sufficient to partly lift or suspend the particles. If the air used for fluidization is sufficiently cold, freezing may occur quickly. A minimum air velocity of 2 meters per second. or higher is required to fluidize the particles, and an air temperature of -35°C is typical.

The bed depth is determined by the ease of fluidization, which is determined by the particle size, shape, and homogeneity. A bed depth of little more than 3 cm is appropriate for tiny prawns, while a depth of 20 to 25 cm is appropriate for non-fluidizable items like fillets. Fluidized bed freezing has shown to be effective for a wide range of product types and sizes. Products that are generally compact and homogeneous in size get the greatest outcomes. Some fluidized-bed freezers use a two-stage freezing approach, with the first stage consisting of regular air-blast freezing. Fluidized bed freezing has the benefits more efficient heat transmission and faster freezing rates, and reduced product dehydration and less frequent defrosting of the equipment. During fluidized bed freezing of prawns, dehydration losses of roughly 1% have been documented. The minor loss of moisture seems to be due to the short freezing period. The main problem of fluidized-bed freezing is that it cannot fluidize big or non-uniform goods at moderate air velocities. Contact Plate Freezing Fish items may be frozen by contacting a metal surface that has been chilled by expanding refrigerants. For freezing fish/prawn blocks, double contact plate freezers are often used.

This machine is made up of a stack of horizontal cold plates with intervening areas for single layers of packed food. The loaded unit resembles a multi-layered sandwich with alternating layers of cold plates and items. When the plates are closed, they establish solid contact with the two main surfaces of the packages, aiding heat transmission and ensuring that the major surfaces do not bulge during freezing. Vertical plate freezers are frequently used, particularly on fishing boats. Contact plate freezing is a cost-effective approach that reduces product dehydration, equipment defrosting, and packaging bulging. The packaging used in this procedure must be of consistent thickness. When chilled by plates at -35°C, a packed product with a thickness of 3 to 4 cm may be frozen in 1 to 1.5 hours. When the package has a substantial volume of vacuum spaces, freezing periods are significantly lengthened.Freezing Liquid immersion freezing, also known as direct immersion freezing, is achieved by immersing or spraying a product with a freezant that stays liquid throughout the operation. This method is sometimes used to prepare fish and prawns. Liquid immersion freezing may cause relatively fast freezing.

Freezers used for liquid immersion freezing should be non-toxic, affordable, stable, and moderately inert, with a low viscosity, low vapour pressure, and freezing point, and relatively

good thermal conductivity values. Freezing agents should have a low propensity to permeate the product, have little or no negative impacts on organoleptic qualities, and need minimal effort to maintain required cleanliness and composition requirements. As a freezant, aqueous solutions of propylene glycol, glycerol, sodium chloride, calcium chloride, and sugar-salt combinations were utilized. Cryogenic Freezing Cryogenic freezing refers to highly fast freezing of food items by exposing them to a very cold freezant undergoing state transition. The fact that heat is removed by the freezant during a change of state distinguishes cryogenic freezing from liquid immersion freezing. Boiling nitrogen and boiling or subliming carbon dioxide are the most often used food grade cryogenic freezants. Boiling nitrous oxide has also been investigated, although it is not being utilized commercially. The rate of freezing achieved using cryogenic procedures is much higher than that obtained with traditional airblast or plate freezing, but only modestly higher than that obtained with fluidized bed or liquid immersion freezing. Shrimp, for example, freezes takes around 9 minutes in a commercial liquid nitrogen freezer and 12 minutes in a fluidized bed freezer. Liquid nitrogen is now employed in the majority of cryogenic food refrigerators. Typically, liquid nitrogen is sprayed or dribbled over the product, or extremely cold gaseous nitrogen is brought into contact with it.

Tumbling the product in the presence of powdered or liquid carbon dioxide is a common method of freezing with carbon dioxide. In this procedure, the product absorbs or entrains carbon dioxide. Before it is packed in an impermeable material, the entrapped CO2 should be eliminated. Crusto Freezer This is a cryogenic freezing device combined with an air blast freezing mechanism. The equipment allows for the quick and effective crust freezing of highly wet, sticky items, which may subsequently be handled simply in a spiral belt freezer or a fluidized bed freezer without distortion or breaking. Individually Quick-Frozen Products (IQF) Individually quick-frozen products include lobster, squid, cuttlefish, and several species of finfish. IQF items are more expensive than typical block frozen products. However, for the creation of IQF goods, raw materials of very high quality must be utilized, as well as processed under stringent sanitary circumstances. The items must be packaged in appealing moisture-proof containers and kept at -30°C or below without temperature fluctuation. In Western nations, thermoform moulded trays have become recognized containers for IQF items. Extreme caution is required while transporting IQF items since temperature changes may induce surface melting of individual pieces, causing them to clump together and form lumps. Another severe issue seen during IQF product storage is desiccation, which causes weight loss and surface dehydration.

When the majority of the water in the centre of the food product has been transformed to ice, the freezing process is deemed complete. More than 80% of all water is turned into ice at -15°C. The system is divided into two parts a crystalline phase of pure water and an amorphous domain including solutes and residual water. The viscosity of the interstitial fluid rises fast as the temperature lowers, as a consequence of both an increase in concentration and a reduction in temperature. When the viscosity reaches a very high value, the concentrated phase around the ice crystals solidifies, and the concentrated phase becomes a glass. The glass transition temperature of the maximum freeze concentrated system is the temperature at which this transition occurs. At this temperature, water stops freezing; water that is still unfrozen is referred to as un-freezable water. Freezer burn and recrystallization are the two most significant physical changes that occur during frozen storage of fish. Freezer burn is a surface phenomena that happens when items are incorrectly packaged. The surface of a freezer burn is opaque and dried. It is induced by the sublimation of ice on the muscle's surface.

When the vapour pressure of ice on the surface of fish muscle exceeds the vapour pressure of the cold storage, sublimation occurs. Other elements that contribute to freezer burn include air velocity in the cold store, cold storage temperature, and post mortem muscle state. It may be avoided or lessened by immersing the product in cooled water and enclosing it in airtight container made of water impermeable materials. During frozen storage, the ice crystals in the frozen muscle undergo transformations, resulting in changes in quantity, size, and structure. This is referred to as re-crystallization. Ice crystals in quickly frozen samples expand slowly during frozen storage. After a lengthy period of storage, the diameters of ice crystals in swiftly frozen and slowly frozen samples are almost identical. The causes for the variations in size and form are several. During storage, ice crystals reorient to form a stable shape with a compact structure, a reduced surface to volume ratio, and lower surface energy.

Large ice crystals may form at the cost of tiny crystals in frozen items. Melting-diffusion-refreezing or sublimation-diffusion-refreezing might create this. As a consequence, the average crystal size increases, the number of crystals decreases, and the surface energy of the crystalline phase decreases. This form of re-crystallization is aided by changing temperatures and accompanying vapour pressure gradients. Contacting crystals also fuse together, increasing crystal size, decreasing the number of crystals, and decreasing surface energy. Each frozen product has a threshold temperature below which substantial recrystallization does not occur.

Re-crystallization may be reduced by keeping frozen storage at a low and consistent temperature. Drip Drip refers to the exudates that form as a frozen substance thaws. Fish frequently exudes a significant quantity of drop following freezing, frozen storage, and thawing. Drip might range from 1 to 5% or higher. Drip loss might result in significant financial loss. If the drip loss is substantial, the frozen items seem rather dry and stringy when thawed. nonetheless, the link between texture and drip loss does not have to be linear up to moderate drip loss; nonetheless, at large drip loss, texture loss is directly connected. Though parameters such as the internal pressure created during freezing, the freezing rate, the size and position of ice crystals, and the size and location of ice crystals may impact thaw drip, the key contributors are the quality of the raw material, the abuse of frozen storage, and the level of subsequent denaturation.

When the quality is poor and the frozen product is held for an extended length of time, particularly at a higher frozen storage temperature, the quantity of drip is observed to be large and practically proportionate to the storage period. Slow freezing and the formation of massive extracellular ice crystals also have an impact. Because consistent internal and extracellular ice crystals develop during fast freezing, cell dehydration during freezing is minimal. This generates less cell damage and, as a result, a low drip. The majority of the quality changes that are often ascribed to the freezing process are, in fact, unrelated to that technique. In fact, with the exception of circumstances where freezing negatively affects texture, the frozen product is sometimes nearly indistinguishable from the fresh product when thawed promptly. However, modifications are noticeable after a few months of storage, depending on the product, procedure, packing, and storage temperature. These variations are the result of changes that occur during frozen storage. Warm freezer storage temperatures significantly increase drip. The main reason is that the high ionic strength of the solution induces fast denaturation of proteins, resulting in poor water binding. Because of slower response speeds, this impact is less prominent at colder freezer storage temperatures. The most significant negative consequence of freezing and frozen storage on nutritional content may be a loss of vitamins, particularly ascorbic acid, thiamin, and riboflavin vitamins, which are water soluble and so lose some in the drip.

#### CONCLUSION

Keeping Fish Cool for Freshness"emphasizes the critical role of temperature control in the fisheries sector for maintaining the quality, safety, and shelf life of fish. Chilling and chill storage procedures bridge the gap between the time fish are caught and the time they become seafood items on customers' plates. We have emphasized the complex importance of effective temperature control throughout this presentation. Rapid cooling and sustained chill storage at temperatures below 4°C (39.2°F) are critical in limiting microbial growth, enzymatic reactions, and spoiling microorganism multiplication. This not only keeps seafood fresher longer, but it also adds to food safety by lowering the possibility of bacterial contamination and histamine production. Effective chilling and cold storage have far-reaching ramifications beyond the preservation of sensory qualities like flavour and texture. They decrease postharvest losses, reduce economic waste, boost market competitiveness, and match customer expectations for high-quality, fresh seafood. As we get to the end of this debate, it is evident that the dedication of the fishing sector to following best practices in temperature control is critical. Collaboration among stakeholders, including as fishermen, processors, distributors, and retailers, is critical to maintaining the integrity of marine products from harvest to consumption. By emphasizing appropriate chilling and cool storage, we guarantee that seafood enthusiasts all over the globe may enjoy the best, freshest fish while also helping the fisheries industry's sustainability and profitability.

## **REFERENCES:**

- [1] J. D. Fagan, T. R. Gormley, and M. U. Mhuircheartaigh, "Effect of freeze-chilling, in comparison with fresh, chilling and freezing, on some quality parameters of raw whiting, mackerel and salmon portions," *LWT*, 2003, doi: 10.1016/S0023-6438(03)00084-7.
- [2] P. K. Binsi, G. Ninan, A. A. Zynudheen, R. Neethu, V. Ronda, and C. N. Ravishankar, "Compositional and chill storage characteristics of microwave-blanched sutchi catfish (Pangasianodon hypophthalmus) fillets," *Int. J. Food Sci. Technol.*, 2014, doi: 10.1111/jjfs.12308.
- [3] A. Huidobro, R. Mendes, and M. L. Nunes, "Slaughtering of gilthead seabream (sparus aurata) in liquid ice: Influence on fish quality," *Eur. Food Res. Technol.*, 2001, doi: 10.1007/s002170100378.
- [4] L. H. S. Jensen, J. Nielsen, B. M. Jørgensen, and S. Frosch, "Cod and rainbow trout as freeze-chilledmeal elements," J. Sci. Food Agric., 2010, doi: 10.1002/jsfa.3823.
- [5] N. O. Pessoa, J. A. S. Galvão, F. G. M. De Souza Filho, M. L. N. M. De Sousa, and C. M. S. Sampaio, "Cooling of pirapitinga (Piaractus brachypomus) embryos stored at -10°C," *Zygote*, 2014, doi: 10.1017/S0967199414000057.
- [6] A. Rodríguez, L. Maier, P. Paseiro-Losada, and S. P. Aubourg, "Changes in Sensory and Physical Parameters in Chill-Stored Farmed Coho Salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch)," *J. Aquat. Food Prod. Technol.*, 2016, doi: 10.1080/10498850.2014.913753.
- [7] G. Delgado-Pando, S. Cofrades, C. Ruiz-Capillas, M. Triki, and F. Jiménez-Colmenero, "Enriched n-3 PUFA/konjac gel low-fat pork liver pâté: Lipid oxidation, microbiological properties and biogenic amine formation during chilling storage," *Meat Sci.*, 2012, doi: 10.1016/j.meatsci.2012.06.035.

- [8] R. J. Shakila, B. E. Raj, and N. Felix, "Quality and safety of fish curry processed by sous vide cook chilled and hot filled technology process during refrigerated storage," *Food Sci. Technol. Int.*, 2012, doi: 10.1177/1082013211415177.
- [9] R. Mbarki, N. Ben Miloud, S. Selmi, S. Dhib, and S. Sadok, "Effect of vacuum packaging and low-dose irradiation on the microbial, chemical and sensory characteristics of chub mackerel (Scomber japonicus)," *Food Microbiol.*, 2009, doi: 10.1016/j.fm.2009.05.008.
- [10] J. N. Keay, "Handling and processing mackerel," *Torry Advis. Note*, 2001.

# CHAPTER 7 QUALITY CONTROL AND FOOD SAFETY IN FISH CANNING INDUSTRY

Anil Kumar, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-<u>anils ingh2929@gmail.com</u>

### ABSTRACT:

Bacteriologically, canned fish is divided into two categories, completely processed commercially sterile items and semipreserved products. Canned tuna, salmon, shrimp, crab, sardines, and other fish, as well as fish balls, are examples of completely processed items. The heating method used on these items is intended to kill harmful bacteria as well as a normal quantity of other species. Spore-formers may cause difficulties if they are present in large quantities in the raw material or if they enter the container after processing by incorrect seaming or polluted cooling water. Bacillus stearothermophilus, which survives processing and multiplies after sluggish cooling or storage at high temperatures, may cause flat sour rotting. Clostridium sporogenes may produce swelled or blown cans due to poor processing and contamination from a leaking can. Low pH, salt-water activity (aw) management, particular acid or other preservative, anaerobic conditions, and refrigeration all help to keep semipreserved seafood items stable. Failure to maintain these conditions may allow acidophilic bacteria, yeasts, or moulds to flourish, as well as potentially deadly bacteria. Botulism caused by canned fish products is uncommon.

#### **KEYWORDS:**

Canned, Fish, Food, Salmon, Tuna.

## **INTRODUCTION**

Fish has been put into cans and sold for more than 100 years. However, as freezing technology, transportation, marketing, and storage facilities have improved, the amount of canned fish products has been going down. Canned fish lasts a long time when kept at room temperature. Canned fish is very different from fresh and frozen fish. Canning fish involves heating it to very high temperatures to make sure it is completely safe for sale. The finished product is completely cooked. Salmon, tuna, and herrings which include sardines and anchovies are types of fish that are very valuable for businesses. They are usually preserved and stored in cans. You can bring fish to the canning place in two ways; fresh or frozen. Fresh fish include salmon and herrings, while tuna is usually frozen. Usually, when fish are prepared for being put in cans, they are first beheaded. Then, their insides are taken out, their scales are removed, and they are cleaned. More steps might be needed to process different species and make the final product. For instance, when salmon is put into cans without cooking it, they remove the fins but the skin and bones are kept because they become soft and can be eaten later. Some tuna and certain types of herrings are cooked first before being put into cans. Cooking fish gets rid of extra water and makes the pack look better. The bones, skin, and dark meat parts are taken off from tuna before it is put into cans[1].

Canned fish can have extra things like oils, water, or sauces added to it. Salmon is usually not packed with anything extra. Tuna can be put in vegetable oil, water, or broth when it is packaged. Sardines and herrings can be put in oils, different flavors, or sauces like mustard or tomato. The cans that are used come in different sizes and shapes. Metal cans are closed tightly using machines that press two metal edges together. These machines remove the air

inside the can so that a vacuum is created. Hermetic sealing is very important to ensure that the product stays intact during heating, cooling, and storage. Leaks can make products go bad and put their safety at risk. Canned fish is a type of food that isn't very acidic, so it easily allows microorganisms to grow. Clostridium botulinum is a type of germ that can survive high temperatures and make a very strong poison in canned fish that hasn't been cooked enough or if there are holes in the can. Because of this, the majority of countries have rules that demand a specific amount of time and certain temperatures to eliminate all living bacteria and spores to ensure complete sterilization of products.Cans that are securely closed and packed are heated using steam in a container that has pressure. After they are done being made, cans are cooled down in cold water with chlorine, labeled, and put into containers for shipping[2], [3].

Canned fish can change in a bad way while being heated and afterwards when stored. For instance, the meat can change color if it is processed too much. Struvite is a type of crystal that can form in canned tuna if it is stored for a long time. However, the problem can usually be reduced by using certain food additives like chelating agents. The quality of food may change when it is canned. Clostridium botulinum is a type of bacteria that can cause botulism. Botulism is a serious illness. Aquatic food products have a strong fish smell, and it is often preferred to lessen the perception of these smells to make them taste better for consumers. Cyclodextrins are commonly used to trap bad smells in canned fish products. They can trap the smells by surrounding them with molecules. In one study, the amounts of sulfide compounds in canned fish were reduced from 137. 73 µg % when cyclodextrins were present. Fish oil, which has lots of healthy omega-3 fats, has been added to different foods to make our hearts healthier and lower the chances of getting heart disease. But, the smell of fish oil makes it difficult to use in food or drinks. So, fish oil is usually sold in capsules. Many different materials have been used to package fish oil to make it taste and smell better and keep it from spoiling. These materials include gelatin, whey protein, cyclodextrin, zein protein, chitosan, and ethyl cellulose. Fish oil enclosed in ethyl cellulose has been added to various food items such as flavored gelatin, orange juice, flavored agar gel, yogurt, and peanut butter. No unpleasant taste or smell has been reported during a 3-week period[4], [5].

Fish canning is a pillar of the fish processing industry, having significant implications for the preservation, accessibility, and diversity of marine products. This chapter discusses how fish canning plays an important role in prolonging the shelf life of fish, decreasing food waste, and fulfilling customer desires for convenient and healthful seafood selections. One of the chapter's key goals is to offer an overview of the fish canning process. It all starts with selecting high-quality fish, then cleaning, filleting, and cooking. The canning process, including filling, sealing, and sterilizing, is thoroughly examined. Fish canning yields a wide variety of fish products, ranging from basic canned fillets to complicated dishes using a variety of ingredients and flavours. This chapter goes into the fish canning business. This chapter delves into the stringent quality control procedures that assure the safety and quality of canned seafood products, such as sensory assessment, laboratory testing, and adherence to regulatory criteria. Fish canning has a significant influence on the worldwide fish business, influencing commerce, sustainability, and economic growth.

This chapter addresses the economic and ecological consequences of fish canning, focusing on its role in decreasing post-harvest losses and sustaining fishing communities' livelihoods.Fish canning extends back to the early nineteenth century, having origins in France and the United States. Canning technique was first designed to solve the difficulties of preserving food for lengthy maritime journeys and military battles. It transformed the fishing sector by allowing fish products to be transported to distant markets. Fish canning technique has advanced tremendously over the years. Can design, sealing technologies, and thermal processing innovations have all led to better efficiency, higher product quality, and increased safety. Because of these developments, tinned fish has become a household staple in many homes.

As the demand for seafood has increased, so has the emphasis on sustainability. Fish canning has responded to this changing environment by adding sustainable sourcing techniques and certification schemes such as the Marine Stewardship Council (MSC) and the Aquaculture Stewardship Council (ASC). The selection of high-quality fish is the first step in the procedure. These fish are then cleaned, filleted, and often fried before being canned. The species and preparation procedures used might differ based on the intended final result. Filling cleaned and cooked fish into cans, followed by sealing and heat processing, is at the heart of fish canning. This method successfully removes spoilage bacteria and pathogens, hence prolonging the shelf life of canned fish items.

Canned fish provides an incredible variety of options. It may vary from basic canned fillets in oil or water to complicated meals combining fish with vegetables, spices, and sauces. Because of this adaptability, tinned seafood may accommodate to a broad variety of culinary tastes. A key concern is ensuring the quality and safety of canned seafood products. Throughout the canning process, stringent quality control procedures such as sensory assessment, laboratory testing, and adherence to regulatory requirements are used. Consumer tastes, dietary trends, and environmental concerns drive the worldwide canned seafood business, which is dynamic and ever-changing:Canned fish meets customer desires for convenience by providing ready-to-eat or simple-to-prepare solutions. Its lengthy shelf life and easy preparation make it an appealing alternative for busy homes. Canned seafood products' culinary adaptability allows for a broad variety of recipes and cuisines, from basic salads and sandwiches to gourmet concoctions. This versatility has led to its appeal in a variety of cuisines throughout the globe.

In the canned seafood business, sustainability has emerged as a crucial driver. Consumers are increasingly looking for items that are sustainably sourced, which helps to conserve fish populations and marine habitats. Fish canning has substantial economic and environmental consequences. It decreases post-harvest losses, creates jobs in the processing sector, and aids in the economic growth of fishing towns. The industry must continue to emphasize sustainability by sustainably obtaining seafood, eliminating bycatch, and lowering its environmental impact. Consumer tastes and expectations are changing, with a focus on health-conscious options, clear labelling, and creative product offers. Meeting these requirements will be critical for future success.

Maintaining strict food safety and quality assurance methods is crucial to maintaining customer confidence and market competitiveness. Rising wages and changing dietary habits are driving growing consumption of convenience foods in developing nations, where the canned fish business offers prospects for expansion. This chapter delves into the fish canning industry's sustainability goals and responsible sourcing procedures. It investigates certification schemes, sustainable fisheries management, and the environmental consequences of canned seafood manufacturing. Quality assurance and food safety are fundamental considerations in the canning of fish. The techniques and processes used to guarantee that canned fish products fulfill stringent quality and safety criteria are examined in this chapter. Consumer choices, ecological concerns, technology improvements, and market dynamics will define the future of fish canning. This chapter speculates about the industry's future paths and break throughs.

## DISCUSSION

Canned or tinned fish is fish that has been cooked, sealed in a closed can, and heated. Canning is a way of keeping food fresh for a long time, usually between one to five years. They are usually opened with a tool called a can opener, but sometimes have a pull-tab that allows them to be opened by hand. In the past, lots of cans used to have a key that you turn to open the lid and take off the metal covering. This was especially true for cans of sardines and other similar products.Fish have low levels of acidity that allow microbes to grow easily. From a safety perspective, foods that are less acidic require high temperature sterilization. Cooking at temperatures higher than boiling point needs pressure. Once sterilized, the container stops microorganisms from getting in and multiplying. Besides sterilization, there is no reliable method for preserving something. For instance, the tiny creature Clostridium botulinum can only be killed at temperatures higher than boiling.We need to use preservation techniques to stop things from going bad and make them last longer. They are made to stop bad bacteria and prevent the loss of quality in food. Spoilage bacteria are certain bacteria that make fish smell and taste bad when it spoils[6], [7].

The person who is known as the father of canning is a man named Nicolas Appert from France. In 1795, he started trying out different methods to keep fish fresh in jars. He put containers of fish in water that was very hot. In the beginning of the Napoleonic Wars, the French government said they would give 12,000 francs to anyone who could find a way to keep lots of food from going bad that was both cheap and worked well. During that time, bigger armies needed more and better food on a regular basis. Appert entered his invention and received an award in January 1810. We didn't know why food didn't spoil back then, because it took another 50 years for Louis Pasteur to show that microbes cause food to spoil. However, transporting glass containers caused difficulties. Soon after, Peter Durand, a British inventor and merchant, came up with his own method, this time using tin cans. This invention revolutionized the way food is preserved and is known as the modern method of canning.In the 1830s, people in Scotland used canning to keep fish fresh until they could sell it. In the 1840s, people in Maine and New Brunswick started putting salmon in cans. People in California and the northwest US, especially near the Columbia River, came up with the idea of canning salmon for business purposes. They were not important in the United States. The Atlantic coast. By the 1940s, the main canning factories had moved to Alaska.

A salmon cannery is a place where salmon are put into cans for selling. It is a company that was the first to put fish in cans. It started on the west coast of North America in the 1800s and then spread to other places where they could easily get salmon.Before putting fish in cans, salt was used to keep them fresh. Cobb says that in the early 1800s, the Russians sold salted salmon that they caught in Alaska in St. Petersburg After the establishment of Fort Stikine, the Northwest Fur Company began selling preserved salmon from the Columbia River. Then, it joined with the Hudson's Bay Company, and the salmon was sold in Australia, China, Hawaii, Japan, and the eastern United States. Afterwards, some places that used to salt salmon were changed into places where they put salmon in cans. The first big salmon factory in North America was started in 1864 on a boat in the Sacramento River close to West Sacramento. It was created by the four Hume brothers and their partner Andrew S. The Hapgood company moved their business to a new location on the Columbia River in 1866. The story of salmon canneries in North America is shown by their history on the Columbia River. In just a few years, each of the Hume brothers had their own cannery. In 1872, Robert Hume had many places where they preserved food in cans. They hired Chinese people who were willing to work for low pay to do the canning work.

They also had local Native Americans do the fishing. By 1883, salmon canneries were the most important businesses on the Columbia River. They had 1,700 fishing boats that caught 15,000 tonnes of salmon every year. These canneries mainly processed Chinook salmon.Sardines or pilchards can be preserved in various ways and put in cans. At the fish factory, the fish are cleaned, their heads are taken off, and the fish are cooked using either deep-frying or steam-cooking. Then, they are dried. They are put into olive, sunflower, or soybean oil, water, or into a tomato, chilli, or mustard sauce. The fish labeled as canned sardines in supermarkets might actually be a different type of fish called sprat or round herrings. Fish come in different sizes depending on the type of fish. Sardines that are of good quality should have their head and gills taken out before they are packed. Sometimes, they may also have their insides removed before they are packed, especially if they are big sardines. If the fish haven't gotten rid of their undigested or partially digested food or feces, they should be kept in a tank for a while until they do. Sardines are usually packed tightly in a small can. The can is made with a score to make it easy to open. You can open the can using a pull tab or a key that is attached to the bottom of the can. So, it is easy to carry around and won't spoil, and it is a complete meal. The way sardines are tightly packed in a can has made people use the phrase packed like sardines to describe situations where people or things are crowded together, like in a bus or subway car. Sardines is a game for kids where one person hides and others try to find them. When someone finds the hidden person, they join them in the hiding spot. This continues until only one person is left to hide, and then they become the next one to hide.

Tuna can be put in cans with vegetable oils that you can eat, in saltwater, in regular water, or in different sauces. In the US, canned tuna is sometimes referred to as tuna fish. Only albacore tuna can legally be sold as white meat tuna in cans. In other countries, yellowfin tuna is also acceptable for canning. In the early 1980s, canned tuna in Australia was likely made from southern bluefin tuna. However, starting in 2003, it was usually made from yellowfin, skipjack, or tongol tuna, which was labeled as northern bluefin. Tunas are often caught in faraway places from where they are prepared for canning. If they are not stored properly in the meantime, they can go bad. Tuna is usually cleaned out by hand and then cooked ahead of time for a set time ranging from 45 minutes to three hours. After the fish are caught, they are washed and cut into neat slices. Some of the slices are put into cans and sealed, while the darker meat, which has blood in it, is sometimes put into separate cans for pet food. This pet food can be given to cats or dogs. Then the closed can is warmed up for 2-4 hours. The method of cooking called retort kills bacteria, but it doesn't get rid of histamine which can cause bad tastes. The international standard says that the most histamine there can be is 200 milligrams for every kilogram. A study in Australia looked at 53 types of plain canned tuna and found that none of them had too much histamine, even though some didn't taste very good. The amount of healthy omega-3 oils in canned tuna can change a lot because of how it's made.

Canned fish is considered to be a type of food that has low acidity. This means that the companies that package the fish have to follow certain rules and regulations that were mentioned earlier in this chapter. Fish products have been stopped because they did not tell people if there was salt added or what kind of oil was used as the packing material. If allowed, we may use artificial colors or chemical preservatives in our product. If we do use them, we will clearly state this on the label. Artificial coloring is not allowed if it hides any flaws or lower quality in a product or if it makes the product look better or more valuable than it really is.Using too much packing material when packaging canned fish and fish products has led to many instances of being detained. If there are anchovies in oil, the container should have as many fish as possible and as little oil as possible. It doesn't matter if

oil costs the same or even more than fish, this principle stays the same. Canned lobster paste and similar products that have too much empty space inside the packaging have been found to be misleadingly packaged. Too much empty space between the top of the can and the food inside[6], [8]. Canned Pacific Salmon must meet specific quality and packaging requirements. The standards tell us how to label food and what packaging styles are allowed. Tiny, salty fish called anchovies. Anchovy products should be made from a type of fish called Engraulidae. Some other types of small fish that look similar to anchovies, like small herring and herring-like fish, are not actually anchovies. The item needs to be made from good ingredients and the salting or curing process should be done in a way that prevents it from going bad.Sardines are a type of fish. The word 'sardines' can be used on the labels of canned products made from small fish similar to herring. The sea herring, European pilchards, and brisling, or sprat, are often put into small cans and called sardines. The words 'brisling sardines' and 'sild sardines' are allowed to be used on cans to describe small brisling and herring. Big herring cannot be called sardines. These canned products should not have any signs of rotting, like bloated fish, and should be processed well to avoid spoilage from microorganisms[9], [10]. Fish are called 'feedy fish' when they have eaten a lot of food before they are caught. These types of fish get worse quickly until their insides and thin part of the belly fall apart, which causes a distinct torn look called 'belly-blown'. Tuna A standard of identity tells us the type of fish that can be canned and labeled as tuna. There is also a standard for how much tuna needs to be in each can. The standards include different types of tuna packages such as solid pack, chunk or chunk style, flakes, and grated tuna. There is also a plan for different types of packaging material, specific spices and flavors, labels for colors, and ways to measure the amount of stuff in containers. The rules for how much tuna should be in a can vary depending on how the tuna is shaped and the size of the can. The canned fish Sarda chilensis, which is also called bonito or bonita, cannot be called tuna because it's not actually a tuna. Instead, it needs to be called bonito or bonita on the label. The type of fish called Seriola dorsalis, also known as yellowtail, cannot be called tuna.

#### CONCLUSION

Canning fish is an important method used in the seafood industry to preserve fish for a long time while keeping its nutrients and taste. This summary focuses on how this method is really important in making sure that seafood is available all year, avoiding wasting food, and fulfilling what consumers want in terms of convenience and quality. Canning is a way to keep fish fresh by sealing them in containers and heating them to kill bacteria and other harmful things that can make them go bad. This way of doing things makes fish products last longer and be safe to eat for people all over the world. The summary recognizes that canned fish can be made into different products, like basic canned fillets or fancy recipes that include different ingredients and flavors. These canned seafood products are designed for different tastes in cooking and are easy to use in making meals. Additionally, the summary focuses on the strict rules and procedures followed by the canning industry to make sure seafood products are safe and tasty for customers. In short, putting fish in cans is very important for the seafood industry because it helps the environment, reduces wasted food, and makes fish available across the world. This talk explores how seafood is preserved in cans, the different types of seafood products made this way, ways to make sure the products are good quality, and why it's important for people to have healthy and easy-to-use options for seafood.

# **REFERENCES:**

 A. Dapena-Mora, J. L. Campos, A. Mosquera-Corral, and R. Méndez, "Anammox process for nitrogen removal from anaerobically digested fish canning effluents," in *Water Science and Technology*, 2006. doi: 10.2166/wst.2006.429.

- [2] R. O. Cristóvão, V. M. S. Pinto, A. Gonçalves, R. J. E. Martins, J. M. Loureiro, and R. A. R. Boaventura, "Fish canning industry wastewater variability assessment using multivariate statistical methods," *Process Saf. Environ. Prot.*, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.psep.2016.03.016.
- [3] D. H. Ndahawali *et al.*, "Studi Proses Pengalengan Ikan di PT. Sinar Pure Foods International Bitung," *Bul. Matric*, 2016.
- [4] A. Sutrisno, A. K. Wardani, and L. Ratnawati, "Isolation and identification of lipiddegrading bacteria from fish (Sardinella longiceps) canning wastewater," *Int. J. Adv. Sci. Eng. Inf. Technol.*, 2016, doi: 10.18517/ijaseit.6.4.813.
- [5] B. Rianto, M. Roro, L. Ekowanti, W. Sulistyowati, and T. Sudarto, "Development Of Fish Canning Industry On Household Scale With Hermetic Technology Application At Prigi, Trenggalek," *IOSR J. Humanit. Soc. Sci. (IOSR-JHSS*, 2017.
- [6] S. F. Corsino, M. Capodici, C. Morici, M. Torregrossa, and G. Viviani, "Simultaneous nitritation-denitritation for the treatment of high-strength nitrogen in hypersaline wastewater by aerobic granular sludge," *Water Res.*, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.watres.2015.10.041.
- [7] J. Zufía and G. Aurrekoetxea, "Integrated processing of fish canning industry wastewater: The EFLUCON project," *J. Aquat. Food Prod. Technol.*, 2002, doi: 10.1300/J030v11n03\_22.
- [8] M. Choiron, "Possibilities of Government's Intervention on Canned Fish Industry based on LCA Approach.," *KnE Life Sci.*, 2016, doi: 10.18502/kls.v3i3.383.
- [9] T. Estiasih, E. Trowulan, and W. D. Rukmi, "Fortification of Sardine Fish Oil from By-product of Canning Processing into Beef Meatball and Chicken Nugget," J. Pengolah. Has. Perikan. Indones., 2017, doi: 10.17844/jphpi.v20i1.16504.
- [10] D. W. Dari, M. Astawan, N. Wulandari, and S. H. Suseno, "Karakteristik Minyak Ikan Sardin (Sardinella sp.) Hasil Pemurnian Bertingkat," J. Pengolah. Has. Perikan. Indones., 2017.

# CHAPTER 8 FROM CATCH TO SPREAD: CRAFTING FISH PASTE PRODUCTS

Kusum Farswan, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-kusumfarswan. 14feb@gmail.com

# **ABSTRACT:**

Fish paste products are a type of food that can be used in many different ways and are good for people. This summary talks about how fish paste is very important in making tasty and healthy seafood dishes that people with different tastes enjoy.Fish paste production is when fish are turned into a kind of soft or thick liquid by grinding, blending, and mixing them together. These products come in different forms, like fish pastes that can be spread or used as fillings. Some recipes are simple, while others are more complicated, with different ingredients, spices, and textures. The summary recognizes that fish paste is good for you because it contains important nutrients like protein, fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. Moreover, fish paste is well-liked for adding more flavor and maintaining the original taste and texture of fish when cooking. Additionally, the summary highlights that fish paste products are popular around the world and are used in many different types of cuisine. This shows how versatile and diverse seafood-based recipes can be.In summary, fish paste products are important in cooking because they provide easy, healthy, and tasty seafood choices. This discussion talks about how fish paste is made, the good things it does for our bodies, how it can be used in cooking, and how important it is around the world. We'll also talk about why people still like it and how we can come up with new ways to use it in cooking.

## **KEYWORDS:**

Fish, Protein, Paste, Products, Salt.

### **INTRODUCTION**

Proteins are hydrolyzed or broken down into their components, peptides and amino acids, during fermentation. The use of salt in various but generally significant levels, comparable to those used for pickled fish, prevents the formation of the distinctive aromas and tastes of putrefaction. After salting, the items are not dried. In other cases, carbohydrates may be added, resulting in the creation of acids that serve to create a distinct taste and aroma while also providing further preservation. Products in which the fish is reduced to a paste for example, ngapi in Myanmar, pra-hoc in Cambodia, belachan/trassi in Malaysia/Indonesia, and bagoong in the Philippines. Few of these products and techniques are available outside of South-East Asia, and traditional traditions evolved over many years, as with other ways of fish curing, prevail. These differ greatly from place to place, based on local taste, raw ingredients availability, and processing care. Many traditional items are of high quality, and they often depend on old abilities that are difficult to replicate using current processing techniques. Due to consumer acceptance issues, it is unknown if fermented fish products might be effectively introduced into other locations. The fermented products of South-East Asia are many and diverse, and this overview can only cover a few of the most significant goods and techniques[1], [2].

Anchovies are the fish species utilized in makassar. These are topped with salt and set in clay pots. After three to four days, angkhak, a red rice product, is combined with the fish and salt. Angkhak is prepared from rice fermented with a Chinese mould organism. Ragi a Japanese

dish consisting of yeast and rice flour is then combined with spices. The liquid becomes crimson after a few days and is then packaged in glass bottles for distribution. In most situations, makassar fish has 66% moisture, 16% protein, 1% fat, and 17% ash.Buro, a rice-fish product manufactured in the Philippines, is similar to makassar in that it is blended with angkhak. Milk fish (Chanoschanos), a regularly grown brackish water fish of the area, is often utilized in the manufacturing of buro. Dalag (Ophiocephalus spp.) and other freshwater species may also be employed.The fish or shrimp are crushed with salt to form a paste in this way of processing. The paste is then sun dried before being packed in sealed containers for maturation. Moisture concentrations vary from 35 to 50%, resulting in about half of the water being lost during processing. Fish pastes provide up a significant amount of many people's protein intake in South-East Asia, particularly among the poorest parts of the population. Many fish pastes include carbohydrate-rich ingredients such as fermented wheat, bran, or rice[3], [4].

This product's raw material is little anchovies or shrimp ideally small planktonic varieties that give the product a more natural pink tint). Depending on the kind of goods, there are many techniques for producing ngapi. The fish or shrimp are rinsed in sea water and then sun dried for two days in one technique that employs one part salt to three parts half dried fish. The fish is then combined with half of the needed salt in a bamboo basket. This combination is crushed for many hours until it becomes a paste. The paste is then packed into wooden tubs or cartons, taking care to eliminate any air bubbles. Fermentation lasts 7 days, after which the paste is removed and crushed for three hours, during which time the remaining salt is incorporated in. The mixture is then spread out in the sun for 3-5 hours to dry. The substance is repackaged into tubs and fermented for approximately a month. After the third pounding, it may be sold in cellophane or brown paper. To enhance the colouring, artificial dyes are often used. However, their usage is not advised since some of them may be harmful. The substance is believed to keep for around 2 years when kept anaerobically in tubs or earthenware pots. A shrimp or fish ngapi's typical composition is 43% moisture, 20% protein, 1% ammonia, 2% fat, and 22% salt.

Bagoong is a popular preserved fish product in the Philippines, where it is a staple diet in many areas. The product is also exported to the vast ethnic Filipino population in the United States. Patis, a byproduct of bagoong, is an expelled liquor from the fermenting process that is comparable to Vietnamese nuoc-mam.Bagoong has a pasty texture and a reddish tint, as well as a somewhat fishy cheese-like aroma. It may be made using fish from the genera Stolephorus, Sardinella, and Decapterus, as well as tiny shrimp. A technique in which the fish are cleaned with clean water, put in a concrete or wooden vat, and thoroughly mixed with salt. The salt-to-fish ratio is around one-third. The fish and salt combination is then placed to earthenware jars, oil drums, or cement tanks and either sealed immediately or covered with cheese cloth for five days before sealing. After one week in the sun, the product is transported to five gallon cans in sealed containers. These cans are then sealed by welding the lids together, and the product is left to ferment for another three months to a year. The product has a long storage life and a normal composition of not less than 40% total solids, 12.5% protein, and 20-25% sodium chloride[5], [6].

Fish sauces are water-extracted solutions of completely fermented fish that are used in the same way as soya bean sauce is. Indeed, the production and ultimate composition of many fish sauces are comparable to that of soy sauce, being essentially a mixture of protein breakdown products peptides, amino acids, amines, and so on in conjunction with high salt concentrations. Because of their high salt content, fish sauces may have minimal nutritional benefit. However, consumption is unexpectedly high in certain locations, and in Viet Nam,

the sauce nuoc-mam may supply up to 20% of daily protein intake. Fish sacues are high in hydrolyzed proteins and minerals such as sodium chloride and calcium saltsand may serve as a major calcium source in the diet.Nuoc-mam is by far the most significant fish sauce in South East Asia, with tens of thousands of tonnes produced annually, mostly in the coastal areas of Vietnam, Thailand, and Cambodia. A high-quality nuoc-mam is a very stable, transparent dark brown or amber liquid with a unique aroma and taste. However, lesser grade nuoc-mam may have a disagreeable scent and a shorter storage life. Additional additives are often added to darken the liquid and enhance the taste of the product. These include caramel, roasted rice, molasses, and roasted or boiled maize. Because of its extensive distribution and use, legislation has been enacted in various countries to ensure that quality criteria are met.

The fish species utilized to make nuoc-mam are typically from the genera Stolephorus, Engraulis, Dorosoma, and Decapterus, as well as clupeoids. Nuoc-mam may also be made using shrimp. The fermentation process is identical to that of bagoong, except that the result is the exudate rather than the solid fraction. The real technique differs depending on the size. Whole fish are kneaded softly by hand in small scale operations, combined with salt in clay pots, and buried in the ground for a few months. The transparent liquid that sits on top and is gently decanted out is the nuoc-mam. In large-scale processes, the fish are placed in wood vats, with salt sprinkled between layers. For this, 4 parts salt to 6 parts fish should be used. After three days, the blood pickle is permitted to trickle out gently into another recipient during a three-day period. The fish are then trodden with their feet until a flat surface is achieved. The latter is covered with coconut leaves, on top of which are two semi-circular bamboo trays packed snugly. The nuoc-boi is then poured back over the fish, creating a 10 cm liquid layer on top of the trays. The fish is then allowed to develop for four to a year, depending on the species. The pickle that is run off after maturing is the best nuoc-mam. The trays and leaves are removed, and new salt is sprinkled on top of the fish residue. To achieve a poorer grade nuoc-mam, fresh brine is also added.

A variety of different fish sauces are also mass-produced in South-East Asia. Patis is made using the bagoong method and is comparable to nuoc-mam. Nam-pla is manufactured in Thailand, using Stolephorus spp. being the favoured fish species. The latter is made in the same way as nuoc-mam, but with less salt. Depending on the quality needed, the procedure might take anywhere from 6 to 36 months to complete. Small anchovies are used to make budu sauce in Malaysia. In earthenware pots with tamarind and palm sugar, 1 part salt and 5 parts fish are mixed together. After 6 months of fermentation, a black, sweet-smelling sauce is produced. The product has a storage life of at least two years. There are nearly as many traditional packing techniques for fermented fish as there are ways to make it. Several of them have previously been discussed, such as earthenware pots, oil cans, drums, glass bottles, wooden barrels, and so on. Previously, the latter were utilized because of their cheap cost, but presently, plastic containers are replacing conventional containers. The most significant purpose of better packaging for fermented fish products is that it should be airtight, assisting in the development and maintenance of the anaerobic conditions necessary for optimum fermentation and storage. Of course, all containers should be completely cleaned before use. Because the primary benefit of these items is their cheap cost, the kind of packaging is inevitably limited. For higher-quality items, glass bottles are utilized, and vacuum packed sealed foil/plastic laminated product pouches may be employed in the future.

# DISCUSSION

Surimi is a type of fish paste made from fish without bones, which is then used to create fake crab legs and other types of seafood. To keep it from spoiling, the paste is mixed with substances called cryoprotectants like sugar, sorbitol, and phosphates and then frozen. To

create the end product, the frozen paste is defrosted, mixed with starch, and squeezed out onto a belt to create a thin layer. The conveyor belt carries the film into a hot oven that changes the fish protein and cooks the starch. The film is rolled up in lines, made into a specific shape, given colors, and then cut. The product can either be frozen or put in the refrigerator, depending on how it needs to be distributed. 400 years ago, people used potato and tapioca starch in surimi products because they helped create a strong and stretchy texture, similar to seafood. Frozen distribution has made the use of a type of tapioca starch that is very stable and slightly connected with other chemicals popular. This type of starch can be used by itself or combined with regular tapioca starch. Modified waxy maize products and unmodified corn starch are used to make things easier to cut. The gel strengthening power of starch is related to the thickness of the starch paste.

Fish paste products are a separate segment within the fish market, distinguished by their diversity, convenience, and culinary innovation potential. This chapter discusses the importance of fish paste in contemporary cuisine, highlighting its function in addressing a wide range of customer tastes and culinary requirements. This chapter's major goal is to offer an overview of fish paste manufacture. It delves into the processes and procedures used to convert fish into semi-liquid or semi-solid forms, ranging from simple fish pastes to complicated dishes. Products made from fish paste have a good nutritional profile, including high-quality protein, vital fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. The nutritional advantages of fish paste and its function in supporting a healthy diet are discussed in this chapter.A distinguishing quality of fish paste is its culinary adaptability. This chapter demonstrates the versatility of fish paste in making varied seafood-based recipes, ranging from spreads and fillings to elements in various cuisines. Geographical limits do not apply to fish paste products. This chapter investigates their worldwide appeal and assimilation into many culinary traditions, emphasizing their ability to improve the flavours of regional foods.Fish paste has a long history, having origins in ancient culinary traditions from throughout the world. Fish paste was traditionally created by grinding and fermenting fish as a way to preserve and use seafood[7], [8].

The manufacture of fish paste has progressed greatly throughout time. Modern technology and manufacturing techniques have shortened the process while preserving the inherent flavours and textures of the seafood. In different regions of the globe, fish paste has taken on distinct shapes and flavours. This chapter delves into regional variants and their distinct culinary contributions, ranging from Thai Nam Prik to Japanese Kamaboko. The procedure starts with the careful selection of appropriate fish species, which are then cleaned, filleted, and prepared for further processing. Depending on flavour, texture, and regional preferences, several species may be used. Fish paste may be made in a variety of ways, including grinding, mixing, and emulsification. Each process has distinct qualities that influence the texture and consistency of the finished product. The inclusion of ingredients and spices is an important step in the manufacture of fish paste. This chapter looks at the many flavour profiles that may be created by combining herbs, spices, vegetables, and other components. Chilling, freezing, or canning are important preservation strategies for prolonging the shelf life of fish paste products. The technique of preservation chosen is determined by criteria such as product kind, intended usage, and market demand.

Fish paste products are high in nutrients, making them an excellent supplement to a healthy diet. This section delves into the nutritional benefits of fish paste, focusing on its contribution to high-quality protein consumption, important omega-3 fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. Fish paste is a high-quality protein source that is necessary for development, repair, and general health. It's a great alternative to meat-based protein sources. Omega-3 fatty acids,

notably eicosapentaenoic acid (EPA) and docosahexaenoic acid (DHA), are plentiful in fish paste products. These important fatty acids provide several health advantages, including cardiovascular support and improved cognitive function.Fish paste contains vital vitamins and minerals such vitamin B12, iodine, selenium, and zinc. These nutrients are essential for many body activities, including metabolism and immune system maintenance.Fish paste products are often low in saturated fat, making them a heart-healthy option that follows dietary recommendations for lowering the risk of cardiovascular disease.The culinary diversity of fish paste has no boundaries, enabling chefs and amateur cooks to produce a variety of delightful dishes. Fish paste is a popular condiment for sandwiches, crackers, and bread. It may also be used to flavour sushi rolls, dumplings, and pastries.

Fish paste is used as a significant component in soups, stews, and hot pots around the world, infusing these meals with a particular umami-rich flavour. Fish paste may be used in stir-fry recipes to provide a savouryflavour to meals with veggies, noodles, and sauces. Modern chefs often use fish paste to produce fusion meals that combine several culinary traditions, resulting in unusual and interesting flavour combinations. Fish paste products are popular in many culinary traditions across the globe, providing depth and flavour to regional dishes. Fish paste is a common ingredient in Southeast Asian meals such as Thai Nam Prik, Vietnamese Bun Cha, and Filipino Bagoong. Fish paste is used in foods such as Kamaboko, a popular steamed fish cake, and Surimi-based items such as imitation crab.In Scandinavia, fish paste is used as a spread or filler in dishes such as Swedish KallesKaviar and Norwegian Leverpostei. Because of the versatility of fish paste products, they have been integrated into cuisines all around the globe, enabling chefs to experiment and create new meals. As it adapts to changing customer tastes and market dynamics, the fish paste business has both problems and opportunities. As the demand for fish paste develops, responsible sourcing and sustainable fishing techniques are becoming more important in order to protect fish populations and marine ecosystems. Consumers are increasingly looking for items that are healthy, ethically sourced, and ecologically sustainable. Producers of fish paste must react by emphasizing openness, sustainability, and product innovation[9], [10].

Maintaining strong food safety and quality assurance processes is critical to ensuring customer confidence and regulatory compliance. Incorporating sophisticated technology into the manufacture of fish paste may improve efficiency, uniformity, and quality.In the manufacture of fish paste, sustainability is a major problem. This chapter delves into the environmental, economic, and ethical aspects of sustainable sourcing and production. Responsible fishing techniques, including as selective harvesting, eliminating bycatch, and minimizing the effect on non-target species and ecosystems, are the foundation of sustainable fish paste production.Certification programs such as the Marine Stewardship Council (MSC) and the Aquaculture Stewardship Council (ASC) play an important role in encouraging sustainable seafood procurement and production, including fish paste. Aquaculture operations may help supply the increased demand for fish paste while also relieving strain on wild fish supplies. Water quality, feed efficiency, and disease control are all priorities in sustainable aquaculture methods. Energy-efficient processing facilities, careful waste disposal, and water management methods are among the efforts being made to lessen the environmental effect of fish paste manufacturing.Fair labour standards, employees' rights, and social responsibility within the sector are all ethical factors in the manufacture of fish paste. To continuously offer high-quality fish paste products, quality assurance is crucial.

This chapter digs into the safeguards and systems in place to ensure product integrity. Sensory assessment is an important element of quality control that involves trained panels that evaluate features such as taste, texture, and appearance. To assure safety and quality,

laboratory testing includes microbiological analysis, chemical testing, and product shelf-life research.Food safety norms and standards must be followed in order to retain customer confidence and safeguard public health. The Hazard Analysis and Critical manage Points (HACCP) system is used in the manufacture of fish paste to identify, monitor, and manage possible risks. The culinary diversity of fish paste shows through in both classic and modern cuisines. This chapter includes a variety of recipes from many cultures to demonstrate the product's flexibility. Fish paste may be used to produce delicious spreads and dips for bread, crackers, and veggies. Thai Nam Prik and Japanese Narezushi are two classic examples. Sushi and sashimi benefit from fish pastes like as Kamaboko and Surimi, which improve the appearance and flavour of these classic meals.For their particular flavour and texture, fish paste products are used in soups and stews all over the globe. Excellent examples are Filipino Sinigang and Korean SundubuJijgae. Chefs are increasingly experimenting with fish paste in order to produce fusion meals that push the bounds of conventional culinary boundaries, resulting in novel flavour combinations. Consumer preferences, such as an emphasis on health, sustainability, and ethical sourcing, will impact the future of fish paste manufacturing. Sustainable sourcing will be prioritized, with a focus on environmentally friendly fishing techniques and aquaculture. Advanced processing, packaging, and quality control technologies will improve the efficiency, uniformity, and safety of fish paste manufacturing. The culinary world will continue to investigate the potential of fish paste in the creation of new meals that cater to changing preferences. The last chapter summarizes the main points raised throughout the discussion of fish paste products. It emphasizes fish paste's ongoing popularity and variety in world cuisine, as well as its nutritional advantages and culinary uses. The chapter also discusses the industry's difficulties and prospects, with a particular emphasis on sustainability, quality assurance, and fulfilling changing customer expectations. Finally, it is evident that fish paste products are positioned to remain a dynamic and vital component of the culinary scene, providing a plethora of options for chefs, home cooks, and seafood fans alike.

## CONCLUSION

To sum up, our conversation about Fish Paste Products has given us a better understanding of the diverse and important group of products found in the seafood industry. Fish paste products have become popular all over the world as a tasty and convenient option. They have many benefits like being easy to use, delicious, and nutritious. In this conversation, we talked about how fish paste products are made, the good stuff they have for our health, and different ways we can use them in cooking. These seafood dishes can be used as spreads, fillings, or ingredients in many different recipes. People from all over the world enjoy them because they can be prepared in various ways and are very versatile. Fish paste products have lots of good stuff in them like protein, fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. These things are important for a healthy diet. In addition, they are good at keeping the natural taste and texture of fish, which makes them a great choice for making food taste better. In conclusion, fish paste products have found a special place in the world of cooking. Their lasting popularity and ability to be creative make them an exciting part of modern cooking. Fish paste products are used in traditional dishes or in new and creative recipes. They make food taste better and are good for you. They are also easy to use and give you different seafood options.

## **REFERENCES:**

[1] K. M. I. Bashir, J. S. Kim, J. H. An, J. H. Sohn, and J. S. Choi, "Natural Food Additives and Preservatives for Fish-Paste Products: A Review of the Past, Present, and Future States of Research," *Journal of Food Quality*. 2017. doi: 10.1155/2017/9675469.

- [2] K. Yamazaki, T. Tashiro, S. Shirahama, J. Y. Jun, and Y. Kawai, "Growth inhibition of spore-forming bacteria in fish-paste products by Nisin," *Nippon Shokuhin Kagaku Kogaku Kaishi*, 2014, doi: 10.3136/nskkk.61.70.
- [3] T. Hidaka, T. Kirigaya, M. Kamijo, Y. Suzuki, and T. Kawamura, "Behavior of Potassium Bromate Added to Bread and Fish Paste Products During Preparation," J. Food Hyg. Soc. Japan, 1983, doi: 10.3358/shokueishi.24.383.
- [4] Y. Hamada, E. Genka, M. Ohira, Y. Nagashima, and K. Shiomi, "Allergenicity of fish meat paste products and surimi from walleye pollack," *J. Food Hyg. Soc. Japan*, 2000, doi: 10.3358/shokueishi.41.38.
- [5] Y. Fukuda, "Processing technology for walleye pollock: Surimi innovation," *Fisheries Science*. 2014. doi: 10.1007/s12562-014-0724-z.
- [6] A. Giri, K. Osako, A. Okamoto, and T. Ohshima, "Olfactometric characterization of aroma active compounds in fermented fish paste in comparison with fish sauce, fermented soy paste and sauce products," *Food Res. Int.*, 2010, doi: 10.1016/j.foodres.2010.01.012.
- [7] T. Hidaka, T. Kirigaya, M. Kamijo, Y. Suzuki, and T. Kawamura, "Determination of Potassium Bromate by Anion Exchange Resin Column Separation Followed by Colorimetry," J. Food Hyg. Soc. Japan, 1983, doi: 10.3358/shokueishi.24.376.
- [8] K. Kido, T. Sakuma, and T. Watanabe, "Gas chromatographic analysis of formaldehyde in fish-paste products," *Eisei kagaku*, 1980, doi: 10.1248/jhs1956.26.224.
- [9] A. Freije, "Fatty acid compositions of raw fish white sardinella (Oom), fish paste (Tareeh), and fish sauce (Mehiawh): Fermented fish products rich in polyunsaturated fatty acids," *Bahrain Med. Bull.*, 2017, doi: 10.12816/0047768.
- [10] M. Yoon, J. S. Kim, D. Kim, J. Jo, and S. Cho, "Optimization of the processing conditions for the preparation of surimi products containing rice flour," *Fish. Aquat. Sci.*, 2014, doi: 10.5657/FAS.2014.0167.

# CHAPTER 9 EXPLORING THE SCIENCE OF FISH CURING: METHODS OF FISH PRESERVING

Kuldeep Mishra, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-<u>mishraypikukleep@gmail.com</u>

# **ABSTRACT:**

Curing is a very old and traditional way to keep fish fresh for a longer time. These technologies are affordable and can be chosen by many different communities. But, a big problem with the usual way of doing things is that there are no set rules being followed, which affects the quality of the finished products. Furthermore, people tend to think that drying or salting is a second choice for preserving low-quality or less valuable types. Efforts to handle fish properly, improve drying and packaging methods, and provide helpful information can help more people use cured fish products in the seafood industry. Fish curing means preserving fish using different methods, other than keeping it cold or putting it in a can. This involves drying, salting, smoking, pickling, and marinating fish. It also includes using different combinations of these methods and preserving fish through fermentation. Dried fish is a popular and traditional food in many countries because it can be stored for a long time, has a unique taste and texture, and is good for your health. Typically, types of groundfish like cod, saithe, haddock, ling, blue ling, and tusk are used for salting. This includes light and heavy salting methods, mainly because fish muscle doesn't have a lot of fat. Certain types of fish, like herring, sardine, capelin, blue whiting, mackerel, salmon, trout, and arctic char, have more fat in them. These types of fish are better for smoking or marinating.

## **KEYWORDS:**

Curing, Fish, Drying, Salt, Smoking.

## **INTRODUCTION**

Curing fish may be done in a variety of ways, including drying, salting, smoking, marinating, combining these processes, and fermenting. Curing is a centuries-old preservation practice. Despite the fact that curing has evolved throughout time, it remains basically the same in essence. Because white fish have less lipids, they are normally kept by salting, while fatty pelagic species are often preserved by smoking and marinating owing to their high fat content. Although the methods and/or equipment used in salting and smoking have changed, the marinating and fermentation processes continue to follow historic traditions that are very strongly related to certain geographical locations. Salting is one of the oldest techniques of preserving seafood. Salting is often done alone, in conjunction with drying, or as a pretreatment for smoking. A adequate amount of common salt in fish may prevent or significantly limit bacterial activity. When fish is immersed in a strong solution of salt that is stronger than the solution of salt in the fish tissue, salt is penetrated into the fish flesh. When the salt content of the fish matches that of the surrounding medium, penetration is complete. This is referred to as osmosis. It is based on many aspects such as diffusion and biochemical changes in various fish components. By lowering water activity, this method aids in the preservation of fish[1], [2].

Most spoilage bacteria will be inhibited by a salt concentration of 6-10% in the tissue, as well as the removal of some water from the tissue during the salting process. When fish are salted before drying, less water is required to preserve them. A water concentration of 35-45%, depending on the quantity of salt present, can often prevent or significantly inhibit bacterial activity. Salt: Origin and Properties In its purest form, common salt is sodium chloride (NaCl). However, depending on the source and method of manufacturing, practically all commercial salts include various degrees of contaminants. Common salt is classified into two types based on its source and method of production: solar salt and sea salt. Solar salt is produced by the evaporation of sea or salt lake waters by the action of the sun and wind. Brine evaporated salts are made from subsurface salt deposits that are brought to the surface in solution and then heat evaporated. Rock salt is collected as natural deposits from inner rock mines and is processed to varied degrees of fineness without being purified.

Chemical composition Commercial salts differ greatly in composition, with top grade salt comprising up to 99.9% sodium chloride and poor quality salt containing just 80% sodium chloride. Commercial salts' principal chemical impurities include calcium and magnesium chlorides and sulphates, sodium sulphate and carbonate, and residues of copper and iron. In addition to these, pollutants such as dust, sand, and water may be present in salt. The presence of calcium and magnesium chlorides, even in trace amounts, slows the entry of salt into the meat, thereby increasing the pace of deterioration. Furthermore, magnesium chloride is hygroscopic and absorbs water, making it more difficult to dry and keep the fish dry. Calcium and magnesium salts provide a whiter coloration but have a harsh flavour. The customer often expects a white tint in salted fish items, and modest amounts of calcium and magnesium compounds in the salt are typically seen as desirable. Excessive amounts, on the other hand, result in a harsh tasting and brittle dried product, which may pose issues during packing and distribution[3], [4].

Copper traces in salt may cause the surface of salted fish to become brown, reducing the attractiveness of dried fish. Microbiological purity Many commercial salts, especially solar salts, include a high concentration of salt-tolerant bacteria, with counts reaching 105/g. A type of halophiles, often known as red or pink bacteria, may induce reddening of wet or partially dried salt fish in industrial fish curing processes. Under suitable circumstances, halophilic fungi grow on dried fish, causing dark areas known as 'dun' to appear. They appear more commonly in rock salt. Fine grain salt dissolves more quickly in water and is used for producing brines. Direct application of fine grain salt to fish, on the other hand, promotes quick loss of water from the top, which hardens and hinders salt penetration to the interior of the fish, a condition known as salt burn. As a result, a salt combination of big and tiny grain sizes is advised for dry salting. Types of Salting Dry salting is the most common way of curing seafood. Dry salting is recommended for any fish, except fatty fish. The fish is gutted, decapitated, or ventrally split open, and the viscera is extracted before washing. If the flesh section is thick, scoring is also used to allow for greater salt penetration. The salt is then administered in a 1:3 to 1:10 ratio, depending on the size of the fish. The fish are then put in clean cement tanks or other suitable containers, which have been covered with salt, and weight is applied from the top to improve salt penetration.

The fish is maintained in this state for 24 to 48 hours. Following the salting time, the fish is removed, rinsed in brine to remove clinging salt, and drained. It is then hygienically dried to around 25% moisture content. This approach yields roughly 35-40% of the product and has a storage stability of up to three months under ambient conditions. Wet salting begins with the same processes of processing and salting as dry curing. However, the fish in the aquarium are left to self-brine until marketing without additional drying. The wet salted fish is drained and

put in palmyrah leaf baskets or coconut leaf baskets for selling according on demand. This approach is ideal for fatty fish such as oil sardine, mackerel, and others. With a moisture level of 50-55% and a salt concentration of roughly 25%, wet salted fish has a limited shelf life. Pickle curing is a sort of wet salting in which the fish is covered with granular salt, which dissolves in the surface moisture of the fish, generating a solution that penetrates into the fish and removes moisture. Allow the fish to continue in the self-brine. If the self-brine is insufficient to submerge the fish, saturated brine is added. Kench salting: Salt is smeared on the surface of the fish and layered in layers of salt and fish in this way.

The produced self-brine is allowed to drain. This approach is not suitable for usage in the tropics since the fish are not coated with brine or pickle and are therefore more subject to deterioration and insect assault. Exposure to air and the presence of salt additionally accelerates fat oxidation, resulting in discolouration and the distinctive rotten tastes. Mona curing is mostly used for medium to small-sized fish. The guts and entrails are removed before salting by drawing out via the gill area without splitting open the fish. The flesh is not exposed during salting, resulting in less contamination, and the product has a shelf life of around two months. This approach produces a yield of about 70%. This technique involves mixing fish with salt (4:1) and placing it in pits excavated on beaches. Palymrah / coconut leaves may be used to line the pits. The fish is hauled out for selling in wet state after 2-3 days of maturity, wrapped in bamboo baskets, and brought to marketplaces without drying. The quality of fish cured using this procedure is low, with a shelf life of just three weeks.

Colombo curing is a pickling procedure that is popular in Sri Lanka. A dried Malabar tamarind (Garginiacambogea) piece is retained in the gutted and cleaned fish, which is then stored in airtight wooden barrels filled with salt. This technique of curing fish has a shelf life of up to 6 months. Pink/Red: The salt content limits the formation of typical rotting microflora in the fish, but halophiles, which can live at 12-15% salt concentration, will survive. The majority of commercial salt contains halophilic microorganisms. Red / Pink halophiles are responsible for the reddening of wet or partly dried salted fish. These bacteria do not thrive in brine or thoroughly dried fish. They are aerobic and proteolytic in nature, preferring to develop at 36oC by degrading protein and emitting an ammoniacal stench. Spoilage shows as slimy pink spots on the surface. These bacteria, however, are not hazardous in nature. To prevent this problem, it is advised that you use high-quality salt. This deterioration occurs mostly in severely salted seafood and is absent in unsalted fish. Dun: Brownish black or golden brown patches on the fleshy sections of salted fish are referred to as dun. This is mostly caused by the formation of Sporendonemaepizoum, a halophilicmould. This gives the fish an unappealing look. Moulds often develop in environments with relative humidity levels exceeding 75%. The ideal temperature for growth is 30-35 degrees Celsius. Manual removal of moulds on fish is achievable at the early phases of their appearance. It enters the flesh in mature stages [5], [6].

To minimize mould formation, the fish must be carefully dried, packaged, and kept to avoid moisture absorption. Dip the fish for 3-5 minutes in a 5% solution of calcium propionate in saturated brine, depending on the size of the fish, for chemical protection. Salt Burn: When dry salting fish, a variety of big and tiny grain sizes is preferred. If fine grain is put directly on the fish, salt burn may develop as a result of the quick evacuation of water from the surface with no salt penetration into the fish's interior. Case hardening: When the continuous rate of drying is particularly quick owing to high temperature and low relative humidity, the surface of the fish might become 'case hardened,' preventing moisture transport from the deeper layers to the surface. This might result in a dry fish near the surface. The middle, on

the other hand, stays moist and hence degrades fast. Rancidity is generated by lipid oxidation, which is particularly apparent in oil-rich fish such as mackerel and sardine.

The unsaturated fat in the fish combines with the oxygen in the environment to generate peroxides, which are then broken down into simple and odoriferous chemicals such as aldehydes, ketones, and hydroxyl acids, which give off the distinctive odours. The fish's coloration changes from yellowish to brown during this stage, which is known as rust. This modification imparts an undesirable aroma and fragrance to the product, resulting to customer rejection. Spoilage caused by insect infestation happens during the first drying phases as well as during the storage of dried samples. The insects that attack the fish during the early drying stage are mostly blowflies from the Calliphoridae and Sarcophagidae families. These flies are drawn to the scent of decaying waste and the aromas released by rotting fish. These flies arrive and deposit their eggs during the glut season, when there are lots of fish and some are left to rot. These eggs hatch into maggots, which burrow into the gill area and sand to avoid excessive heat. They grow mostly when circumstances are suitable. Beetles of the family Dermestidae are the most typically encountered pests during storage. Beetles attack when the moisture level is low, particularly when stored for an extended period of time. Dermestesater, D frischii, D maculates, D carnivorous, and Necrobiarufipes are the most frequent beetles.

The larva causes the majority of the harm by devouring dry meat until only the bones remain. Mites are another major pest that may be found in dried and smoked foods. Lardoglyphuskonoi is the most frequent mite identified in fish products. Infestation may be minimized by adequate hygiene and sanitation, the disposal of wastes and decaying materials, the use of physical barriers such as screens and coverings for curing tanks, and the use of heat to physically drive away and kill the insects at 45 o C. Fragmentation: Denaturation and excessive drying of fish cause the fish to break down upon handling. When fish is handled roughly, it may become fragile and susceptible to physical harm. Insect infestation is another cause of fragmentation in dried samples. To produce a nice end product, fresh fish must be utilized as raw material. Smoking is an old technique of food preservation, also known as smoke curing, that results in goods with exceptionally high salt content (>10%) and low water activity (0.85). Smoking is the method of introducing flavour, taste, and preservation elements into fish by exposing it to smoke from burning wood or plant materials. This method is often distinguished by an integrated sequence of salting, drying, heating, and smoking operations in a smoking chamber.

Because to the drying effects of smoking, as well as the antioxidant and bacteriostatic properties of the smoke, smoked items have a longer shelf life. Smoked seafood comes in a variety of forms, including smoked finfish and smoked bivalves. Many smoked goods are available in ready-to-eat form. Modern food preservation technology advancements such as pasteurization, cooling/refrigeration, deep freezing, and vacuum packing have surpassed the preserving functions of many ancient techniques such as smoking. Nowadays, the primary objective of smoking has switched from preserving impact to sensory quality. There are four fundamental forms of smoking based on how the smoke is transported into the meal and the smoking temperature: hot smoking, cold smoking, liquid smoking, and electrostatic smoking. Hot smoking is a classic smoking procedure that involves both heat and smoke and happens at temperatures exceeding 70  $^{\circ}$ C.

A minimum heat procedure of 30 minutes at or above 145 °F (62.8 °C) for smoked fish and fishery products. As a result, items are thoroughly cooked and ready for ingestion after hot smoking. Torry Research Station in the United Kingdom introduced the hot smoking Torry smoking kiln in the early 1960s. The Torry smoking kiln is a model for contemporary
smokers/smokehouses because it allows for fine control of heating temperature, air ventilation, and smoke density. Some newer smokehouses may additionally have more exact time and temperature controls, humidity control, and product interior temperature monitor sensors. As a result, the goods generated by contemporary smokehouses are significantly more consistent than those produced by old smokers. Hot smoking is not usually a single procedure. Other procedures, like as brining, curing, and smoking, are also required to achieve a high-quality product. Cold smoking fish Fish may also be cold smoked. Cold smoking temperatures normally do not surpass 30 °C. As a result, cold smoked items are not cooked and are usually strongly salted. Cold smoking, as opposed to standard hot smoking, runs longer, has a larger yield, and keeps the original textural features far better than hot-smoked ones. Cold smoking of many fish species, including rainbow trout, has been documented. Smoke condensate that has been dissolved in a solvent, such as water or oil, is known as liquid smoke[7], [8].

Liquid smoke may be sprayed or dipped directly onto goods. Although the taste and colour of traditional smoking cannot be completely recreated, it is considerably faster and simpler to generate a homogenous smoke flavour than conventional cold and hot smoking procedures. Some potentially dangerous elements in natural smoke may be sorted out and removed from liquid smoke. Other benefits of liquid smoke include ease of customization, applicability to traditionally non-smoked foods, cheaper operating costs, and less environmental contamination. However, the use of liquid smoking may be more costly than other approaches. Fish smoking has been documented on swordfish, salmon, and rainbow trout. Electrostatic smoking is yet another quick method of smoking. Fish are put through a tube where an electric field is formed during electrostatic smoking. Smoke particles are charged positively and settle on the negatively charged surface of the fish. Despite the fact that this technique alters the composition of the smoke, the efficiency of smoking remains greater than that of conventional smoking. It may also be used indefinitely. The electrostatic field may change the smoke compound ratio in the vapour phase, resulting in an increase in carbonyl compounds. Skin thickness, the presence of scales, and the quantity of subcutaneous fat may all have an effect on electrostatic smoking. Employees may face safety issues as a result of this procedure. Electrostatic smoking has mostly been recorded in salmon and herring.

## DISCUSSION

Fish curing is a traditional way of preserving fish that uses a variety of procedures to improve flavour, texture, and shelf life. This chapter explores the historical importance of fish curing, its many processes, and culinary uses. Fish curing is a centuries-old method that has enabled people all over the globe to use the vast abundance of the sea for subsistence, commerce, and cultural legacy. This chapter discusses the relevance of fish curing in the preservation of seafood as well as its role in culinary traditions. One of the chapter's key goals is to offer an overview of different fish curing procedures. Salting, smoking, drying, pickling, and fermenting are some of these procedures. Each approach lends distinct flavours and qualities to the fish.Adapting to changing preferences, technology, and cultural traditions, fish curing has changed throughout millennia. This chapter dives into the history of fish curing and its influence on worldwide culinary traditions. Fish curing is important in many different cuisines and cultural customs across the globe. This chapter delves into its cultural and culinary importance, demonstrating how cured fish items have become mainstays in a variety of regional meals. Fish curing stretches back to ancient civilizations, when preservation methods such as salting and drying were used to provide a steady food supply, particularly during times of famine. The demand for cured fish increased throughout medieval and Renaissance

Europe, leading to the establishment of trade networks and specialized curing centres. Salted fish, such as cod and herring, quickly rose in value.

The Age of Exploration, which lasted from the 15th through the 16th century, had a significant influence on fish curing. European explorers explored new fishing areas and traded cured fish with places all over the globe.Significant advances in fish curing occurred throughout the industrial revolution, including better salting procedures, mechanical smoking, and the canning of fish products. These breakthroughs transformed the industry. Salting is the process of coating fish with salt, which takes moisture out and prevents bacterial development. As a consequence, salted fish is produced, which is often used in recipes such as bacalhau.Smoking gives fish a characteristic smokeyflavour while preserving it. Traditional wood smoking techniques are used alongside contemporary electric or gas smokers. Drying is the process of removing moisture from fish using air, sun, or artificial drying techniques. Stockfish and biltong, for example, have a lengthy shelf life and intense flavours. Pickling is the process of preserving fish in a solution of vinegar, salt, or brine, which is often flavoured with spices and herbs. Pickled fish, such as herring and rollmops, have acidic flavours.Beneficial microorganisms are used in fermentation to turn fish into items such as fish sauce and surströmming. The umami flavours in these fermented fish items are powerful. The usage of salted, dried, and smoked fish, such as bacalao, bottarga, and baccalà, is well-known in Mediterranean cuisine[9], [10].

Modern chefs are reinventing classic cured fish items, incorporating new flavours and textures into their meals. The sustainability of fish populations is a critical issue. It is critical to balance the demand for cured fish products with appropriate fishing operations. Strict commitment to cleanliness and quality control procedures is required to ensure food safety throughout the curing process, especially for fermented goods. Chefs and food entrepreneurs are continuing to investigate the culinary potential of cured fish, which has resulted in novel flavour profiles and meals. Sustainability in fish curing starts with responsible sourcing methods, such as observing fishing limits, reducing bycatch, and advocating for well-managed fisheries. Fish curing businesses may lessen their environmental impact by using energy-efficient drying processes and ethical waste disposal. Certification programs and traceability systems educate customers about the sustainability of fish products, allowing flavour, texture, and appearance, is part of quality assurance in fish curing facilities must follow strict food safety regulations.

Food safety norms and standards must be followed in order to maintain customer confidence and preserve public health.Cured fish may be used in a variety of meals, from traditional Scandinavian smorgasbords to inventive fusion cuisine.Cured fish items flourish as appetizers, small plates, and charcuterie components, bringing a burst of flavours and textures to the table.Cured fish items are often used to enhance the umami and complexity of foods including salads, pastas, and sushi.Cured fish complements a wide range of drinks, including wine, beer, and spirits, and improves the whole dining experience.To conserve marine habitats, the future of fish curing is dependent on sustainable procurement procedures and ethical fishing.Fish curing technology advancements may lead to more efficient and environmentally friendly curing procedures.The flexibility of cured fish assures its continuous presence in culinary discovery and innovation.The last chapter summarizes the important conclusions from the fish curing conversation. It emphasizes the practice's ongoing cultural and gastronomic relevance while also addressing the problems and possibilities it confronts in the current period. In conclusion, it is clear that fish curing remains a dynamic and important element of worldwide culinary traditions, providing chefs, food connoisseurs, and cultural preservationists with a world of flavours and possibilities. In general, low-quality fish is utilized to make cured items. The salt used is typically of poor quality, with a lot of dirt and sand in it. Fish cured with this form of salt are inherently of inferior quality since hygiene standards are not met.

In such fish curing yards, good quality water is not accessible. The landing fish are simply placed in large cement tanks with alternating levels of salt. The significance of maintaining the premises clean is also sometimes overlooked. After two or three days of keeping the fish in salt in this sort of tank, the fish are taken out and sun dried on the open beach. This technique contaminates it with a lot of sand, which is subsequently piled on the ground without sufficient packaging. Fish cured in this manner is often contaminated with red halophilic bacteria, and these goods may only be preserved for two or three weeks at most. Fresh fish is quickly washed in pure sea water to remove slime, clinging dirt, and other contaminants. These are then transported to the fish curing yard, where high hygiene and material quality standards must be met. Unlike the previous procedure, all subsequent processing operations should be done on well cleaned tables to minimize contamination with sand, dirt, and other contaminants. The fish is dressed on the processing tables, removing the viscera. In the case of fish such as sardines, it is also recommended to remove the scales to enhance the look of the final cured product. The viscera should be disposed of quickly in the garbage baskets stored under the tables. In the case of little fish, when this is not financially feasible, fish is salted immediately after thorough washing.

The prepared fish is then cleaned in clean water and allowed to drain fully. This is simple to accomplish with perforated plastic containers. After draining, the fish is carried to the salting table, where excellent salt is applied equally by hand to the fish. For this procedure, care must be taken to keep employees' hands clean. The salt-to-fish ratio may be as high as 1:4 one component salt to four parts fish. After salting, the fish is placed in meticulously cleaned cement containers and stored there for at least 24 hours. The fish is then taken out and washed in fresh water to eliminate any extra solid salt that has adhered to its surface. After that, the salted fish is dried on clean drying platforms. Clean, elevated cement platforms or bamboo lattices may be used. If they are not available, clean bamboo mats may be used to dry the fish, but they must be dried to a moisture level of 25% or less. This technique of drying fish is followed by a dusting of calcium propionate and fine powdered salt. This combination may be created by combining three parts calcium propionate by weight with 27 parts powdered salt by weight. It is critical that the mixture be spread evenly to all regions of the fish.

The fish may then be packaged in appropriate weighted quantities in sealed polythene bags for retail selling. The fish may be put in polythene lined gunny bags for wholesale selling. This style of packing minimizes excessive dehydration during storage as well as bacterial infection. In general, one kilogram of this combination is needed to dust 10 kg of fish. This preservative combination is also eliminated when the fish is immersed in water immediately before cooking to remove excess salt. As a result, this is a highly safe, simple, and successful technique of storing cured fish for a long time. Fish preserved in this manner may be stored in excellent condition for at least eight months. The approach is fairly basic and may be simply implemented by the average person. It keeps hazardous microorganisms at bay and significantly extends the storage life of cured fish. The calcium propionate has no effect on the colour, smell, or taste of the cured fish. It is a rather inexpensive procedure. Given the extended shelf life and price that may be obtained by curing fish in this manner, the modest increase in manufacturing costs can be considered inconsequential.

## CONCLUSION

Finally, the investigation of Fish Curing has brought vital insights into the art and science of preserving fish using numerous traditional ways. This chapter has looked at the historical development of fish curing, various curing processes, cultural and gastronomic relevance, sustainability issues, quality assurance, and the practice's future prospects. Fish curing has a long history that spans cultures and countries. It has played a critical role in preserving a steady food supply, promoting commerce, and defining culinary traditions, from ancient preservation techniques to recent inventions. Each curing process, including as salting, smoking, drying, pickling, and fermenting, adds distinct flavours, textures, and qualities to the preserved fish. These processes have resulted in a diverse range of cured fish delicacies that are essential components of regional cuisines across the globe. Cured fish has indisputable cultural and gastronomic value. It's become a staple in classic cuisines like Scandinavian gravlax, Mediterranean bacalao, and Asian fish sauces. Furthermore, modern chefs continue to experiment with cured fish, pushing the limits of culinary inventiveness.In the fish curing sector, sustainability is becoming more important. To assure the future supply of fish for curing, responsible sourcing procedures, environmental impact minimization, and adherence to certification programs and traceability systems are required. To ensure product integrity and safeguard customer health, quality assurance and food safety measures are critical. Compliance with severe laws and standards is required to maintain customer confidence.Looking forward, environmental initiatives, technical breakthroughs, and continuous culinary innovation will determine the future of fish curing. The ability to balance demand for cured fish products with appropriate fishing techniques and environmental care will be critical to the company's long-term success. To summarize, fish curing is a dynamic and culturally relevant technique that combines tradition and innovation. It continues to enhance world cuisines by introducing new flavours and culinary options. As we go ahead, conserving the tradition of fish curing while embracing sustainability and excellence will secure its presence in the culinary world for the foreseeable future.

#### **REFERENCES:**

- [1] F. Wibowo and S. Rahayu, "Kajian Pola Interaksi Keruangan Sentra Usaha Pengasapan Ikan Di Desa Wonosari, Kabupaten Demak," *J. Tek. PWK*, 2017.
- [2] S. Arason, M. Van Nguyen, K. A. Thorarinsdottir, and G. Thorkelsson, "Preservation of Fish by Curing," in *Seafood Processing: Technology, Quality and Safety*, 2014. doi: 10.1002/9781118346174.ch6.
- [3] C. R. Pombo, E. T. Mársico, R. M. Franco, C. F. M. Guimarães, A. M. P. Da Cruz, and H. S. Pardi, "Salted and fermented fish processes evaluation," *Int. J. Food Sci. Technol.*, 2009, doi: 10.1111/j.1365-2621.2009.02043.x.
- [4] A. Pusitaningtyas, "Preservation of fish by curing: Fish Processing Technology," *Proceeding of ICECRS*, 2016.
- [5] Y. P. Sari, "Analisis Produksi Usaha Pengasapan Ikan Di Desa Koto Mesjid Kecamatan Xiii Koto Kampar Kabupaten Kampar," *JOM Fekon*, 2011.
- [6] K. S. J. Hilderbrand, "Preparation of Salt Brines for the Fishing Industry," *Oregon State Univ.*, 1998.
- [7] A. Tall and P. Failler, "Fishery and aquaculture industry in Ghana," Ser. Rep. n°1 Rev. Fish. Aquac. Ind. 22 ATLAFCO Memb. States, 2012.

- [8] G. K. Sivaraman and V. Siva, "Microbiological Spoilage of Dried Fishes," SSRN Electron. J., 2016, doi: 10.2139/ssrn.2709070.
- [9] D. R. Carvajal-Contreras, R. Cooke, and M. Jiménez, "Taphonomy at two contiguous coastal rockshelters in Panama: Preliminary observations focusing on fishing and curing fish," *Quat. Int.*, 2008, doi: 10.1016/j.quaint.2007.08.027.
- [10] P. Reeves, B. Pokrant, and J. McGuire, "Changing Practice in the Madras Marine Fisheries: Legacies of the Fish Curing Yards," 2014. doi: 10.1007/978-94-017-8727-7\_3.

# CHAPTER 10 FROM THE SEA TO PLATE: A WORLD OF FISH PRODUCTS

Heejeebu Shanmukha Viswanath, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-<u>shanmukhaviswanath92@gmail.com</u>

# **ABSTRACT:**

Fish products that have been changed or treated in some way before being sold or eaten.Surimi is a type of Japanese food that is made to look and taste like lobster, crab, and other shellfish. It is usually made from white fish like pollock or hake that has been smashed into a paste and becomes rubbery when cooked. Fish glue is created by boiling the skin, bones, and swim bladders of fish together. Fish glue has been highly appreciated for its use in many different things, such as illuminated manuscripts and the Mongolian war bow. Fish oil is good for your diet because it has omega-3 fatty acids that help reduce inflammation in your body. Fish emulsion is a type of fertilizer that is made from the liquid leftovers of fish that have been processed to make fish oil and fish meal in factories. Fish hydrolysate is made by grinding up fish bodies. After the parts that humans can eat are taken out, what is left of the fish includes the insides, bones, cartilage, scales, and meat. They are placed in water and broken into small pieces. Fish meal is a type of food that is made from whole fish, as well as the bones and organs of fish that have been processed. Fish powder is made by squeezing the whole fish or fish scraps to get rid of the fish oil. It looks brown and can be in powder or cake form. It is used as a type of food that has a lot of protein in it for fish and other sea animals.Fish sauce is a sauce made from fermented fish. It is a very important part of lots of curries and sauces. Isinglass is a stuff taken from a fish's swim bladder, mostly sturgeon. It is used to make wine and beer look clear. Tatami iwashi is a type of food from Japan that is made by drying and laying out baby sardines in a way that they form a big sheet that looks like a mat.

#### **KEYWORDS:**

Fish, Food, Fermented Products, Meal, Oil.

## **INTRODUCTION**

People eat fish and fish products as food everywhere in the world. It is one of the best sources of high-quality protein in the world and makes up about 14-16% of all the protein that people eat. More than one billion people depend on fish as their main source of meat. Fish meal is a type of food that people give to animals like cows and pigs to help them grow. Fishmeal is a type of food that has really good protein. It has a lot of amino acids such as lysine, methionine, and cysteine. These amino acids are important for animals, but their bodies can't make them on their own. This makes fishmeal a really important part of animal food. It also has important B-group vitamins like B12, chlorine, niacin, pantothenic acid, and riboflavin.Fishmeal contains essential minerals like calcium, phosphorus, copper, and iron. It is also a source of certain trace elements. This product is made by cooking, pressing, drying, and grinding the bones and tissues from fish that are left over after filleting and canning. Or by cooking various types of fish, such as jew fish, sole, silver-bellies, ribbonfish, and others, along with prawns. The ingredients used, the way it is made and the conditions during the process can vary a lot in fish meal production. The main ingredient used to make fish meal comes from fish called oil-sardine. There are a lot of these fish, but sometimes they are caught in large amounts and other times they are not[1], [2].

These are the basic ingredients that are fatty, like anchovies, sardines, herring, and menhaden. Traditionally, people use these things to make fishmeal. The small fish that are accidentally caught while shrimp fishing are usually not able to be sold as fresh fish because they are too small and have a lot of bones. This text can also be used. Young fish that are important for business, as well as leftovers and waste from fish factories and cutting plants, canneries, and dead bodies of fish like sharks are all used to make fish meal and oil. In India, people used to make fish meal by drying fish in the sun. They would gather the dried fish from different places along the coast. This fish meal was mostly used as fertilizer. Higher quality fish meal has always been an important to make the quality of fish meal better for better use. In 1959, the Ministry of Food and Agriculture made rules about the quality of fish meal. The Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) made rules for how fish meal used in animal feed should be made. This helps make sure the fish meal is good quality. Dry rendering, also known as dry reduction, is the process used to turn non-oily fish into fish meal[3], [4].

The text talks about certain types of fish like silver-bellies, jew fish, ribbonfish, sole, anchoviella, and shark meat. It also mentions about fish parts like fish offal and waste from cutting the fillets. In this process, if there is only a small amount of fish processed, it is dried until it contains only 10% moisture and then crushed into powder. If there is a lot of stuff to deal with, a cooker-dryer with a stirring device powered by steam is used. The process can only handle a certain amount at a time, which means it won't be able to do a lot. This also means that it will be expensive to pay for the workers. But things that can dissolve in water are kept in food. Wet-rendering, also known as wet reduction process, is a way to make fish meal and fish-body oil at the same time. It is mainly used for fatty fish or offal. In simple terms, the process involves grinding and cooking the flesh and bones to make them soft and release oil. Then, pressing is done to remove the liquid and oil. The leftover material is fluffed and dried before being ground and packed into a meal with 8% moisture. Additionally, press liquor is centrifuged to remove any small particles and separate the oil from the concentrated stick water. The process needs advanced tools and usually happens nonstop, so it can handle large amounts of fish.

People all around the world eat fish and fish products as food. Other seafood, along with these, is the main source of good protein for people around the world. It makes up about 14-16% of the animal protein that people eat globally. More than a billion people depend on fish as their main source of meat.Fish and other water-dwelling creatures are also made into different types of foodand things that are not food.Fresh fish, which can be alive or not, is the kind of fish that people like the most and costs the most. It is the type of fish that is eaten the most by humans, making up 45 percent of fish consumption. The next most popular type of fish is frozen fish, which makes up 31 percent of consumption. Prepared and preserved fish make up 12 percent of consumption, as well as cured fish, which can be dried, salted, in brine, fermented, or smoked. Freezing is the most common way to process fish so that people can eat it. Freezing was used for 56% of the fish that is processed for people to eat, and it made up 27% of all fish that was caught or farmed that year.

In the past few decades, there have been big improvements in how fish are processed, refrigerated, made into ice, and transported. These improvements have made it possible to sell and distribute fish in many different forms to more people. However, most developing countries primarily use fish that is still alive or fresh right after they catch it or harvest it from aquaculture. The amount of fish lost or wasted between catching and eating has gone down, but it still makes up about 27 percent of the fish that are caught. In ancient Rome, people liked to eat a fish sauce called garum.Sharkskin and rayskin, which have small teeth-like

bumps on their surface, used to be used like sandpaper is used today. These skins are also used to create leather. Rayskin leather, also known as same'gawa, is used to make the handles of traditional Japanese swords. Other types of fish are also used to make fish leather, which is becoming increasingly popular among luxury brands like Prada, Dior, Fendi, and emerging designers. Nowadays, people can wear shoes made from salmon skin, a jacket made from perch skin, or a handbag made from wolffish or cod skin. After getting a tan, the leather doesn't smell bad and is stronger than other types of leather that are the same thickness.Many types of fish are eaten by people because they provide food. Some fish are good to eat and some also have eggs that are edible. Other animals that live in the ocean and are eaten for food include shellfish, such as clams and lobsters, crustaceans like crabs, and sea cucumbers. Some ocean plants, like kombu, are used in certain types of local food.Fermented fish products are really liked in countries in Southeast Asia[5], [6].

But, these products are also found in other places around the world. Fish fermentation is an old technique that our ancestors used a long time ago. Processing is typically done to prevent fish from spoiling. Fermented fish is an old, common food in European cuisines. The ancient Greeks and Romans made a well-known fermented fish product called garum. It has the shape of pasta and a very powerful smell. Garum is produced by fermenting the internal organs and blood of mackerel. Fermented fish products are liked by a specific group of people because they have a distinctive smell, taste, and texture. This happens when organic materials in fish muscle tissue are turned into simpler compounds by microorganisms or enzymes during fermentation. Consumers are interested in fermented fish products because they have a distinctive flavor that makes them hungry. In Indonesia, fermented fish products have different flavors that can please people who are not from there. Unfortunately, many fermented fish products are only available in certain areas and not widely found throughout the country. Only a few different kinds of fish products that have been fermented are wellknown, like fish sauce and shrimp paste. Enzymes are the main things that create the taste and texture changes in fermented fish products. In addition to enzymes, tiny living things that help with fermentation also help create smell and taste. Many scientists from all over the world have studied the enzymes in fermented fish products and are trying to understand their importance in the fermentation process.

## DISCUSSION

Fish products include a broad variety of processed fish dishes that appeal to a wide range of culinary tastes and nutritional requirements. The importance of fish products, their different forms, culinary uses, and the problems and prospects in the fish product sector are all discussed in this chapter. Fish products are an important part of the global food business because they provide customers with easy and nutritional seafood alternatives. This chapter discusses the significance of fish products in satisfying seafood demand, decreasing postharvest losses, and maintaining fishing communities' livelihoods. One of the key goals of this chapter is to offer an overview of the market's varied variety of fish items. These items may include fillets, steaks, canned foods, surimi, and other items. Fish products have a high degree of culinary adaptability, making them appropriate for a broad variety of meals and cuisines. This chapter delves into how various fish items are employed in diverse culinary cultures. Fish products are well-known for their nutritional value, since they include critical components such as protein, omega-3 fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. The chapter goes through the health advantages of include fish items in one's diet. Fresh and frozen fish fillets are among the most popular fish products, appreciated for their ease of preparation and adaptability in a variety of cooking ways. Canned seafood, such as tuna, salmon, and sardines, is a shelf-stable choice valued for its freshness.

Surimi is a processed fish product that serves as the foundation for imitation seafood goods such as crab sticks and fake shrimp.Smoked fish products, such as smoked salmon and mackerel, are smoked to enhance flavour while preserving the fish and adding a characteristic smokeyflavour.Fish steaks and portions are great for grilling, baking, or pan-frying because they give simple, portion-controlled meals.Stockfish and bokkoms are dried and salted fish items with a lengthy shelf life and intense flavours.Different locations throughout the globe have distinct fish items that are essential to their culinary identity. Lutfisk in Scandinavia, for example, and bacalao in Mediterranean cuisine.Modern chefs often experiment with fish products, fusing several culinary traditions to produce unique fusion meals.Because of their lean protein, omega-3 fatty acids, and low saturated fat content, fish products are popular among health-conscious customers.Pre-marinated fillets and tinned fish, for example, make dinner preparation easier, making seafood more accessible to busy homes.Fish is a fantastic source of high-quality protein, which is required for development, repair, and general health.Fish products, especially fatty fish such as salmon and mackerel, are high in omega-3 fatty acids, which are beneficial to heart health and cognitive function.

Fish products provide important vitamins and minerals such as vitamin D, vitamin B12, iodine, selenium, and zinc.Because fish products are often low in saturated fat, they are a heart-healthy dietary option.The fish product sector is confronted with new problems and opportunities:Sustainable fish procurement is crucial to ensuring long-term seafood supply. This includes practising responsible fishing, eliminating bycatch, and supporting well-managed fisheries.Energy-efficient processing, appropriate waste management, and sustainable packaging solutions are among the efforts being made to lessen the environmental effect of the fish product business.Maintaining strong food safety and quality assurance processes is critical to ensuring customer confidence and regulatory compliance.The use of new technology in the processing of fish products may improve efficiency, uniformity, and quality.Consumer preferences, such as an emphasis on health, sustainability, and ethical sourcing, will impact the future of fish products.To fulfill the rising demand for fish products while protecting marine ecosystems, sustainable sourcing procedures and ethical fishing are critical.Technological advances in processing, packaging, and quality control may improve the efficiency, uniformity, and safety of fish product manufacturing.

The culinary world will continue to investigate the culinary potential of fish products in order to create new meals that adapt to changing tastes and dietary needs. Finally, the debate on Fish Products has shown the multifarious importance of seafood in a variety of forms, ranging from fresh and frozen fillets to canned foods, surimi, smoked fish, and more. These products appeal to a wide range of culinary tastes and nutritional requirements, providing a high concentration of protein, omega-3 fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. Fish products' culinary flexibility knows no boundaries, enabling them to be included in regional specialities, fusion cuisine, health-conscious diets, and quick meal preparation. Furthermore, the sector is progressively addressing sustainability issues, striving to limit environmental effect and assure ethical seafood procurement. In the future, the fish product business will be shaped by changing customer tastes, technological breakthroughs, and environmental activities. It is apparent that fish products will continue to be an important component of global cuisine, providing a variety of flavours and culinary possibilities while tackling environmental and quality assurance problems.

Fish, in addition to being edible, provide various vital nutrients in the form of fish products, which are mentioned below. It is maybe the most significant fish product because of its therapeutic potential. One of the most significant byproducts of fish is fish liver oil. The liver, which is discarded during the dressing of landed fish, is a glycogen and lipid reservoir, as

well as a source of vitamins A and D. This feature of some fish livers, such as Cod, Shark, Ray, Halibut, Tuna, and others, has made it of enormous economic importance in terms of supplying highly therapeutic 'liver oil.' Oils may be extracted both from entire fish as body oil and from liver as liver oil. Body oil is utilized for both culinary and industrial uses, but liver oil is only used for therapeutic reasons due to its high vitamin A content. Fish oil includes cholesterol, and additional alcohols in the unsaponifiable materials include pigments, vitamin A and D, glycerol ethers, and fatty alcohols. Vitamin E may be found in trace amounts. Fish oil is found in sardines, salmon, herring, mackerel, anchovies, white fish, and catfish.

species liver oil is high in Vitamin A and D, and the amount of the two major elements of liver, oil and Vitamin A, differs across species. Cod, halibut, and hammer-headed shark, for example, generate oil 60-75%, 4-28%, and 25-75%, respectively, and vitamin A potencies range from 500-20,000 iu/g to 25,000- 6,00,000 iu/g and 3,00,000 iu/g. In addition to vitamin A and oil, liver contains vitamin D, vitamin E, hydrocarbons, cholesterol, pigments, fatty alcohols, and glycerol ethers.To extract liver oil, healthy and disease-free liver is sliced into tiny pieces and cooked in a suitable amount of water. The oil that has accumulated on the surface is removed. This oil is then heated with water before being filtered. Anhydrous sodium sulphate is used to dehydrate the filtered material. Later, before they are released to the public, the pharmaceutical industry refines and standardizes them. Aside from this, various additional procedures are used for extraction[7].

The flesh of oil-rich fish is mashed to a pulp and cooked with steam in a continuous vertical and cylindrical cooker to extract body oil. The cooked material is pressed on a regular basis to extract the oil. The oil that rises to the top with other bodily components is decanted and then centrifuged to isolate the oil. The waste materials left over during oil extraction, as well as the flesh of non-oily fish, are dried at high temperatures in the sun or inflame driers. This is fed to cattle, pigs, poultry, and used as manure in coffee, tea, and tobacco plantations. Horse mackerel, mackerel, and sardines that are unsuitable for human consumption make excellent fish meal.It is produced in the same way as fish meal, but the fish utilized are of higher nutritional value and appropriate for human consumption. Fish flour is high in protein and simple to digest. It should be combined with wheat or maize flour. More than 10% fish flour added to other edible flour may not be acceptable to everybody owing to its unpleasant flavour, although a smaller quantity has no effect on the taste.

By processing fish flesh with hydrochloric acid and fumic acid, a semi-solid substance known as fish silage is created. It is utilized as a fish meal with higher nutritional value since the majority of the vitamin elements are maintained. The remaining liquid from the extraction process of fish oil. Except for the caudal fin, shark fin soup is popular in China and the Philippines. The roes of many fishes are used as food due to the presence of a significant amount of amino acids and Vitamin,, C, etc. They are also utilized in the production of glue and synthetic fibres. It is a water-soluble, strong, flexible adhesive compound used for court plaster stamps, book binding, and shoe mending. It is made by grinding the fish bone and skin and then soaking it in steam jackets for 6-12 hours with a particular quantity of water and acetic acid. The liquid is separated and transformed into concentrated forms. It is produced by scraping the outer section of a fish's swim or air bladder and sun drying the interior piece. Isinglass is a gelatinous material that is used to clarify wine, beer, and vinegar. It is also utilized in the production of high-quality cement and plaster[8], [9].

After tanning, the skin of huge fishes such as sharks and rays is used to make shoes, purses, and other items.India boasts a wealth of marine and inland resources, maybe the greatest in the world. Japan is the world's leading producer of fish, followed by Peru. India is ranked between seventh and tenth. India's total yearly output was 0.817 million tons in 1950, and it

peaked at 1.845 million tons in 1970. The basic materials so gathered are finely processed to smash bone and flesh. The minced material is subsequently heated in steam, either by applying steam externally or by passing pressurized steam through the minced mass. The pressing is next done hydraulically, and following the extraction of oil and water, the dry cakes are ready for sac filling and selling. Fish meal is often packaged in insect and verminproof gunny or coir sacks. Storage in tin containers is done in a nitrogen environment and with soldered covers. Because fish meal is a highly nutritious product it includes all of the required amino acids, it is a great poultry and animal feed that is suitable for all types of livestock. Its usage increases milk and egg production.

Because fish meal includes calcium, phosphorus, iodine, and a range of vitamins, it is essential for developing kittens because it encourages tissue and bone formation. Trash fish meal combined with rice bran and vitamins makes a superb aquaculture feed. Fish feces and guano are low-quality fish meals. It is unfit for ingestion by animals. Fish manure is a byproduct of curing yards, fish glue companies, and oil extraction operations that use waste or damaged fish. Fish dung is made from spoiled and unsuitable for human consumption mackerel, horse mackerel, sardine, and other species. This manure is strong in nitrogen (5-7%), phosphates (4-6%), and lime (CaO) (1-5%). Because of its high nutritional content, fish manure is beneficial in the cultivation of coffee, tea, and tobacco crops. Fish guano is a byproduct of the body oil extraction facility, which is the dried waste that remains after the oil is extracted. As raw material, oil-bearing species such as oil sardines are employed. Fish guano includes a high quantity of nitrogen (8-10%) as well as significant amounts of phosphoric acid. Guano is much more efficient than any animal dung in this regard[10].

Fish flour is a top grade fish meal that is made under rigorous supervision and care. It is a perfect protein supplement for the human diet, even for newborns as young as 3-4 months old. A complex solvent extraction procedure is used to produce it on a commercial basis. The procedure is simple and inexpensive. The fish is rinsed and cut. At 80°C, it is then heated with weak acetic acid. The material is then thoroughly cleaned and the water is squeezed out. This is then treated with petroleum to eliminate fat and improve storage quality. The resulting mass is then hydrolyzed with an alkali, preferably caustic soda. When the bulk is neutralized with acetic acid (85%), it becomes liquefied. The liquid is then dried with a spray, resulting in a dry, cream-colored powder. It is regarded as an excellent protein source for both adults and babies. It is used to flavour baked items such bread, cookies, cakes, and soup. Due to the high protein content (35%), the product is ideal for convalescing individuals suffering from malnutrition, anaemia, and other illnesses. The term silage refers to fodder that has been processed in a cylindrical tank known as a silo. Fish silage is a highly nutritious animal feed made from liquid or semisolid fish meal. It is made by combining 3-4% acid with minced fresh fish or fish offal.

Formic acid is often used, however sulfuric or propionic acid may also be utilized. The pH of the mixture may be reduced to 4.0 or lower by employing these acids. This stops bacterial degradation. The enzymes in the chopped fish work on it, reducing the combination to a slurry. To avoid fat rancidity, an antioxidant is added, and the liquid may be kept in a silo for up to 6 months. Fish solubles are the remnants of the liquid produced after the extraction process of fish oil. It is valuable as an animal feed component. Fish sausages are made by stuffing minced fish meat inside a prepared intestine or other casing. Fish ham, on the other hand, has tiny bits of solid fish flesh combined with pasted fish meat. Spices and additives are used in both preparations to increase the flavour, flavour, and shelf life.Salt, sugar, chilies, onion, corriander, glutamate, egg white, hydrogenated vegetable oil, and other spices are used. Antiseptics and antioxidants are used as additives to prevent rancidity. Colourants may

also be included. These items are created from less value garbage fishes and are commercially manufactured in Japan, Russia, and the United States.Macaroni is an Italian pasta made from wheat flour in the shape of dried, hollow tubes. Fish macaroni is a product made from Puntiuscarnaticus. The fish is chopped and then combined in equal portions with tapioca or sorghum flour.The dish is then seasoned with salt, chilies, and tamarind. The extruded result is dried. The product has an excellent keeping quality, is inexpensive, and simple to make. The Mysore Institute of India manufactures it on a commercial basis.

Fish glue is an excellent adhesive made from the trimmings, bones, and skin of Gadiformes Cods, Pollack, Hakes, and so on. In steam-jacketed cookers, raw materials are cleaned, diced, and steam-heated. The material is then covered with water and a little amount of acetic acid is added to it. After that, it is cooked for 6-10 hours. To make glue, the liquor is removed and concentrated. The leftovers are dried and used as manure. Isinglass is a gelatin-like substance derived from some fishes' swim bladders or air bladders. When placed in water, it swells but does not disintegrate. It hydrolyzes in water at high temperatures to generate very sticky gelatin. The swim bladder is a hollow sac with a strong and fibrous outer layer and a thin, silvery interior layer. Isinglass is derived from the thin, inner silvery shining layer of the airbladder of several fishes, such as sturgeons, carps, and catfishes. To make isinglass, airbladders are collected and carefully cleansed to eliminate blood and other impurities. The exterior, thick and fibrous layer of the wall is then separated from the inner, isinglass raw material-only layer. The product is then sun-dried and sold. The skin of bigger fish is gathered, bathed in brine for a day, and then dried. The next day, it is salted and immersed in brine containing 10% hydrochloric acid. The skin is then removed, drained, and scraped on the surface, especially to remove tiny denticles seen in shark skin. They are then limed and tanned in the traditional manner.

Older natives made battle helmets from of dried and spiky skins of Globe or Porcupine fishes. The dried skin of Puffer fishes is inflated and used to produce lanterns in Japan. Nowadays, the skins of bigger species such as cod, salmon, halibut, toadfish, sharks, and rays are tanned and dyed in various colours and sold as decorative leather. Shark leather, in particular, is used to make shoes, wallets, purses, and tobacco pouches. Shark, ray, and skate skin is very hard and is used as an abrasive for polishing wood or metal. Properly prepared and coloured shark skin supplying 'Shagreen' provided for covering card cases, jewellery boxes, sword scabbards, and so forth. Artificial pearls have been made from the silvery scales of European cyprinids. A glossy pigment is created by scraping the scales. The inner surface is then coated and shaped into hollow glass beads. After that, the beads are filled with wax.

Shark fins are chopped at the root, cleaned in sea water, sprinkled with a mixture of wood ashes and lime, then sun or smoked dried. The cured product is brittle and crisp. Shark fin soup is popular in China and the Philippines.A lot of fishes' roe is considered food. The protein in roe is tasteless, with a digestibility co-efficient of 81% and a biological value of 88%. Roe fat is distinguished by high levels of lecithin (59%) and cholesterol (14%). Roe is an excellent source of vitamin B. Vitamins C, E, and D are also present.Shark pancreas has a high concentration of insulin. Whales also deliver a significant amount of insulin. Fish replaces catties as a raw material in the production of insulin.The enormous otoliths of Sciaenids are taken from the skull and, after rubbing and mixing with water, are administered to rickets patients.Amphipnouscuchia is regarded as a very medicinal fish by fishermen. As soon as the fish is caught, it is rubbed with gram flour or wheat flour to remove any mucus. The flour and mucus mixture is then formed into little balls and dried. These balls are prescribed to men who are impotent. It has been stated that such individuals quickly restore

their vitality and power.Clariasbatrachus, Heteropneustesfossilis, and Channa sp. are examples of live fish. are prized for their excellent nutritional and medicinal value.Sillagosihama is said to be beneficial and nourishing to nursing moms.

## CONCLUSION

The summary for the talk about Fish Products explains the many different ways that fish is turned into food. It talks about how important fish is, how it can be cooked in many different ways, how it is good for your health, how we need to use it in a way that doesn't hurt the environment, and what might happen in the future. Fish products are really important for giving people the seafood they want. They come in lots of different forms that can be cooked in different ways and meet different dietary needs. This talk discusses how fish products are important for the food industry. They help consumers choose what to eat and also help fishing communities make a living. Fish products come in many different forms, including fresh fish, frozen fish, canned fish, surimi, smoked fish, and more. This gives consumers a wide variety of options to choose from. They can be used in many different types of cooking, like traditional foods, new combinations of flavors, healthy eating, and easy cooking.In addition, fish products are known for being good for your health because they provide highquality protein, omega-3 fatty acids, vitamins, and minerals. We know that they are important for keeping the heart healthy, thinking clearly, and feeling good overall. In sustainability, it's important for the fish product industry to make sure they get their supplies responsibly, limit harm to the environment, and meet quality standards. As people's tastes change, new technology and creative cooking will keep changing the fish products we have. In conclusion, fish products are an important and diverse part of food around the world. They come in many flavors, can be used in different recipes, and are good for your health. Fish also help with sustainability and making sure our food is safe to eat.

#### **REFERENCES:**

- [1] Lone Gram and Hans Henrik Huss, "Microbiological spoilage of fish and fish products," *Int. J. Food Microbiol.*, 1996.
- [2] N. Thapa, "Ethnic fermented and preserved fish products of India and Nepal," *J. Ethn. Foods*, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.jef.2016.02.003.
- [3] M. Pal, A. Ketema, M. Anberber, S. Mulu, and Y. Dutta, "Microbial quality of Fish and Fish Products," *Microb. Qual. Fish Fish Prod.*, 2016.
- [4] S. Maqsood, S. Benjakul, and F. Shahidi, "Emerging Role of Phenolic Compounds as Natural Food Additives in Fish and Fish Products," *Crit. Rev. Food Sci. Nutr.*, 2013, doi: 10.1080/10408398.2010.518775.
- [5] B. Bilgin and H. Gençcelep, "Determination of biogenic amines in fish products," *Food Sci. Biotechnol.*, 2015, doi: 10.1007/s10068-015-0251-4.
- [6] A. Novoslavskij, M. Terentjeva, I. Eizenberga, O. Valciņa, V. Bartkevičs, and A. Bērziņš, "Major foodborne pathogens in fish and fish products: a review," *Annals of Microbiology*. 2016. doi: 10.1007/s13213-015-1102-5.
- [7] Y. C. Lee, C. Saint Lin, F. L. Liu, T. C. Huang, and Y. H. Tsai, "Degradation of histamine by Bacillus polymyxa isolated from salted fish products," *J. Food Drug Anal.*, 2015, doi: 10.1016/j.jfda.2015.02.003.
- [8] D. Stratev, I. Vashin, and H. Daskalov, "Microbiological status of fish products on retail markets in the Republic of Bulgaria," *Int. Food Res. J.*, 2015.

- [9] T. Kramarenko *et al.*, "Listeria monocytogenes in ready-to-eat vacuum and modified atmosphere packaged meat and fish products of Estonian origin at retail level," *Food Control*, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.foodcont.2016.02.034.
- [10] P. Sivaperumal, T. V. Sankar, and P. G. Viswanathan Nair, "Heavy metal concentrations in fish, shellfish and fish products from internal markets of India vis-avis international standards," *Food Chem.*, 2007, doi: 10.1016/j.foodchem.2006.05.041.

# CHAPTER 11 FOOD ADDITIVES IN FISH PROCESSING: METHODS OF ENHANCING QUALITY

Kusum Farswan, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-<u>kusumfarswan.14feb@gmail.com</u>

# **ABSTRACT:**

Food additives are essential components of fish processing, helping to preserve product quality, enhance flavour, and ensure food safety. This debate looks at the many food additives utilized in the fish business, as well as the regulatory framework, safety issues, and future developments Various sorts of additives are used in fish products ranging from fresh fillets to canned items and surimi. Preservatives, flavour enhancers, texture modifiers, colourants, and antioxidants are examples of these. It is critical to utilize these compounds responsibly in order to protect the quality of seafood products while matching customer preferences.Regulations and labelling requirements restrict the use of food additives in the processing of fish. International standards, such as those set by the Codex Alimentarius Commission, govern business practices and provide consumers with transparency. The safety of food additives is prioritized, with comprehensive risk assessments examining possible health hazards. To safeguard consumer health, allergenicity, carcinogenicity, and toxicity are among the issues investigated. As the seafood business evolves, rising trends in food additive usage will influence its future. To fulfill customer demand for high-quality seafood products, balancing innovation with safety and sustainability will remain a focus. In conclusion, this topic emphasizes the critical function of food additives in fish processing, regulatory control, safety concerns, and their importance in providing customers with safe, delicious, and attractive seafood products.

## **KEYWORDS:**

Fish Products, Food Additives, Fish Processing, Product Quality, Seafood Industry.

# **INTRODUCTION**

Many fish processing operations throw away a lot of edible meat. The fish can be cut into smaller pieces to match the desired size or shape. This can include removing sections from the fillets or using the cheeks. It can also involve keeping the meat that is still attached to the bones after the fillets are removed. The meat industry and now the poultry processors have been able to make more meat and money by using the leftovers after the valuable parts are taken out to make minced products. Fish processing has been slower to adopt this practice, maybe because minced fish quickly loses its quality. The deboning machines that are frequently used, like Baader and Bibun, operate by placing fish parts on a rubber belt and pressing them against a spinning metal drum with holes. The soft parts like flesh and organs go through the holes, while skin, bones, and eyeballs also go through. Don't You can change the quality of the mince by making the holes bigger or smaller and adjusting the tension of the belt. Generally, the holes are between 1 and 10 mm, with 3-5 mm being the most common size for fish[1], [2].

Frozen fish mince is a type of fish that has been cut into small pieces and then frozen. It is a product that is commonly traded between different countries, and it is usually sold in big blocks weighing 35 pounds or 16 kilograms. This can be used to make lower quality fish

sticks or fish fingers or, to a certain extent, to fill empty spaces in frozen fillet blocks that will be used in higher quality fish sticks/fingers or portions. There are some general and particular problems that need to be solved in order to make mince. Basically, there is a trade-off between how much you produce and how good it is. For instance, trim mince is a better quality product than frame mince because frame mince might have blood and other colorful and strongly flavored substances. By making the belt tighter, the amount of product produced, especially smaller pieces, will increase but the quality will be worse. Basically, most mince is made from fish like cod, haddock, Pollock, and hake. When fish meat from the Gadidae family is frozen at temperatures that are typically used in the seafood industry in the United States (for example, -18°C or 0°F), the quality and safety of the fish can be preserved for a longer period of time compared to other storage methods such as refrigeration or drying[3].

Freezing the fish properly helps to maintain its freshness, flavor, texture, and nutritional value, making it a popular method for preserving fish in the seafood industry. When the temperature is below -22 °F/-30 °C, the quality of the food decreases and it becomes tough and rubbery. This happens because there is still an active enzyme present even at freezing temperatures. Regenstein found that freezing the gadoid reaction at a very low temperature (-40 °F or -40°C) can get rid of it. This seems to destroy the enzyme, and the minced product can be sold in stores, even at colder temperatures.Worms, also called cod worms or seal worms, usually gather in the meat of certain types of fish known as gadoid fish. You need to take out these worms from the fillets one by one. Usually, you use light tables to see the worms and tweezers to remove them. However, doing this for mince would not be cost-effective. But, worms can go through the mincer without being crushed, and you can see them in the minced food. Even though the worms are safe to eat, some people may not like them. Worms can be removed by grinding them and then passing them through a machine called a Brown Finisher, which is usually used for making surimi.Fish mince is similar to hamburger mince[4], [5].

But there's a problem the amount of surface area is much bigger compared to the inside volume of the fish mince. This means there is a higher chance of contamination, oxidation and spoilage of the fish mince. Ground beef, which consists of blood, pigment, and different types of tissues, can be very difficult to work with. A way to prevent some of these issues is to cook the ground meat, using natural antioxidants like rosemary extract, before freezing it. To sell the frozen cooked mince, it is important to work together with a company that makes food for institutions. This collaboration will help make the product more desirable and easier to sell. Baker and Regenstein have discovered that white fish mince can be used instead of beef in dishes like spaghetti, chili, and tacos. This substitution is good for both saving money and getting nutritional benefits. Consumers are unable to identify the fish in these dishes because the other ingredients have strong colors and flavors that hide the taste, and the minced fish feels similar to meat in your mouth. Ground meat made from larger fish, like tuna or swordfish, has a stronger taste that is harder to hide. However, it has more healthy omega-3 oils and iron that is easier for your body to use, which is lacking in white fish meat.Mincing is not useful or cost-effective for smaller businesses or when making fillets. It is mainly done to create surimi. Mincing is a good idea for big processors who want to use the meat that is cut off the fillets while trimming, or the meat that is left on the frame after filleting[6], [7].

Smaller businesses can earn more money by selling small pieces of fish called 'chowder fish' or by creating a few special food items like pates, mousses, or spreads to sell in the local area. These products are very appealing to companies that smoke fish. In the fish processing industry, it is common to have certain times of the year when fish are caught or when fish grow in aquaculture systems. As the weather changes, the water gets warmer or cooler and there are different kinds of food for plants and animals in the water. These are important factors that affect the makeup and amount of protein in fish. For instance, wild sea bass has a lot of protein and less water in the spring and summer when there is plenty of food. But in the fall and winter, it has less protein and more water. In 1994, a study was done to analyze the composition of Pacific whiting at different times of the year. The study found that in April, the food had the least amount of protein and the most amount of water. Sylvia and others. It was found that protein and moisture content have opposite effects on each other. Fish reproducing and moving from one place to another also impact the amount of protein in them. Fish usually have less meat, more water, and less protein during spawning periods. Food additives and chemicals are substances that are added to food to help them last longer and mix together easily. It is very important to make sure that the food we process and package is of good quality in order to maintain health and safety standards. We offer the best and highquality solutions to food companies. We supply safe, affordable, and reliable food chemicals and additives. We offer a complete solution to our clients in various industries. By using advanced technology and new methods, we have become one of the top suppliers of seafood chemicals and ingredients for processing poultry and meat. Our unique way of making products, excellent product quality, secure packaging, and timely delivery make sure we have the right solutions for our customers[7], [8].

#### DISCUSSION

Food additives are compounds that are added to food during the manufacturing process to enhance its safety, shelf life, flavour, texture, or appearance. Various food additives may be used in fish processing to improve the quality and marketability of seafood products. This chapter investigates the function of food additives in fish processing, including their kinds, regulatory implications, and possible safety concerns. This chapter discusses the significance of food additives in the preparation of fish. Food additives provide various vital purposes, including product quality preservation, flavour enhancement, and food safety. The chapter summarizes the main goals and ideas that will be discussed in the following sections. One key goal is to offer an overview of the many kinds and functions of food additives used in fish processing. The regulatory framework controlling the use of food additives in the seafood sector is discussed in this chapter, with an emphasis on safety and labelling regulations. When it comes to food additives, safety is of the utmost importance. The chapter delves into possible safety problems and risk evaluations related to its usage.By suppressing microbial development and oxidation, preservatives such as sodium benzoate and citric acid help increase the shelf life of fish products. To increase the flavour and scent of seafood meals, flavour enhancers such as monosodium glutamate (MSG) and yeast extracts are utilized[9].

Texture modifiers such as alginate and carrageenan may be used to improve the texture and mouthfeel of fish products, especially processed goods such as surimi.Natural and synthetic colourants are used to improve or standardize the look of fish items.Tocopherols and ascorbic acid are antioxidants that assist prevent the oxidation of lipids in fish, keeping their quality and avoiding rancidity.Standards and recommendations for food additives in marine products are established by international organizations such as the Codex Alimentarius Commission.Food additive labelling must be clear and precise in order to educate customers and maintain openness.To guarantee consumer safety, regulations define maximum permitted amounts for particular food additives.The safety of food additives is of the utmost importance. Risk assessments are carried out in order to identify the possible health concerns linked with their intake.Food additives may cause allergic reactions and must be carefully labelled.In the risk assessment process, it is critical to evaluate possible health impacts such as carcinogenicity and toxicity.The chapter finishes by outlining the relevance, kinds, regulatory elements, and safety considerations associated with food additives in the seafood business.In summary, the investigation of Food Additives in Fish Processing sheds light on the critical role these compounds play in improving and preserving the quality and safety of fish products while negotiating the difficult terrain of rules and safety evaluations.Food additives are often used in fish processing for a variety of reasons, including maintaining freshness, boosting flavour, improving texture, and assuring safety. This in-depth investigation will dig into the many forms of food additives routinely used in the fish processing business[10].

## **Preservatives**

- 1. Sodium Benzoate: Sodium benzoate is a common preservative used in fish processing. It aids in the inhibition of microbial development and the prevention of spoiling. It is often found in smoked and canned fish products. Citric acid, a natural preservative found in citrus fruits, is used to regulate the pH of fish products. It also functions as an antioxidant in fish, reducing colour changes and rancidity.
- 2. Sorbic Acid: Sorbic acid helps to preserve fish by reducing the formation of yeast and mould. It's typically found in smoked and dried seafood.
- **3.** Sodium Erythorbate: Sodium erythorbate is used in fish processing as a preservative and antioxidant. It aids in the preservation of the colour and quality of fish products, particularly canned and processed seafood.

## Antioxidants

- 1. Tocopherols (Vitamin E): Tocopherols, which are commonly found in the form of vitamin E, are natural antioxidants that are employed in the processing of fish. They inhibit the formation of off-flavors and rancidity by protecting fish oils from oxidation.
- **2.** Ascorbic Acid (Vitamin C): Ascorbic acid is used in fish processing as an antioxidant to minimize oxidative damage and preserve the quality of fish products.

## **Flavour Boosters**

- 1. Monosodium Glutamate (MSG): MSG is added to fish items to improve the savoury umami flavour. It is often present in processed fish products, particularly surimi-based goods.
- 2. Yeast Extracts: Yeast extracts, which are high in natural glutamic acid, are used to enhance the flavour of fish. They add to the overall flavour and scent of fish.

## **Texture Enhancers**

Alginate: Alginate is a seaweed-derived natural polysaccharide. It is used in the fish processing industry to change the texture and consistency of goods such as surimi-based imitation seafood.Carrageenan, which is generated from seaweed, is a frequent texture modifier in fish processing. It contributes to the gel-like texture of some fish items.

## **Colouring Agents**

**Paprika Extract:** A natural colourant generated from red bell peppers, paprika extract. It is used to give fish items, such as smoked salmon, a crimson tint.Synthetic colourants, such as Red #40, are occasionally used to standardize the colour of fish products, assuring aesthetic appeal and uniformity.

# Acidifiers

**Lactic Acid:** Lactic acid is used in fish processing as an acidulant to modify the pH of products. It may also serve as a preservative by providing an unfavourable environment for bacteria development.

# Thickeners and stabilizers

- 1. Modified Starches: Modified starches are thickeners and stabilizers used in a variety of fish products such as sauces, soups, and canned foods.
- **2. Xanthan Gum:** In the seafood sector, xanthan gum is a popular thickening and stabilizing chemical used to enhance the texture and consistency of fish-based products.

# Emulsifiers

- 1. Lecithin: Lecithin, which is often sourced from soybeans, is used as an emulsifier in fish processing to facilitate component mixing, particularly in the preparation of fish sauces and dressings.
- **2.** Glycerol: Glycerol, also known as glycerin, is used in certain fish products as a humectant to preserve moisture and avoid drying.
- **3.** Transglutaminase (TG): Transglutaminase is an enzyme preparation that is used to link proteins together in fish products, increasing texture and structure. It is often utilized in the manufacture of surimi-based seafood.

## **Anticaking Substances**

- 1. Silicon Dioxide: Silicon dioxide is used as an anti-clumping ingredient in powdered fish products and spice mixes.
- 2. Natural and Artificial Flavourings: Natural and artificial flavourings and seasonings are used to give distinct tastes and scents to fish products, increasing their overall flavour profile.

# Microbial Cultures

**Starter Cultures:** Specific bacteria or yeasts in starter cultures are employed in the fermentation of fish products such as fish sauces and fermented fish pastes.

## Phosphates

**Sodium Tripolyphosphate (STPP):** STPP is utilized in certain fish products as a waterretaining agent and pH regulator. It aids in the preservation of moisture and the texture of seafood.

**Glycerol:** Glycerol, also known as glycerin, is used in certain fish products as a humectant to preserve moisture and avoid drying.

# **Bleaching Agents**

**Benzoyl Peroxide:** In fish processing, benzoyl peroxide is occasionally used as a bleaching agent to eliminate colour impurities and enhance the look of fish products.

# **Gelling Agents**

**Gelatin:** Gelatin is used as a gelling ingredient in some fish items, such as fish desserts and aspic meals.Baking powder is used in fish breading and coating recipes to create a light and crispy texture when cooked.

## **Dietary Supplements**

**Vitamins and Minerals:** Some fish products may be supplemented with vitamins and minerals to improve their nutritional value and meet particular dietary requirements.

## Enzymes

- **1. Papain:** Papain, a papaya enzyme, is utilized in fish processing to tenderize and enhance the texture of seafood.
- **2.** Garlic Extract: Garlic extract is used to impart a characteristic garlic flavour and scent to several fish products.
- **3.** Lemon Oil: Lemon oil is used to infuse a zesty note into fish items, increasing their flavour and scent.
- **4. Olestra:** Olestra, a fat substitute, may be used to simulate the mouthfeel and texture of fat in certain reduced-fat fish items.
- 5. Calcium Chloride: Calcium chloride is used in certain fish products as a firming agent to preserve the texture and hardness of fish tissue.

## Sweeteners

**High-Fructose Corn Syrup (HFCS):** HFCS is occasionally used to produce a sweet and savouryflavour character in fish-based sauces and glazes.

## **Non-Caloric Sweeteners**

**Aspartame:** To obtain a sweet flavour without adding sugar, aspartame and other non-caloric sweeteners may be used in low-calorie or sugar-free fish products.

## pH Adjusting Agents

**Sodium Acid Pyrophosphate (SAPP):** SAPP is used in certain fish products as a pH control agent to regulate acidity levels and enhance texture.

## Natural Antimic robials

- **1. Vinegar:** Vinegar is a natural antibacterial that is used to increase the shelf life of pickled fish items while also adding a sour flavour.
- 2. Clarifying Agents: Gelatin is used to eliminate contaminants and provide a clean look in fish-based soups and broths.

## Nutrients from Yeast

Yeast extracts include nutrients that promote the development of beneficial bacteria in fermented fish products.

#### **Dietary Supplements**

**Omega-3 Fatty Acids:** Omega-3 fatty acids may be given as a dietary supplement to various fish items in order to enhance their health-promoting effects.

## **Anti-Foaming Agents**

**Dimethylpolysiloxane:** Dimethylpolysiloxane is used to reduce excessive foaming and splattering in deep-fried fish items.

## **Maturing Agents**

Enzymes, such as those used in dry aging, may be employed to improve the flavour and softness of some fish products.

## Anti-Caking Agents

**Calcium Silicate:** To avoid clumping, calcium silicate is used as an anti-caking additive in powdered fish products.

## **Fermentation starters**

Lactic Acid Bacteria (LAB): Lactic acid bacteria (LAB) starters are employed in the fermentation of fish products such as fish sauces, adding to their distinct flavours and fragrances.

## **Curing Agents**

**Sodium Nitrite:** To retain colour and flavour in some fish products, such as smoked fish, sodium nitrite is employed as a curing agent.

## Desiccants

Silica Gel: Silica gel may be used as a desiccant in packing to absorb moisture and keep dried fish items from spoiling.

## **Browning Agents**

**Caramel Colour:** To create a rich colour and flavour, caramel colour is used as a browning agent in various fish sauces and gravies.

## **Reducing Agents**

**Sodium Bisulfite:** Sodium bisulfite is used in fish processing as a reducing agent to avoid enzymatic browning and maintain product quality.

## Stalking Agents

**Potassium Bromate:** Potassium bromate is an anti-staling ingredient that may be used in certain fish-based baked items to increase shelf life and retain freshness.

## **Glazing Agents:**

**Beeswax:** Beeswax is used in certain fish products as a glazing ingredient to improve their look and provide a protective layer.

## Flour Treatment Substances

Ascorbic Acid (Vitamin C): Ascorbic acid is occasionally used in fish-based breading and coatings as a flour treatment agent to increase dough elasticity and baking performance.

## Hydrolyzed Starch

**Matodextrin:** A starch hydrolysate, maltodextrin, may be utilized in fish processing to enhance the texture and mouthfeel of some products. Polysorbates are surface-active compounds used in the emulsification of components, ensuring equal dispersion in fish-based sauces and dressings.

## **Stabilizing Agents**

**Sodium Hexametaphosphate:** Sodium hexametaphosphate is used in certain fish products as a stabilizing ingredient to enhance texture and prevent product degradation.

## Agents of Film Formation

Edible Films and Coatings: Edible films and coatings, which are often manufactured from starch, gelatin, or proteins, are used to establish a protective barrier on the surface of fish products, therefore increasing shelf life and maintaining quality.

## **Gumming Agents**

**Arabic Gum:** To enhance the texture and mouthfeel of certain fish products, Arabic gum may be employed as a gumming agent.

## **Gelling Agents**

**Agar-Agar:** Agar-agar is a seaweed-derived gelling ingredient that is utilized in various fishbased sweets and confections.

## **Glazing Agents:**

**Shellac:** Shellac is used in certain fish products as a glazing agent to improve their look and provide a protective layer.

It is crucial to emphasize that the use of food additives in fish processing is regulated, and their safety and usefulness are thoroughly assessed. Labelling is also important for informing customers about the presence of additives in seafood items. The food additives used are determined by the individual product, processing technique, and customer preferences, ensuring that fish products retain quality, safety, and attractiveness while serving a variety of gourmet and nutritional demands.

# CONCLUSION

In summary, talking about Food Additives in Fish Processing has given us important information about the role, different types, rules, and safety concerns when using food additives in the seafood industry. Food additives are ingredients added to fish during processing that have different jobs. They help keep the fish fresh, make it taste better, and ensure it is safe to eat. They are very important in making fish products last longer, taste better, smell better, change how they feel, and look the same. The rules and regulations that control the use of additives in fish processing are really important to make sure that the food is safe for consumers. These rules and limits are made to help consumers know what they are buying and to keep them safe. Following these rules is very important to make sure the seafood industry is honest and trustworthy. Safety is the most important factor when using food additives. We carefully assess the risks to health by checking for potential problems like allergies, cancer, and poison. It is very important to have clear labels on additives that can cause allergies. This helps consumers know what they are eating and avoid having bad reactions. In the future, the seafood industry will keep finding new ways to use food additives, but their main focus will be making sure consumers are safe and protecting the environment. Using food additives responsibly and with knowledge is important when processing fish to ensure that the seafood products we provide to consumers are good quality. In simple words, food additives are important in the fish processing industry because they make seafood products better and more marketable. Following regulatory rules and safety checks means

that people can feel sure and confident when they eat seafood products, knowing that those products meet very strict standards for quality and safety.

## **REFERENCES:**

- S. Maqsood, S. Benjakul, and F. Shahidi, "Emerging Role of Phenolic Compounds as Natural Food Additives in Fish and Fish Products," *Crit. Rev. Food Sci. Nutr.*, 2013, doi: 10.1080/10408398.2010.518775.
- [2] K. M. I. Bashir, J. S. Kim, J. H. An, J. H. Sohn, and J. S. Choi, "Natural Food Additives and Preservatives for Fish-Paste Products: A Review of the Past, Present, and Future States of Research," *Journal of Food Quality*. 2017. doi: 10.1155/2017/9675469.
- [3] A. A. Del Villar-Martínez *et al.*, "Carotenoides en Tagetes erecta L. la modificación genética como alternativa," *Revista Fitotecnia Mexicana*. 2007. doi: 10.35196/rfm.2007.2.109.
- [4] S. Ganiari, E. Choulitoudi, and V. Oreopoulou, "Edible and active films and coatings as carriers of natural antioxidants for lipid food," *Trends in Food Science and Technology*. 2017. doi: 10.1016/j.tifs.2017.08.009.
- [5] A. Cartier, "New causes of immunologic occupational asthma, 2012-2014," *Curr. Opin. Allergy Clin. Immunol.*, 2015, doi: 10.1097/ACI.00000000000145.
- [6] G. Rychen *et al.*, "Safety and efficacy of sodium and potassium alginate for pets, other non food-producing animals and fish," *EFSA J.*, 2017, doi: 10.2903/j.efsa.2017.4945.
- [7] J. A. Ramírez, R. M. Uresti, G. Velazquez, and M. Vazquez, "Food hydrocolloids as additives to improve the mechanical and functional properties of fish products: A review," *Food Hydrocoll.*, 2011, doi: 10.1016/j.foodhyd.2011.05.009.
- [8] A. M. Kot, S. Błażejak, A. Kurcz, I. Gientka, and M. Kieliszek, "Rhodotorula glutinis—potential source of lipids, carotenoids, and enzymes for use in industries," *Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology*. 2016. doi: 10.1007/s00253-016-7611-8.
- [9] L. Järup, "Hazards of heavy metal contamination," *British Medical Bulletin*. 2003. doi: 10.1093/bmb/ldg032.
- [10] A. Etxabide, J. Uranga, P. Guerrero, and K. de la Caba, "Development of active gelatin films by means of valorisation of food processing waste: A review," *Food Hydrocoll.*, 2017, doi: 10.1016/j.foodhyd.2016.08.021.

# CHAPTER 12 MASTERING THE ART OF FISH FILLETING AND PRECISE DEBONING

Kuldeep Mishra, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- <u>mishraypiku keep@gmail.com</u>

#### **ABSTRACT:**

Fish filleting and deboning are important cooking techniques that involve removing the bones from fish so you can cook and enjoy the tasty fish meat. This detailed guide talks about different techniques for filleting fish. It covers everything, like the tools and safety precautions you'll need, how to choose the right kind of fish, and how to become skilled in both basic and advanced filleting methods. The guide starts by saying that it is very important to use the right tools and be careful about safety when filleting fish. This will help make sure that the filleting process goes well and is safe. Picking the correct fish is very important. You need to think about things like how the bones are arranged, how fresh it is, and if it goes well with the recipe you want to make. The guide gives clear and detailed instructions on how to cut and prepare flat and round fish, as well as how to remove the bones from whole fish. This text explains that the reader will learn advanced methods like removing bones, removing the skin, and cutting fish into steaks to improve their skills. Furthermore, the guide explains how to remove pin bones, rib bones, and spines, which will make the cooking experience even better. Lastly, it has a variety of delicious recipes and cooking uses, showing how these filleting and deboning skills can be helpful in real-life situations. To sum up, this guide helps people learn how to skillfully cut and remove bones from fish, allowing them to explore different cooking ideas using fish and create tasty seafood dishes that will impress everyone.

#### **KEYWORDS:**

Cutting Board, Fish Products, Fish Filleting, Fish Processing, Pin Board.

## **INTRODUCTION**

Fish processing means all the steps that happen to fish and fish products from the moment they are caught or collected until they are given to the customer as the final product. The phrase is mainly about fish, but it can also include other water creatures that are caught to be sold, whether they come from wild fishing or fish farms.Bigger companies that process fish usually have their own fishing boats or farms. The things that are made from fish are usually sold to big grocery stores or to people who sell things to others. Fish can go bad quickly. The main goal of fish processing is to make sure that the fish does not go bad. This is an important concern throughout the various stages of processing.Fish processing involves two main activities: fish handling and manufacturing fish products. Fish handling refers to the initial processing of raw fish, while manufacturing fish products focuses on creating different types of fish products. Another way to divide it is by separating the steps involved. The first step is cutting and freezing fresh fish to be sold at fish shops and restaurants. The second step is making chilled, frozen, or canned products to be sold in stores and used by restaurants.People have been processing fish for a long time. Today, fishermen, fishing vessels, and fish processing plants are involved in fish processing[1], [2].

Fish is a type of food that spoils quickly. To make it last and stay good to eat, it needs to be handled and preserved correctly. The main goal of fish processing is to stop fish from getting bad. The best way to keep fish fresh is to keep them alive until you're ready to cook and eat

them. For many years, China raised carp through aquaculture. The ikejime method is a way to humanely kill fish.Controlling temperature by using ice, a refrigerator, or freezing.Water activity can be controlled through different methods like drying, salting, smoking, or freezedrying.Using microwaves or ionizing radiation to kill microorganisms and reduce their number. The use of acids to kill or reduce the amount of microorganisms in a substance.A lack of oxygen, like when something is sealed tightly.Typically, people use more than one of these ways. When fish or fish products that have been chilled or frozen are being moved by road, rail, sea, or air, it is important to keep them cold the whole time. This needs special containers or vehicles with good insulation and cooling. New shipping containers can keep things cold and control the air inside.Fish processing is about dealing with waste and making fish products better. More and more people want fish products that are already cooked or require very little cooking[3], [4].

When fish are caught or gathered for selling, they need some preparation so they can be sent to the next step of the selling process while still fresh and in good condition. This means that when a fishing boat catches fish, the fish must be handled properly so they can be stored safely until they are brought to land. Moving the fish from the fishing equipment to the fishing boat.Sorting and grading refers to the process of organizing and categorizing things based on their characteristics or qualities. The process of bleeding, gutting, and washing. When the fishing boat comes back to the port, the fish are taken out or brought down from the boat. The way fish is caught and processed depends on the type of fish, the fishing equipment, the size and duration of the fishing boat, and the market it is sold to. Catch processing can be done by hand or using machines. Modern industrial fisheries use equipment and methods to prevent hurting fish, avoid lifting heavy things by hand, and avoid working in uncomfortable positions that could lead to injuries[5].

In simple terms, value addition means doing something extra to a product that makes it more valuable when it is sold. This is a growing sector in the food processing industry, especially for products that are exported. The value of fish and fishery products increases depending on what different markets need. People all over the world are starting to prefer cooked products over raw ones. Fish can be turned into many different things to make more money. This helps the fishing industry and countries that sell fish make more money from their fish. Additionally, value processes create more jobs and bring in money in a different currency. This is now more important because of changes in society that have led to the increase in outdoor catering, convenient food products, and food services that need fish products that are ready to eat or need very little preparation before serving. But before starting a value addition fish process, it is important to think about the economic aspects, like distribution, marketing, quality assurance, and trade barriers, even though technology is available[6], [7].

Surimi and foods made from surimi are an example of products that have extra value added to them. Surimi is made from the ground up, cleaned and preserved meat of fish. This is a product used to make various types of seafood that you can eat without cooking, like kamaboko, fish sausage, crab legs, and imitation shrimp products. Surimi-based foods are becoming more popular all over the world because Japanese restaurants and cooking traditions are becoming more well-known in North America, Europe, and other places. Surimi should ideally be made from cheap, white fish that can gel well, and are plentiful and available all year. Currently, there is a lot of Alaskan pollack used to make surimi. Some types of fish, like sardine, mackerel, barracuda, and striped mullet, are used to make surimi.A big part of the fish that is caught around the world is turned into fishmeal and fish oil. Fishmeal is a dry substance made from fish or fish waste, where the water and some or all of the oil is taken out. This industry started in the 1800s. It used extra herring from fishing near the coast to make oil. The oil was used in leather tanning and making soap, glycerol, and other things that are not food. Currently, it uses little oily fish to make fishmeal and oil. It is important to note that we should only reduce the catch to fishmeal and oil when it is not profitable or possible for people to eat the fish. Cycling fish through poultry or pigs is not a good practice because it takes 3 kg of fish to produce only 1 kg of chicken or pork.

## DISCUSSION

For everyone who appreciates dealing with seafood, fish filleting and deboning are necessary culinary skills. These methods enable you to turn a whole fish into boneless fillets or steaks, bringing you a world of culinary options. Understanding how to fillet and debone fish is a talent that can lift your cuisine to the next level, whether you're preparing a delicate sole for a romantic meal or a substantial salmon for a family gathering.Filleting and deboning may seem difficult at first, but with the correct equipment, expertise, and practice, you'll be a pro in no time. This book will walk you through the whole procedure step by step, giving you the knowledge and confidence to handle a wide range of fish species and prepare delectable seafood meals in your own home.In the parts that follow, we'll go over the necessary tools and equipment, safety measures to guarantee injury-free preparation, recommendations for selecting the proper fish for your recipes, and extensive instructions on fundamental filleting methods. We'll also cover advanced procedures including pin-bone removal, skinning, and preparing fish steaks. You'll also discover recipes and culinary apps to help you unleash your inner chef.So, let's dive in and learn the art of fish filleting and deboning, from beginning to advanced, so we can start cooking with confidence and grace[8], [9].

## **Instruments and Equipment**

Before you begin filleting and deboning fish, you must first acquire the appropriate tools and equipment. Having the proper tools will make the procedure go more smoothly and safely. Here is a list of necessary items:

- 1. Filet Knife: The most necessary instrument for the work is a thin, flexible, and sharp fillet knife. It enables precision cutting and simple manoeuvring around bones. To ensure a secure surface for filleting, use a clean, solid, and non-slip cutting board.
- 2. Tweezers or Pliers for Fish: These specialist instruments aid in the removal of microscopic pin bones from fillets. A bigger chef's knife is helpful for making first cuts and removing the fish's head and tail.
- **3. Kitchen shears or scissors:** These are useful for trimming fins and cutting through difficult fish portions.
- 4. Fish Scaler: If you're dealing with scaled fish, a scaler will aid in the removal of scales.
- 5. Gloves: While handling slippery fish, gloves are optional but advised for extra safety and grip.
- 6. Fish Gutting Spoon or Scaler: This item is used to help gut and clean the fish.
- 7. Towels or paper towels: Keep these on hand to wipe your hands and clean up spills.

The first step in guaranteeing a good filleting and deboning operation is to have the proper equipment. Keep them sharp and well-maintained to make the job simpler and safer. Working with sharp blades and handling slippery fish requires extreme caution. Here are some important safety steps to take:

**1. Knife Safety:** Always use caution while handling knives. Keep them sharp to limit the possibility of sliding, and cut with your fingers curled away from the blade.

- 2. Secure Your Workspace: Check that your cutting board is solid and will not slide while in use. A moist towel or a nonslip mat might be useful.
- **3.** Slip-Resistant Footwear: Wear traction-enhancing footwear to avoid accidents caused by slipping on wet surfaces.
- 4. Wear Cut-Resistant Gloves: While not required, wearing cut-resistant gloves helps protect your hands from accidental wounds.
- 5. Keep an Eye on Your Fingers: While cutting, keep an eye on where your fingers are. Keep them out of the knife's path.
- 6. Keep an eye out for bones: To avoid choking dangers, be thorough in detecting and removing any bones.
- 7. Maintain a Clean workstation: Clean up fish debris as soon as possible to avoid slips and keep a clean workstation.
- 8. Waste Disposal: Place fish bones and scraps in a designated receptacle with a lockable cover.

By following these safety procedures, you may reduce the hazards of fish filleting and deboning while focusing on making tasty meals.

## Selecting the Best Fish

The proper fish must be chosen for effective filleting and deboning. Because different fish species have different bone structures and textures, it's critical to choose one that matches your recipe and skill level. Here are some things to think about while choosing fish:

- 1. Start with a fish that has bigger bones and is simpler to deal with if you're new to filleting and deboning, such as trout or catfish.
- 2. Take note of the fish's bone structure. Some have broad, readily detachable bones, such as salmon, while others have more complicated bones that need more finesse, such as snapper.
- **3.** Select a fish with clear eyes, firm meat, and a gentle, ocean-like odour. Freshness is essential for a delectable final product.
- 4. Think about the dish you want to create. Some recipes call for entire fish, while others specify fillets or steaks.
- 5. Choose sustainable fish to support ethical fishing techniques and help protect marine habitats.
- 6. The size of the fish is important. Larger fish are normally simpler to fillet, however smaller fish, such as sardine or mackerel fillets, may be utilized for certain recipes.

To make educated decisions, it is essential to do research and speak with your local fishmonger. Experiment with numerous fish kinds to broaden your culinary knowledge and range.

## **Filleting Techniques for Fish**

Now that you have your equipment and understand how to choose the proper fish, let's look at the basic filleting procedures for various species of fish:

**Flat Fish Filleting:**Flat fish, such as sole, flounder, and plaice, have a distinct bone structure that necessitates a special filleting procedure. To fillet a flat fish, follow these steps:

**Step 1:** Place the fish flat on the cutting board, dark side up. The fish's head should be on your left if you're right-handed.

**Step 2:** Make a diagonal incision behind the fish's head and pectoral fin, pointing the knife toward the fish's centre.

**Step 3:** Gently move the knife down the spine of the fish, following the curve of the body, until you reach the tail.

Step 4: Separate the fillet from the bones by cutting through any residual flesh at the tail end.

Step 5: Turn the fish over and repeat the procedure to get two fillets.

# **Round Fish Fillet**

The bone structure of round fish, such as salmon, trout, and sea bass, differs. To fillet a round fish, follow these steps:

**Step 1:** Place the fish on the cutting board, head down, with the head pointing away from you.

Step 2: Cut behind the gills and pectoral fin with the knife angled toward the head.

Step 3: Continue cutting down the spine toward the tail, but avoid cutting through the tail fin.

Step 4: Lift the fillet away from the bones, separating it with your fingers as you go.

Step 5: Turn the fish over and repeat the procedure to get two fillets.

#### Whole Fish Filleting

If you like to offer a whole fish but want it boneless, use this method:

Step 1: Begin with a round, gutted, and scaled fish.

**Step 2:** Make a series of parallel incisions perpendicular to the spine along both sides of the fish. These incisions should be made through the flesh but not into the bone.

**Step 3:** Scrape the flesh away from the bone with a spoon or your fingertips, gathering it in a single, boneless piece.

Step 4: Repeat on the other side of the fish.

Many fish preparations start with these fundamental filleting methods. With practice, you'll improve your skills and be able to tackle increasingly difficult fish species.

#### **Tips and Advanced Techniques**

Once you've mastered the fundamentals, you may go on to more complex methods to hone your fish filleting and deboning abilities. Let's look at some of these strategies and hints:

## **Pin-Bone Extraction**

Working with pin bones, which are tiny, flexible bones present in most fish species, is one of the most prevalent obstacles when working with fillets. Here's how to get rid of them:

Step 1: Place the skin-side down fillet on the cutting board.

**Step 2:** Gently run your hands over the fillet to find any pin bones. They are often arranged in a row along the centre of the fillet.

Step 3: Grip the end of a pin bone using fish tweezers or pliers.

Step 4: Pull the pin bone out toward the fish's head.

**Step 5:** Repeat this procedure, working your way along the row of pin bones until all of them have been removed.

## **Skin Extraction**

In certain recipes, the skin of a fillet may be removed. Here's how to go about it:

Step 1: Place the skin-side down fillet on the cutting board.

Step 2: Make a tiny incision into the flesh towards the tail end of the fillet to grasp the skin.

Step 3: Using your non-dominant hand, hold the skin and slant the knife slightly upward.

**Step 4:** Keeping the skin tight, slip the knife between the skin and the flesh, working your way toward the head end.

Step 5: Repeat this process until all of the skin from the fillet has been removed.

## **Filleting of Butterflies**

Butterfly filleting is a method that involves creating a pocket in the fish while leaving one side intact. It's often used to fill fish with herbs, spices, and other things. To butterfly fillet a fish, follow these steps:

Step 1: Begin with a round, gutted, and scaled fish.

Step 2: Make a long, deep incision down the back of the fish, stopping just short of the gut.

**Step 3:** Open the fish like a book, so the flesh side is up and the bones are visible on the cutting board.

**Step 4:** Stuff the pocket with your preferred ingredients before cooking the fish.

## **Filleting in Cross Sections**

Cross-section filleting is employed for species such as pike, where boneless portions are created by cutting across the fish. Here's how to go about it:

Step 1: Begin with a round, gutted, and scaled fish.

Step 2: Make a series of diagonal slashes perpendicular to the spine across the fish's body.

**Step 3:** The finished product will be boneless cross-sectional chunks that may be cooked separately.

## **Making Fish Steaks**

- 1. Some fish, such as tuna, are best served as steaks, which are thick, cross-sectional slices of the fish. Here's how to cook fish steaks:
- 2. Begin with a spherical fish, such as salmon or tuna.
- **3.** To make steaks, make perpendicular incisions to the spine approximately 1 to 1.5 inches thick.
- 4. Include a piece of the spine in each steak.
- **5.** These advanced methods and ideas will broaden your repertory and allow you to prepare a greater variety of fish recipes.

# Deboning Methods

While filleting separates the flesh from the bones, deboning removes particular bones from previously filleted or entire fish. Here are several deboning methods:

## **Pin-Bone Extraction**

The advanced methods part included removing pin bones from fillets. To summarize, you'll grab and extract these little, flexible bones using fish tweezers or pliers.

## **Rib-Bone Extraction**

When working with entire fish, eliminating the rib bones is critical for a more enjoyable eating experience. Here's how it's done:

Step 1: Begin with a complete, gutted, and scaled fish.

Step 2: Cut the top of the fish lengthwise, following the spine.

Step 3: Locate the rib bones with your fingers or a knife.

Step 4: On both sides, carefully cut the rib bones away from the fillets.

## **Spine Surgery**

You may wish to remove the whole spine from a whole fish for some recipes. Here's how it's done:

Step 1: Begin with a complete, gutted, and scaled fish.

Step 2: Cut the top of the fish lengthwise, following the spine.

**Step 3:** Cut through the flesh along the spine with a knife or scissors to separate it from the body.

Step 4: Carefully remove the spine from the fish, leaving two boneless fillets.

These deboning procedures are necessary for making boneless fish meals and improving the dining experience.

## **Culinary Applications and Recipes**

Now that you've perfected your fish filleting and deboning abilities, let's look at some recipes and culinary applications where you can put your knowledge to use:

## Fillets grilled with lemon butter

## Ingredients

4 fillets of fish (your choice of species)

2 tbsp of olive oil

Season with salt and pepper to taste.

2 tbsp. melted butter

1 lemon juice

Garnish with fresh herbs (parsley, dill, or cilantro).

# Instructions

Preheat the grill to medium-high temperature.

Season the fish fillets with salt and pepper after brushing them with olive oil.

Grill the fillets for 4-5 minutes on each side, or until opaque and flaky with a fork.

Melt the butter in a skillet over low heat while the fish is roasting. Add the lemon juice and mix well.

When the fish is done, sprinkle it with the lemon butter sauce.

Garnish with fresh herbs and serve immediately.

## **Steaks of Pan-Seared Fish**

## Ingredients

4 salmon, swordfish, or tuna steaks

2 tbsp of olive oil

Season with salt and pepper to taste.

2 minced garlic cloves

1 finely sliced lemon

Sprigs of fresh thyme for garnish

## Instructions

- 1. Season the fish steaks with salt, pepper, and garlic powder to taste.
- 2. In a pan over medium-high heat, heat the olive oil.
- **3.** Sear the fish steaks for 3-4 minutes on each side, or until golden brown and cooked through.
- 4. Add lemon slices to the pan to caramelize during the final minute of cooking.
- 5. Transfer the fish steaks to serving dishes and top with fresh thyme sprigs and caramelized lemon wedges.

# **Fillets Stuffed and Rolled**

Ingredients

4 fillets of fish (sole, flounder, or tilapia)

Season with salt and pepper to taste.

1 pound breadcrumbs

1/4 cup Parmesan cheese, grated

1/4 cup fresh herbs, chopped (parsley, basil, or thyme)

1 tablespoon melted butter

1 lemon, zipped and juiced

Toothpicks

## Instructions

- 1. Season the fish fillets with salt and pepper and place them flat on a cutting board.
- 2. Combine breadcrumbs, Parmesan cheese, chopped herbs, melted butter, lemon zest, and lemon juice in a mixing bowl.
- 3. Spread the breadcrumb mixture evenly over each fillet.
- 4. Each fillet should be rolled up and secured with toothpicks.
- 5. Heat a little amount of olive oil in a pan over medium-high heat.
- 6. Sear the rolled fillets in the pan, seam-side down, for 2-3 minutes on each side, or until golden brown and cooked through.
- 7. Before serving, remove the toothpicks.

These recipes demonstrate the variety of fish fillets and how they may be cooked to make delectable and visually appealing entrees. Fish filleting and deboning are essential skills for anybody who enjoys seafood and cuisine. This book has armed you with the information to master these culinary skills, from the necessary instruments and safety measures to the stepby-step procedures for different fish species and advanced suggestions. You can now approach fish preparation with confidence and refinement, whether you're grilling fillets with a lemon butter sauce, pan-searing fish steaks to perfection, or getting creative with filled and wrapped fillets. To truly enjoy the art of fish cooking, pick fresh and sustainable fish, perfect your filleting and deboning abilities, and experiment with diverse dishes. With determination and experience, you'll soon be able to turn entire fish into magnificent boneless fillets and steaks, allowing you to prepare delectable seafood feasts for your family, friends, and yourself[10], [11].

# CONCLUSION

To sum it up, learning how to cut fish properly is an important cooking skill that lets you explore many delicious food options. In this complete guide, we have explained how to turn whole fish into fillets without bones and get them ready for cooking in many different ways. Fish filleting means cutting the flesh of fish. To do this, you need the correct tools, take precautions to stay safe, and understand how to do it properly for different kinds of fish. If you want to get the best tasting parts of a fish, like sole or salmon, you need to learn how to fillet it. This will make your food taste even better when you cook it.In addition, using specific techniques to remove bones like pin bones, rib bones, and spines makes your fish dishes even better. These abilities will make your meals safer and more enjoyable. If you follow the steps, practice with patience and care, and try different recipes, you can become skilled at making delicious seafood dishes just like professional chefs. Your skill in removing bones from fish and cutting them into perfect pieces allows you to make many delicious meals. You can cook the fillets in a pan or stuff and roll the fish. These dishes are sure to impress your family and guests. In the cooking world, being skilled at cutting and removing bones from fish shows your expertise in preparing seafood. It helps you to discover the delicious tastes and textures of fish while making dishes that look and taste great.

## **REFERENCES:**

- S. F. Biscalchin-Grÿschek, M. Oetterer, and C. R. Gallo, "Characterization and Frozen Storage Stability of Minced Nile Tilapia (Oreochromis niloticus) and Red Tilapia (Oreochromis spp.)," J. Aquat. Food Prod. Technol., 2003, doi: 10.1300/J030v12n03\_06.
- [2] A. Wendel, J. W. Park, and K. Kristbergsson, "Recovered meat from pacific whiting frame," *J. Aquat. Food Prod. Technol.*, 2002, doi: 10.1300/J030v11n01\_02.

- [3] W. W. Meinke, G. Finne, R. Nickelson, and R. Martin, "Nutritive Value of Fillets and Minced Flesh from Alaska Pollock and Some Underutilized Finfish Species from the Gulf of Mexico," *J. Agric. Food Chem.*, 1982, doi: 10.1021/jf00111a017.
- [4] D. Vallod, "Carp processing and market analysis: a case study in France," *Aquaculture*, 1995, doi: 10.1016/0044-8486(95)91995-8.
- [5] K. H. MOLEDINA, J. M. REGENSTEIN, R. C. BAKER, and K. H. STEINKRAUS, "EFFECTS OF ANTIOXIDANTS AND CHELATORS ON THE STABILITY OF FROZEN STORED MECHANICALLY DEBONED FLOUNDER MEAT FROM RACKS AFTER FILLETING," J. Food Sci., 1977, doi: 10.1111/j.1365-2621.1977.tb12597.x.
- [6] H. Ólafsdóttir and V. Rafnsson, "Musculoskeletal symptoms among women currently and formerly working in fish-filleting plants," *Int. J. Occup. Environ. Health*, 2000, doi: 10.1179/oeh.2000.6.1.44.
- [7] S. De *et al.*, "Revista Brasileira de Zootecnia Fish filleting residues silage in tilapia fingerlings diets," *Rev. Bras. Zootec.*, 2006.
- [8] H. W. Oguttu, F. W. B. Bugenyi, H. Leuenberger, M. Wolf, and R. Bachofen, "Pollution menacing Lake Victoria: Quantification of point sources around Jinja Town, Uganda," *Water SA*, 2008, doi: 10.4314/wsa.v34i1.180865.
- [9] P. R. C. de Oliveira Filho, F. M. Netto, K. K. Ramos, M. A. Trindade, and E. M. M. Viegas, "Elaboration of sausage using minced fish of nile tilapia filleting waste," *Brazilian Arch. Biol. Technol.*, 2010, doi: 10.1590/S1516-89132010000600015.
- [10] A. J. Borderías and I. Sánchez-alonso, "First Processing Steps and the Quality of Wild and Farmed Fish," *J. Food Sci.*, 2011, doi: 10.1111/j.1750-3841.2010.01900.x.
- [11] R. M. Uresti, S. J. Téllez-Luis, J. A. Ramírez, and M. Vázquez, "Use of dairy proteins and microbial transglutaminase to obtain low-salt fish products from filleting waste from silver carp (Hypophthalmichthys molitrix)," *Food Chem.*, 2004, doi: 10.1016/j.foodchem.2003.09.033.

# CHAPTER 13 MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION OF PROCESSED FISH PRODUCTS

Heejeebu Shanmukha Viswanath, Assistant Professor College of Agriculture Sciences, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- <u>shanmukhaviswanath92@gmail.com</u>

# ABSTRACT:

Marketing and distribution of processed fish products are important components of the seafood sector because they bridge the gap between producers and consumers while maintaining product quality, safety, and sustainability. This abstract delves into the essential aspects of this ever-changing business, offering insight on the tactics and practices that generate success. In this context, extensive market research and consumer insights serve as the cornerstone for product creation, enabling firms to design a diversified portfolio that accommodates to changing tastes and lifestyles. Product distinctiveness, branding, and beautiful packaging are critical in attracting the attention and trust of customers.Retail, ecommerce, foodservice, and overseas exports are all effective distribution channels that increase market reach and accessibility. Consumer trust and confidence are built on quality control, certification, and respect to food safety rules.Sustainability methods develop as a distinguishing characteristic, with responsible sourcing, environmentally friendly processing, and traceability systems indicating an industry dedicated to environmental care. Marketing methods that are robust include digital, social, and influencer-driven campaigns to engage customers and explain the advantages of sustainable seafood options. Businesses must continue to innovate and adapt in order to prosper, while a focus on supply chain efficiency reduces waste and optimizes freshness. Furthermore, organizations that emphasize consumer input and react to shifting market trends are more likely to succeed. To summarize, marketing and distribution of processed fish products is a complicated yet active sector. Businesses may negotiate this difficult terrain by embracing quality, sustainability, innovation, and consumercentric practices, offering customers with tasty, safe, and ethical seafood alternatives while contributing to the preservation of our oceans.

## **KEYWORDS:**

Fish Products, Distribution, Marketing, Sell Fish, Secondary Market.

# **INTRODUCTION**

Marketing and distribution of processed fish products are critical in the seafood business, linking producers with customers while assuring product quality and safety. In this volatile and competitive industry, effective methods are critical for reaching a large audience and meeting customer needs. Thorough market research is required before launching any processed fish product. Learn about consumer preferences, dietary trends, and cultural differences in seafood intake. Determine your target demographic, such as health-conscious customers, seafood lovers, or those searching for convenience. Product Development and Differentiation. Create a diversified variety of processed fish items to appeal to a wide range of tastes and preferences. Value-added items such as smoked salmon, fish fillet burgers, fish sticks, and seafood dips are available. Make your items stand out by focusing on quality, flavour, and packaging. To appeal to environmentally aware customers, emphasize sustainability and traceability. Branding and Packaging. Make an investment in a visually attractive brand identity and packaging. Label your products with crucial product features such as freshness, sustainability certifications, and nutritional value. Ensure that the packaging retains the product's integrity and freshness[1], [2].

Distribution Channels. Create a strong distribution network. Use a variety of channels, such as retail, e-commerce, foodservice, and wholesale. Expand your reach by collaborating with supermarkets, specialized seafood shops, restaurants, and online marketplaces.Quality Control and Certification. Maintain strong quality control systems throughout the manufacturing and delivery operations. To develop confidence with customers and retailers, follow food safety rules and get applicable certifications (e.g., HACCP, MSC, ASC).Implement multi-channel marketing tactics for promotion and marketing. Engage customers with digital marketing, social media, and content marketing. Consider collaborating with chefs, food bloggers, and influencers to get product endorsements and reviews.Sustainability Practices. Incorporate sustainability into your business operations. Encourage ethical seafood procurement and environmentally sustainable processing techniques. In order to influence purchase choices, educate customers about your commitment to sustainability.Market Expansion and Export. Investigate overseas expansion potential. Consider restrictions, preferences, and local competition before exporting your processed fish goods to worldwide markets[1], [3].

Customer Feedback and Adaptation. Encourage feedback and evaluations from customers. Utilize this data to continuously enhance product quality, flavour, and packaging. Adapt to shifting market trends and customer tastes.Improve the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of your supply chain. To fulfill customer requests, reduce waste and assure timely delivery.Implement traceability systems to monitor items from source to shelf. Improve food safety procedures to increase customer confidence.Research and Development. Invest in R&D to innovate and produce new, on-trend items. Keep up to current on developing technology and sustainable seafood processing techniques.To summarize, effective marketing and distribution of processed fish products involves a thorough awareness of customer tastes, a dedication to quality and sustainability, and a strong distribution network. Businesses in the fish sector may prosper in a competitive environment by applying these techniques, which provide customers with tasty, safe, and sustainable seafood selections[4], [5].

The seafood industry has grown a lot in the past few decades because more people want to eat healthy and protein-filled food. In this field, processed fish products have become very important and profitable. They offer many different types of products that consumers like. This introduction talks about how marketing and selling processed fish products has changed over time and mentions important trends that have influenced the industry. The historical context refers to the events, circumstances, and conditions that existed during a particular time period in the past. In order to understand how fish products are marketed and distributed today, we need to look at how they were done in the past. Fish has been an important food for people for a really long time. In the past, people used simple ways like drying and salting to preserve fish. This helped them to have fish to eat even when it was not easy to find. Over the years, improvements in technology like refrigeration and canning changed how fish was prepared and sent out. These methods helped create the modern fish industry.

The fish industry that sells processed fish products in today's world.Today, the fish processing industry has a lot of different things made from fish like canned tuna, smoked salmon, frozen fish fillets, fish sticks, fish cakes, and more. These products are made to suit what consumers like and want in terms of being easy to use, tasting good, and being good for their health. Processed fish products are not just easy to use, but also flexible, and are an important part of food around the world.Consumer trends are patterns or behaviors exhibited by consumers in terms of their buying habits, preferences, and attitudes towards products or

services. These trends can be influenced by various factors, such as changes in technology, social values, economic conditions, or cultural shifts. By understanding consumer trends, businesses can better anticipate and respond to the changing needs and desires of their target market, and develop strategies to effectively market and sell their products or services.

People's choices in eating processed fish products are affected by different consumer trends. First of all, people who care about their health are looking for food that is high in protein, low in fat, and has omega-3 fatty acids. Processed fish products are becoming popular because they meet these criteria. Also, people wanting food that is easy to prepare and eat has made frozen and ready-to-eat fish products very popular. Also, more and more people are starting to recognize the importance of fishing that doesn't harm the environment. This makes customers want to buy products that come from sustainable sources and meet environmental guidelines. These trends are very important in determining how marketing and distribution strategies are made.Marketing strategies are the plans and actions that companies use to promote their products or services and reach their target audience. These strategies include things like advertising, social media campaigns, and public relations efforts. The goal of marketing strategies is to increase sales and build brand awareness by attracting and engaging potential customers.

Companies use different methods to sell fish products to the people they want to buy them. Branding is really important because it makes consumers trust and recognize a company. Businesses often emphasize their dedication to good quality, sustainability, and responsible sourcing in their branding endeavors. Moreover, telling a good story can make people feel connected to the products by highlighting the natural sources and healthy advantages of fish.In addition, digital marketing is now necessary to reach a larger group of people. Companies use social media, online ads, and online shopping sites to show their products, share recipes, and interact with customers. We use content marketing, like blogs and videos, to teach people about the good things that come from eating processed fish products.Distribution strategies refer to the methods and techniques used by businesses to get their products or services to customers. It involves the planning, implementation, and management of various activities and processes to ensure that a product reaches the right customers, in the right location, and at the right time.Efficient distribution is important to make sure that processed fish products get to consumers quickly and at a low cost. These products are sold in many different places, from physical stores to online websites.

Processed fish products are often sold in supermarkets, grocery stores, and specialty seafood markets. Companies often work together with retailers to make sure their products can be displayed on the shelves and to promote their products by showing them inside the store, offering special deals, and letting customers taste them.Online shopping has completely changed the way we buy and sell fish products. Customers can now buy seafood on the internet, and companies can reach more customers. Online shopping websites make shopping easier and more convenient. Many companies also deliver items directly to your home to make shopping even better for customers.It does not require any further simplification. Foodservice Distribution: Processed fish products are also used in restaurants, catering services, and kitchens at places like schools or hospitals. Suppliers work together with foodservice providers to meet their specific requirements and make sure there is always a good supply of products for different cooking purposes.Many seafood companies can grow a lot by selling their products in other countries. Exporting processed fish products means sending fish that has been prepared in some way to another country. This requires following rules and guidelines, but it can make a lot of money.
Although the processed fish products industry is expected to keep growing, there are also challenges that marketers and distributors need to deal with. One of the main problems is making sure that the products are good and safe from when they are made to when they are sold. Meeting the increasing need for obtaining seafood in a way that helps protect the environment is a ongoing problem. This is because both customers and people who make rules are more and more focused on being environmentally responsible. On the other hand, there are many chances for new ideas and progress. Creating new products, like those made from plants or alternative ingredients, can meet the increasing desire for food that is produced in a sustainable and ethical way. Moreover, improvements in packaging and transportation technology can make processed fish products last longer and stay fresher, making them more widely available and desirable. The way we market and sell fish products that have been processed has changed a lot over the years. This is because people's preferences and the technology we use have both changed. In order for businesses to succeed in this changing industry, it is important for them to know about the past, the present and the ways to sell and advertise products effectively. As the processed fish products market keeps changing, companies that can adjust and come up with new ideas are likely to succeed in this growing field of opportunities.

#### DISCUSSION

An excellent marketing strategy is required to make fish accessible to customers at the appropriate time and in the right location. Fishermen that capture fish by working overnight from common-property water bodies seldom sell their harvest in retail markets. They bring their catches to sites where Nikaries/Beparies, or retailers, meet them and negotiate by the pound. The number of intermediates is modest at the landing place. A fisherman may only be approached by one or two mediators. If the first intermediary fails to collect the fisherman's lot, the remaining intermediates stand at a distance and wait for their time to trade. If the first middleman fails, another comes in to negotiate for the catch. Normally, the first Nikary/Paiker-retailer prevents this from happening and takes the whole bunch for himself. In such a circumstance, there is no open bidding. As a result, the impoverished fisherman is often subject to the gross exploitations of the Nikari/Bepari/Paiker-retailer. As a vendor, a fisherman cannot negotiate beneficial rates for himself. He meets with purchasers one at a time and at various times.He cannot retain fish for an extended period of time since the product is very perishable.He has no designated spot in the market to sell his seafood[6], [7].

Entry into the market is tough for fishermen for a variety of reasons, the most significant of which being considerable non-cooperation and hostility from Paikers/retailers. Thus, it is clear why fishing villages remain impoverished or are becoming poorer over time, despite trading a vital, required, and everyday item. Markets during the primary catch stage are virtually wholly non-competitive, resulting in excessive exploitation. A pond farmer who sells fish by the lot or by species may encounter one or two 'nikaries' in his neighbourhood. Nikaries/Beparies will sometimes develop their own private trade regions where other nikaries will not meddle or compete openly. As a result, a fish farmer encounters a circumstance in which he meets more fellow sellers than customers rather than a market with numerous consumers. This is especially true in distant communities. Fish producers in well-connected locations contact wholesalers in secondary or higher secondary markets directly and negotiate prices and quantities of fish with 'Arat's on their own initiative. Intermediaries, notably Aratdars, face rivalry from other wholesalers, resulting in an oligopoly-like structure in the secondary and upper secondary markets.

Fifty-five percent of fish dealers in rural primary markets offer fresh fish, 17% sell live fish, and 7% sell dried fish. Some sellers of tiny, fresh fish may be fishermen who sell directly to

customers or Beparies. If so, they sit in open areas near the fish market and pay high fees to extortionists. As a result, they suffer substantial transaction expenses while selling their fish at the market. Retail markets have more competition than any other kind of market, such as secondary or higher secondary markets. Fish prices are governed by the direct interaction of demand and supply in retail marketplaces.Retailing arrangements, or groups of merchants that sell fish to customers, exist at all levels of markets. City corporations or municipalities administer retail marketplaces in large cities including as Dhaka, Chittagong, Khulna, and Rajshahi, as well as district towns. In general, stalls, parking, spacing, cleanliness, drainage, and administration in urban and rural retail markets are inadequate. In terms of eye estimate, bargaining is still a frequent technique for pricing fish. In retailing, strict grading, sorting, and price marking are overlooked. The items' quality and weight standards are not strictly enforced. Cheating and exploitation are inescapable under such circumstances. In the absence of acceptable standards of marketing practices and a lack of enforcement by legal authorities, fair pricing according to grade, size, origin, and freshness of the fish may be impossible. As a result, market access is restricted for the economically disadvantaged customers[8], [9].

# Marketing Channels for Fish

A huge number of middlemen control domestic markets and seafood distribution. All fish traded inside the country and exported transit via private channels. Typically, there are four tiers of fish dispersal.

# Initial public offerings

Primary markets are those situated in villages, district headquarters, or at a crossroads. They are frequently near regions where fish are caught. Fishermen bring a variety of fish to the principal markets, mostly tiny fish caught in open water and from ponds.52% of such main rural markets are conducted twice a week, 28% three times a week, and 20% are held daily. In contrast to the customary afternoon markets, 80% of these markets are open during the early hours, mainly for selling milk, vegetables, and fish, and are visited by a comparatively small number of merchants and purchasers.

## Secondary markets

The Beparies transport the fish purchased from the Nikaries/fishermen/primary markets/landing places by road, river, or rail to the closest Upazila or riverport markets to sell to wholesalers or via Aratdars. Fish is distributed from these secondary markets/assembly stations via various pathways to urban markets/higher secondary markets by commissioned agents for wholesalers/Aratdars or other types of Beparies. Landing stations and secondary market locations for freshwater fish species include Bhairab Bazar, Kuliarchar, Narshindi, Munshigonj, Deborghat, and Madaripur.

## **Expanded secondary markets**

Beparies transport fish from secondary markets/fish assembly locations to higher secondary markets that serve broad regions of consumer/terminal markets. The higher secondary market may include one or more wholesale marketplaces or hubs where Aratdars sell fish. These marketplaces are easily accessible by road, water, and train. Trading linkages exist between higher secondary markets and many secondary marketplaces. Higher secondary markets and important landing and marketing sites for bulk amounts of marine and brackish-water fish and shrimp species include Cox's Bazar, Chittagong, Khulna, Bagerhat, Khepupara, Chandpur, and Barisal. Markets at district headquarters may be thought of as higher secondary markets that are linked to multiple secondary markets for fish supply.

### Terminal or city marketplaces

Paikers/retailers purchase fish from upper secondary and secondary market wholesalers. They sell fish directly to customers, either from permanent booths or from head/rickshaws. From the secondary markets to the city or terminal markets, intermediaries on various levels execute marketing activities such as cleaning, sorting, boxing, icing, re-packing, and transportation arrangements, among others. Wholesalers and merchants may offer fish to local customers at each market level. The marketing channel for cultured fish begins with the fish farmer and continues via a variety of middlemen to the final customer. Nikaries, Beparies, Aratdars, and merchants are major middlemen in the fish marketing chain. Fish growers do not sell directly to market customers. With the recent surge in commercial pondfishery, a new development has occurred. At higher secondary markets, fishpond producers have begun to contact Aratdars directly. Fishermen in such instances earn 8-10% of the total selling revenues from the lot they collected. Fish producers incur the price of shipping to the Aratdars, who then organize the bidding for open sales of fish to paikers/retailers. Aratdars get commissions from the auction revenues in return for providing room for fishermen's harvests or ice for the fish. In Mymensingh and Kishoregonj markets, for example, hilsa commission is 3%, carps commission is 4%, and rohu, catla, and mrigal commission is 6.20%.

Aratdars need trade licenses, which must be renewed annually individual farm permit charge is Tk 300/year. The upper secondary market in Mymensingh contains 15 Aratdars, and their number has not risen in the recent 10 years. Entry into the market is tough for newcomers owing to a lack of space and opposition from the Aratdars' organization.In difficult circumstances, an Aratdar may provide credit to Beparies in order to guarantee a supply of fish for his Arat. According to the Aratdars, the supply of fish is considerable from October to January. An Aratdar's monthly revenue after costs in the higher secondary markets/wholesaling marketplaces ranges from Tk 30 000 to Tk 35000. Fish is sold from upper secondary markets to towns and peripheral primary marketplaces in villages by Paikers/retailers. Other issues affecting the fisherman's negotiating position are his reliance on loans and illiteracy. The small number of wholesalers in the market and the close connection they maintain with one another via their association undermine the competitive market concept. Due to insufficient competition among Aratdars, Beparies pay comparatively large commissions and fish farmers/fishmen get lesser rates for their goods. The open auctioning and bidding on fish lots by wholesalers selling to Paikars/retailers makes the market competitive at the retail level of the end consumer market. As a result, the market works differently for various actors. From the farm gate to the higher secondary markets, there are opportunities for exploitation.

### Infrastructure and physical facilities in the market

At whatever level, the fish market is packed. Infrastructure facilities are critical for the domestic marketing of fishery goods as well as the physical development of markets. City corporations and governments often offer infrastructural amenities in the form of pucca roofs, tinshades, pucca platforms, elevated selling locations, and water connections in cities, towns, and river ports. These physical facilities are appearing even in rural primary and assembly markets as a result of local government efforts and market management committees. However, washing and cleaning of fish-selling areas, as well as trash and residue disposal, do not satisfy hygienically acceptable norms. Physical amenities must be upgraded. Fish dealers and market managers must be taught on how to maintain clean and hygienic environments for handling fish. Fish deteriorate rapidly during the hot and wet season. This not only lowers costs but also raises health risks.

Wholesale fish markets may be found in Upazila headquarters, river ports, towns, and cities, as well as secondary, higher secondary, and terminal markets. The space available in these marketplaces is typically insufficient for processing extremely perishable items such as seafood. Ice blocks, on the other hand, are accessible in practically all towns and river ports, but not in all Upazila wholesale marketplaces, where waste remains significant owing to declining product quality. Many private ice factories operate in and around Dhaka City, Munshigonj, Comilla, and Chandpur. Many ice factories have been developed at Cox's Bazar, Khulna, Chittagong, Barisal, Khepupara, Sylhet, Patherghata, and other coastal belt fish landing places. According to 1993 data, Bangladesh has 227 ice factories with a total capacity of 4 280 t of ice per day. The majority of automated fishing boats have ice on board. During peak hils season, fisherman suffer an ice scarcity. More ice plants and cold storage facilities are required to meet the demands of a rising private sector. Since 1992, BFDC has focused its development efforts on the construction of additional landing facilities and ice plants. Some constructed landing facilities in Khepupara, Patharghata, and Barisal remain unutilized and unclaimed by individual merchants. Once developed, arrangements should be made to pass over these facilities to the private sector so that they may be used more effectively.

## Profit margins of fish dealers

In Bangladesh, fish producing sites are located in rural places. As a result, a well-organized marketing infrastructure is required to distribute fish to customers in all regions. Transportation to and from the market, handling, storage, packing, sorting, merchandising, and so on are all part of a fish marketing system. A good marketing technique allows the buyer to have fresh fish at a reasonable price. The total cost of marketing fish comprises all expenditures spent by various kinds of intermediaries throughout the supply chain from producers to end users. Marketing margins encompass all marketing expenditures as well as the profit or loss experienced by all intermediaries in the marketing channel. The marketing margin is the fee that intermediaries charge for any services they provide. The marketing cost and margin of intermediaries in the Mymensingh higher secondary market per quintal of freshwater fish. It displays the costs borne by several intermediaries in the marketing channel, beginning with the fish farmer.

#### CONCLUSION

To sum up, selling and distributing fish products that have been processed is very important for the seafood industry. It affects how people can get and enjoy seafood. This complex process includes understanding what customers like, making sure the products are good quality, being environmentally friendly, and using smart ways to promote and sell seafood to make a successful business.By doing careful research, businesses can find out who they want to sell to, predict what people will want in the future, and make a wide range of fish products for different types of eaters. It is very important to make products stand out from others with branding, packaging, and sustainability certifications. This helps attract consumers who care about both the taste and the ethical and environmental impact of their choices. Distribution channels are important in getting these products to people. Building a strong network, which includes stores, online shopping, restaurants, and selling internationally, makes it easy for a lot of different customers to reach and buy things from us.In addition, successful companies make sure that the food they sell is safe and of good quality. They also keep track of where the food comes from at every step of the process. Getting certified and following rules makes consumers feel safe when buying products. In a time when more and more people care about the environment, it's very important to focus on sustainable practices. Businesses that care about where they get their products and how those products are made help protect our oceans and attract customers who care.Continuous adjustment to changing market trends, investing

in new ideas, and paying attention to what customers say help the processed fish product industry grow and compete better.Put simply, when we have good quality products, focus on being environmentally friendly, and effectively promote and distribute them, we create a winning formula for success in the growing seafood industry. This way, people all over the world who enjoy seafood can easily find delicious and safe processed fish products that are also sustainable.

## **REFERENCES:**

- [1] G. O. Onyinge, A. O. Oduor, and H. E. Othieno, "The design and testing of an indirect cabinet solar dryer, for thin layer drying of Rastrineobola argentea fish, under the climatic conditions of Maseno, Kenya," *African J. Food Sci.*, 2015, doi: 10.5897/ajfs2014.1190.
- [2] S. Maro'ah, "Pemasaran Produk Olahan Ikan Laut Ukm Kenjeran Surabaya Berbasis Marketing Mix Syariah," *J. Balanc.*, 2016.
- [3] L. Kitinoja, "Use of cold chains for reducing food losses in developing countries," *PEF White Pap.*, 2013.
- [4] D. Mozaffarian, "Salt, sugar, and fat or branding, marketing, and promotion?," *Lancet*, 2013, doi: 10.1016/s0140-6736(13)62129-7.
- [5] Norman Mhazo, "The status of the agro-processing industry in Zimbabwe with particular reference to small- and medium-scale enterprises," *African J. Agric. Res.*, 2012, doi: 10.5897/ajar10.079.
- [6] L. M. Bartoshuk *et al.*, "Food cravings in pregnancy: Preliminary evidence for a role in excess gestational weight gain," *Appetite*, 2016.
- [7] N. Hookway, "Tasting the Ethical: Vegetarianism as Modern Re-Enchantment," *M/C J.*, 2014, doi: 10.5204/mcj.759.
- [8] H. Hsu, W. Chern, and F. Gale, "How will rising income affect the structure of food demand," *China's Food Agric. Issues* ..., 2001.
- [9] F. Gale, F. Tuan, B. Lohmar, H. H. Hsu, and B. Gilmour, "China's food and agriculture: Issues for the 21st century," USDA Econ. Res. Serv., 2002.